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NMepeyeHb coBepLIEHHbIX B OTYETHOM roay CAeJIOK, NpM3HaBaeMbiX B
cooTBeTcTBUM C ®3 «06 aKLIMOHEpPHbIX o6l ecTBax>» KPYNHbIMU cAeJIKaMyU

Cnenkun, npusHaBaeMble B COOTBETCTBUM C 3aKOHOAATENbCTBOM P® kpynHbiMu, B 2015
rofly He coBepLlasInChb.




MepeuyeHb coBepLUEHHbIX B OTYETHOM roay cAesnokK, Nnpu3HaBaeMbiX B
cooTBeTcTBMU € D3 «06 akLUMOHEpPHbIX obLecTBax>» caesZikaMu, B COBEepLUeHUH
KOTOPbIX MMeJlaCb 3aMHTEepPeCOBaHHOCTb

CoBet anpexktTopoB OAO «MMK»:

1 06 oao6bpeHnn caesnikn, B COBEPLUIEHUN KOTOPON MMeeTCs 3auHTepPecOBaHHOCTb,
Mo 3aKJ/IIOYEHUIO KOHTPaKTa nocraBku npoaykumm N2 E223657 mexay OAO «MMK» mn
«MMK METALURJI SANAYI, TICARET VE LIMAN ISLETMECiLiGi ANONiM SIRKETI».

CyliecTBeHHble yCroBuUSA:

- NIpeaMeT — flaKoKpaco4dHble MaTepuanbl ANs NOKpbITUS MeTanna;

- KONMYEeCTBO JlaKOKpaCO4HbIX MaTepuanoB ANs TMOKPbITUS MeTanna onpejensercs
cneuymdukKaumaMm u 4ONMoSIHEHUSAMM K KOHTpakTy N2 E223657;

- 6a3unc noctaBkn — DAP, TaMOXeHHbIN TepMUHan, MarHuToropck, Poccuiickas ®enepauns
(cornacHo NHkoTtepmc 2010);

- NOpsSAoK pacyeToB — «[llokynaTenb» NpoM3BOAUT OonnaTy NpoayKunu nocne eé nocraBku
«MpogasuomM» (nocnepytolwas onnarta) AEHEXHbIMKM CpeaCTBaMU B TeyeHue 45 kKaneHpapHbIX
OHelM C MOMeHTa nMoJslydeHUs 3aK/4YeHUs, COrlacoBaHHOro CTOpOHaMu, O pesynbTaTe
nMpoBeAEHUS OMbITHO-MPOMbILIEHHbIX UCMbITAHUI MO okpacke MeTanna Ha AN OAO «MMK»;

- CPOK AeNCTBUS KOHTpakTa — no 31.12.2015.

- UEeHa cAaenku onpegenserca cneumpukaumsaMn m  AOMNOJHEHMAMU K KOHTpakTy N@
E223657.

BbiroponpuobpeTtaTtenu B caenke oTCyTCTBYIOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMM W (MAM) 3aBUCMMbIMM B coBepweHnn O6wecTBOM caenku
npusHatotca 4 uneHa Coseta aupektopos OAO "MMK": BaxmeTtbes B.B., PawHukoB B.O.,
PawHukosa 0O.B., Wwunsaes M.B.

OpraH, npuHsaBwWUin peweHne 06 ogobpennn caenkun: CoseT anpektopos OAO "MMK".

2 06 ogo6peHumn caenkun, B COBepLIeHNMN KOTOPOi MMeeTCs 3aMHTepeCcoBaHHOCTD,
No 3aKJ/IIDYEHUI0 AO0roBopa apeHAbl HeXXunbix noMmeweHum N2 224223 mexxgy OAO
«MMK>» n «KYBb» OAO>».

CyliecTBeHHble yC/10BuUS:

- MpeaMeT — apeHga 4YacTU HEeXWsblX noMeweHun obuwer nnowaabto 12 kB. M (C
BO3MeLlleHMeM pacxofoB MO onJjlaTe KOMMYHasbHbIX YCAyr), pPacnosiOXeHHbIX Mo agpecam: T.
MarHuTtoropck, yn. Kuposa, 93, np. MNywkuHa, 2, yn. 9 Mag, 26/1;

- CTOpOHbl BMpaBe corfacoBbiBaTb YycnoBusa o6 wusMeHeHUM obbekTa [Orosopa,
nepenaBaeMoro B apeHAy M U3 apeHabl;

- CTOpPOHblI BMpaBe corjaacoBbiBaTb ycioBuss 06 M3MEHeHUW pasMepa apeHAHOM nnaThl,
yCTaHOBMB ee B pa3Mepe njaTbl, KOTopas Npu CpaBHUMbIX 06CTOATENbCTBaX 06bI4YHO B3MMaeTcs
3a aHanornyHole ycayrm (C yd4eToM pbIHOYHOM apeHAHOW mnnaTbl, onpeAesieHHON He3aBUCUMbIM
OLLEHLLMNKOM);

- CPOK OENCTBUSA AOroBopa — HeonpeaeneHHbl. CTOpOHbl BpaBe COrfacoBbiBaTb YC/I0BUS
0 NpekpaleHun AenCTBMSA HaCTosLWero 4orosopa;

- NOpPSAAOK pacyeToB — A0 25-r0 Yncna Tekyuwero Mecsua.

- onpepenuTb apeHgHyo nnaaTty B pasmepe 10 998 pyb6nen, c yuetom HAOC, B TOM uncne:
3a nonb3oBaHue nomeweHusmm - 10 804 pybnen B ™Mecsay ¢ ydetom HAC v nnaty 3a
TennocHabxeHne - 194 pybna B mecsy ¢ ydyetom HAC.

BoirogonpuobpeTtatenu B caenke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMM W (MAKM) 3aBUCUMbIMM B coBepuweHun O6wecTBOM caenku
npusHatotca 4 uyneHa Coseta aupektopoB OAO "MMK": baxmetbeB B.B., PawHukos B.O.,
PawHunkosa O.B., Wnnses M.B.




OpraH, npuHaBwuin peweHne 06 ogobpennn caenku: Coset gunpektopos OAO "MMK".

3 06 ogo6peHun caenkn, B COBEPLUEHUN KOTOPOU MMeeTCA 3auHTepPeCOBaHHOCTb,
Mo 3aKJIIDYEHUIO AOoNOJIHUTENIbHOro cornaweHus N22 k gorosopy N2 222388 mexay
OAO «MMK>» n 000 «MMK-INMPABO>.

CyLecTBeHHble YCOBUS:

- CTOMMOCTb Ycnyr coctasnsieT 2 986 032, 48 pybnen (B ToMm uncne HAC 18%) B mMecsy un
MOXET M3MEHATbCS MO COr/laleHMNI0 CTOPOH NYTEM 3aKJ/IHOUYEHUS AOMNOSIHUTENIbHOMO COrflalleHns;

- cornaweHue BcTtynaet B cuny ¢ 01 gHBaps 2015 r. n AelACTBYET A0 OKOHYaHWMA CpokKa
OENCTBUSA Aorosopa.

- onpeaenuTb UeHy caenku B pa3mepe 2 986 032,48 pybnen (aBa MUINMOHA AEBATbLCOT
BOCEMbAECSAT WeCTb ThiCAY TpMAauaTb ABa pybns COpok BoCeMb koneek) B Mmecsy, (B TOM yucne
HAOC 18%) 1 MOXET M3MEHATLCS MO COrlalleHnt0 CTOPOH MyTEM 3aK/H4YeHUss AONOJAHUTENbHOIO
cornaweHums.

BoirogonpuobpeTtatenu B caenke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMM © (MNM) 3aBUCMMbIMM B coBepueHnn O6wecTBOM caenku
npusHatotca 3 uneHa Coseta aumpektopoB OAO "MMK": baxmetbeB B.B., PawHwukos B.O.,
Wwungsaes MN.B.

OpraH, npuHaswun peweHne 06 onobpennn caenkun: Coset anpektopos OAO "MMK".

4 06 oao6bpeHnn caesikn, B COBEPLUEHUN KOTOPOW MMeeTCA 3auHTepeCOBaHHOCTb,
no 3akKJ/IlYEHUI0 AoroBopa 06 okasaHuu puanueckux ycnyr N2 223164 mexxay OAO
«MMK>» n 000 «MMK-NMPABO>».

CylecTBeHHble YCN0BUS:

- NpeAMeT — oKa3aHue IPUANYECKUX YCIyr;

- CpOK onfiaTbl — B TeyeHne 5 paboumx AHelr C paTbl NoanuMcaHuMsa akTa 06 OKasaHHbIX
ycnyrax.

- onpenenuTb UeHy caenku B pasmepe 650 000 py6bnen (B Tom uncne HAC 18%).

Bbirogonpuobpetatenu B caenke OTCYyTCTBYIOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMM W (MAM) 3aBUCMMbIMM B coBepueHnn O6wecTBOM caenku
npusHatotca 3 uneHa Coseta aumpektopoB OAO "MMK": Bbaxmetbes B.B., PawHukos B.O.,
Wnnsaes IM1.B.

OpraH, npuHasWwMn peweHne 06 onobperHnn caenkn: Coset anpektopos OAO "MMK".

5 06 ogo6peHumn caenkun, B COBepLIEHNN KOTOPOi MMeeTCs 3aMHTEepeCcoBaHHOCTD,
no 3axKJIlo4eHno aorosopa 06 okasaHuu ropuanuveckux ycnyr N2 223583 mexxay OAO
«MMK>» n 000 «MMK-NMPABO>.

CylecTBeHHble YCN0BUS:

- NpeAMeT — oKa3aHue PUANYECKUX YCIyr;

- CpOK onsatbl — B TeyeHue 5 paboumx gHein c paTbl noanmcaHusa akta 06 OkKasaHHbIX
ycnyrax.

- onpepenuTb LeHy caenku B pasmepe 29 500 pybnein (B Tom uncne HAC 18%).

Bbirogonpuobpetatenu B caenke OTCyTCTBYIOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMM W (MNAM) 3aBUCMMbIMM B coBepueHnn O6wecTBOM caenku
npusHatotca 3 uneHa Coseta aumpektopos OAO "MMK": baxmeTtbeB B.B., PawHwukos B.O.,
Wnnsaes I1.B.

OpraH, npuHaBWMA peweHne 06 ogobperHunn caenkun: Coset aupektopos OAO "MMK".

6 06 oao6peHun caenku, B COBEPLUEHUN KOTOPOA MMEETCA 3aUHTEPEeCOBAaHHOCTb,
no 3aknuyeHunro gorosopa N2 224134 mexxay OAO «MMK>» n 000 «MMK-INMPABO».

CyliecTBeHHble yC/oBuUS:

- NpeaAMeT — puanyeckme yciyrm, CBssaHHble C YMeHbLleHUeM HasnoroebiXx 06a3aTtenbCcTB
no Hanory Ha npubbinb u HAC B cBA3M ¢ npuobpeteHnem OAO «MMK» ycnyr 00O
«Ynpasnsawowasa komnaHnsa MMK» 3a Hanorosble nepuoabl ¢ 01.06.2011 no 31.12.2013;




- CPOK AeNCTBMS A0OroBopa — A0 MOJSIHOrO BbIMOSIHEHMS CTOPOHaMM CBOMX 0643aTenbCTB;

- NOPSIAOK pacyeToB - AEHEXHbIMU CpeacTBaMM Ha pacdeTHbin cyer OO0 «MMK-TMPABO»,
yKa3aHHbIl B 4OroBope:

- NPV BbIHECEHMM HaNoOroBbiIM OPraHOM peleHnss O BO3BpaTe (3adeTe) Hanoros,
CTOMMOCTb YyCnyr B NONHOM ob6beMe BbinnaumMBaeTcs B TedeHme 10 paboumx gHen € Aathl
MPUHATUS HaNOrOBbIM OPraHOM COOTBETCTBYHLWEro peLleHMs M NoANMUCAHUS CTOPOHaMW akTa
npuema-nepenaydn oKasaHHbIX yCNyr;

- npu cypebHoMm o06)xanoBaHMW peLlleHMs HaNoroBOoro oOpraHa, KOTOpbIM OTKa3aHo B
Bo3BpaTe (3adeTe) Hanoros, 50% OT BbllWeyKa3aHHOM CyMMbl, BbliNa4ynBaeTca B TedyeHue 10
pabouunx gHeln nocne BCTYMNNEHUS B 3aKOHHYIO CUy pelleHns apbuTpa>kHOro cyaa; ocrtaslimecs
50% CTOMMOCTM YyCAyr OnjaayMBalTCa MoOcC/Ae pacCMOTPEHUS Aena B Cyde KacCCauMOHHOWM
MHCTaHUMM N nognucaHns CTOpOHaMKM akTa NnpueMa-rnepenaym okasaHHbIX YCAyr, HO He no3gHee
31.12.2016.

- onpegennTb UeHy caenku B pa3Mmepe 354 000,00 pybnein (Tpucrta nATbAECAT 4YeTbipe
Tbicaum) pybnen (B TOoM uucne HAC). B cnydae BO3HUKHOBeHMS y 00O «MMK-MNPABO»
OOMOSIHNTENbHbIX pacxoaoB (KOMaHAMPOBOYHbIX U UHbIX PacxoAoB), CBA3aHHbIX C BbIMOSIHEHNEM
0653aTenbCTB NO AOroBOpPYy, CTOMMOCTb HOPUAMYECKUX YCIYr yBEIM4YMBAETCS Ha CyMMY TakuxX
OOKYMEHTaNIbHO NOATBEPXAEHHbIX pacxono0B.

BoirogonpuobpeTtatenn B caenke OTCYTCTBYHOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMM W (MAM) 3aBUCMMbIMM B coBepweHnn O6wecTBOM caenku
npusHatotca 3 uneHa Cosera aumpektopoB OAO "MMK": Bbaxmetbes B.B., PawHukos B.O.,
Wwunsaes MN.B.

OpraH, npuHaswun peweHne 06 opobpennn caenkun: Coset anpektopos OAO "MMK".

7 06 ogo6peHum caenkun, B COBEpLUEHNN KOTOPOiA NMeeTCAa 3aUHTepecoOBaHHOCTD,
no 3aKJIIDYEHUIO COrJjlalleHUs1 O PacTOPXXEHUM AO0roBopa NOCTaBKM CXKAToOro Bo3ayxa
n/vnm nNpoaykKToB pa3paesieHus Bo3ayxa no Tpy6onposogam N2 200081 mexxay OAO
«MMK>» n OAO «MMK-METU3».

CyliecTBeHHble yC/10BuUS:

- porosop N2 200081 npekpawaet gencremne ¢ 01.02.2015.

Boirogonpuobpertatenu B caenke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3auMHTepecoBaHHbIMM 1 (MAN) 3aBUCUMbIMM B coBeplweHun Ob6lwecTBoM cAesnku
npusHatotca 3 uneHa Coseta ampektopoB OAO "MMK": baxmeTtbeB B.B., PawHukos B.OD.,
Wnnsaes IM1.B.

OpraH, npuHasWwMn peweHne 06 onobperHnn caenkn: Coset anpektopos OAO "MMK".

8 06 oao6peHnn caenku, B COBEpLIEHUN KOTOPOA MMeeTCA 3auHTEepPeCcOBaHHOCTb,
no 3aKJ/IIDOYEeHUI0 AOoroBopa BO3Me3[HOro okasaHusa ycnyr N2 224058 mexpay OAO
«MMK>» n OAO «MMK-METU3».

CylecTBeHHble YCN0BUS:

- NpegMeT — BO3MEe34HOEe OKa3aHWe YCIyr MO KOHTPOJIK TEXHOIOrMMYEeCKMX MpoLEecCoB,
nocTynatowero Cbipbss W MPOU3BOAMMONM MNPOAYKLUMW B COOTBETCTBUMM C TpeboBaHmamu HL;
3KCMNpPEeCCHbIM MCCNef0BaHMSAM KayecTBa MeTasnia Npyu YyCTaHOBEHMN MPUYMH MONOMOK AeTanel
060py,CI,OBaHVI9| nyTeMm Bblaayn aHaAJIM30B U 3aKmoquvu7|; nccnepgoBaHmMAM KaydectBa MeTaslsia
Tpy6onpoBonoB, BO34YyXOBOAOB U APYrMX 06bEeKTOB B COOTBETCTBUM C TpeboBaHusaMu H nytem
BblJAyYM aHaNM30B M 3aK/OYEHUN; HepaspyllaloweMy KOHTPO0 KayecTBa npoAayKuuu,
060opynoOBaHUs, CBapHbIX coeAuMHEeHUn, TpybonpoBoAOB U ApYrux O06bLEeKTOB B COOTBETCTBUMU C
rpadpmnkamm-3akasamu, TpebosaHuaMu FocroptexHaasopa v H; BbINOAHEHUIO APYruxX BUAOB
aHanu3oB W YCNyr;

- CpOK paencrteus gorosopa - no 31.12.2015 c ycnoBveM aBTOMATM4YECKOro MpoAaseHUs
[OroBopa Ha CneaywwWnii KaneHdapHbii road npuM OTCYTCTBMM 3asABIEHUMA CTOPOH O €ero
npexkpaweHunm,




- nopsigoK pacyetoB — B TedeHume 30 (Tpuauatu) KaneHaapHbIX AHEN C AaTbl OTNpPaBKM
NOAJIMHHOIO 3K3eMnisipa cyeTa-gaKTypbl.

- CTOMMOCTb CAefiKM onpeaennTb Ha ocHoBaHuu LleH Ha ycnyrn HTL, yctaHoBneHHbix OAO
«MMK>» 1 ykasaHHbIx B NpunoxeHnn N°1 k gorosopy N°224058.

LleHa MoxeT ©6biTb wun3MeHeHa OAO <«MMK» B 3aBUCMMOCTM OT W3MEHEHUS
obycnoBnumBaoLWmx ee ycnoBmin (MpyM N3MEHEHNM LIEH Ha MaTepualsbl, 3HEpPropecypchl 1 T.m.).

Boirogonpuobpertatenu B caenke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMM W (MNKM) 3aBUCUMbIMM B coBepueHnn O6WwecTBOM Ccaesnku
npusHatotca 3 uneHa Coseta aupektopoB OAO "MMK": baxmetbeB B.B., PawHukos B.O.,
Wnnsaes I1.B.

OpraH, npuHsaBwuin peweHne 06 ogobpennn caenkun: CoseT gnpektopos OAO "MMK".

9 06 onpepeneHnUn LEeHbl OTUYY>XXAAEMOro MMyLlecTBa NO cAesike, B COBEpPLUEHUM
KOTOPOW MMeeTCA 3auHTEepecOBaHHOCTb, MO MNPOJIOHrauuMM p[OroBopa MNOCTaBKU
npoaykummn N2 210435, sakntoueHHoro mexxay OAO «MMK» n OAO «MMK-METU3».

CyliecTBeHHble yC/10oBuUSA:

onpenenutb, 4To UeHa MeTtannonpoaykumm OAO «MMK» no cpenke, B coBeplleHUn
KOTOPON MMEETCS 3aMHTEPecOBaHHOCTb, O MNPOJSIOHrauMu A0roBopa nocTaBku npoaykuum NO©
210435, 3aknwudeHHoro wmexagy OAO «MMK» u OAO <«MMK-METU3» cornacosbiBaeTcs
CTOpPOHaMM B OTrpy304HOW pasHapsgke K Aorosopy, nmMbo odopmnsercs AONONHUTENbHbIM
cornaweHmeMm K gorosopy. lNpegencHas cymma caenku — He 6onee 15 000 MnH. pybnen.

3auMHTepecoBaHHbIMM 1 (MAKM) 3aBUCUMbIMM B coBeplieHmn O6WwecTBOM CAeKK
npusHatotca 3 uyneHa Coseta aupektopos OAO "MMK": BaxmeTtbeB B.B., PawHukoB B.O.,
Wwnngaes IM.B.

OpraH, npuHaswun peweHne o6 ogobpennn caenkun: Coset gupektopos OAO "MMK".

10 06 opo6bpeHun caenkun, B COBEpPLUEHUN KOTOPON MMEeTCs 3auHTEepecOBaHHOCTb,
no 3akjruyeHunio cornaweHusa N2 1 o npepocraBneHuu oBepapadprTa Nno 6aHKOBCKOMY
cuety N2 40702810400000100009 mexxay OAO «MMK>» n «Kpeaut Ypan banHk>» OAO».

CylecTBeHHble YCN0BUS:

- nNpeaMeT caenku - npepgocraBfeHMe oBepapadTa (KpaTKOBpeMeHHOoe KpeauToBaHue
pacdyeTHoro cyeta knumeHta (OAO «MMK») npu OTCYTCTBUM [AEHEXHbIX CPEACTB Ha cuyeTe) B
npegenax yCTaHOBIEHHOroO IMMUTa C NPaBOM AOCPOYHOrO 3aKpbITUS NMUTA BAHKOM;

- cyMMa nuMuta — He 6oniee 500 000 000 (MATbCOT MUNTMOHOB) pybneit;

- ueneBoe Ha3HayeHume - MUCNnoJsIHeEHUnE 6aHKOM paCyeTHbIX AOOKYMEHTOB KJ/IMEHTA O
nepevyncneHnmn AeHeEXHbIX CPeACTB B NOJIb3y €ro KOHTpareHToB,
- nsaTta 3a nonb30oBaHMe oBepapadToM - He 6onee 16% rogoBbiX, B3MMaeTca B

cooTBeTCcTBUM € CornalleHmem;

- 3340/KEHHOCTb MO KaXAoMy TpaHwy oBepapadTa, npenoctaBleHHOMY B npegenax
YCTaHOBJ/IEHHOrO NIMMUTA, AOJ/IKHA MOJIHOCTbIO MorawaTtbca B TedeHue 30 (TpuauaTtn) gHen ¢
MOMEHTa ero nNpefocTaB/ieHns, HO He No3aHee cpoka aenctemsa CornaweHus;

- cpok genctBusa CornaweHmnsa — 12 mecsaues;

- 6aHk Bnpase, nMNpM U3MEHEHUN KPEAUTHO-LAEHEXHOW, pacCYETHOM NOJUTUKMK
LUeHTpanbHoro baHka P®, T[llpaButensctBa P®, B OAHOCTOPOHHEM nopsake BHOCUTb B
CornaweHune uU3MeHeHusl, BCTynawwme B cuny B TedeHme 10 (pgecatun) KaneHAapHbIX AHER C
MOMEHTa NOJIyYEHUS KIIMEHTOM TeKCTa U3MEHEHUS.

- onpegenuTb ueHy caenku 580 000 000 (MsTbCOT BOCEMbAECAT MWUIMOHOB) pybnen, B
TOM uyucrne cymma nummuta 500 000 000 (MATbCOT MUANMOHOB) pybnern M nNpoueHTbl 3a
nofb3oBaHWe KpeauTHbIMW cpeacTBamMu 3a 12 Mecsues B cymme 80 000 000 (BocembaecsT
MWUNNMOHOB) pybnei.

BoirogonpuobpeTtatenu B caenke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3anMHTepecoBaHHbIMM M (MAKM) 3aBUCUMbIMM B coBeplieHmn O6WwecTBOM CAENKK
npusHatotTca 4 uneHa CoseTta agumpektopos OAO "MMK": baxmeTtbeB B.B., PawHukos B.O.,
PawHunkosa O.B., Wnnses I1.B.




OpraH, npuHaBwuin peweHne 06 ogobpennn caenkun: Coset gnpektopos OAO "MMK".

11 06 opo6peHumn CAenku, B coBepLieHnmn KOTOpOW nmeercs
3aMHTEepPEeCOBaHHOCTb, MO 3aKJ/IDYEHUIO A0roBopa apeHpabl o6opypnoBaHua N2 224525
mexay OAO «MMK>» n OAO «MMK-METU3>».

CyLecTBeHHble YCOBUS:

- MnpeagMeT - apeHga CUCTEMbl Yy4yeTa [MOpPOLIKOBOM MpPoOBOSIOKM (MHBEHTapHbI N°
435017368), pacnosioxeHHOM No agpecy: r. MarHMToropck, yna. MeTusHukos, 5;

- CTOpPOHbI BMpaBe COrlacoBbiBaTb yC/N0BUA 06 M3MeHeHMM pa3Mepa apeHAHOM
naaTbl, YCTAaHOBMB €e B pa3Mepe mnJjaTtbl, KOTopas Nnpu cpaBHMMbIX ob6cTosTenbcTBax
06bIYHO B3MMaeTcA 3a aHaNornM4yHbie ycnyrm (C y4yeToM pPbIHOYHOW apeHAHOWM nnathl,
onpeaesieHHOW He3aBUCUMbIM OLL€HLUUKOM);

- CPOK AEACTBUA AOroBopa — HeonpeaesieHHbIn. CTOPOHbI BripaBe COrjlacoBbiBaTh
yCNnoBusi O NpeKpaljeHun AeiACTBUA Aorosopa;

- MOPSAAOK pacyeToB — A0 25-ro ymcna Tekyuwero Mmecsua.

- onpenenuTb apeHAHYo nnaTy B pa3sMmepe 22 247,57 pybnen B mecsay, c ydyetom HAC.

Boirogonpuobperatenu B caefnke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3auMHTepecoBaHHbIMM M (MAKM) 3aBUCUMbIMM B coBeplieHmn O6WwecTBOM CAesKK
npusHatotca 3 dyneHa Coseta aupektopos OAO "MMK": Bbaxmetbes B.B., PawHwukos B.O.,
Wwnngaes IM.B.

OpraH, npuHaBwuin peweHne 06 ogobpennn caenkun: Coset anpektopos OAO "MMK".

12 06 ono6peHunn caenkm, B coBeplIeHuun KOTOpOM nmeercs
3aMHTEpPEeCcOBaHHOCTb, MO 3aKJ/IIOYEHUIO AONOJIHUTEeNbHOro cornaweHuna N2 1 k
Cornawenunto N2 221144 mexxay OAO «MMK>» n 000 «MMK-INMPABO>».

CyliecTBeHHble YCN0BUS:

- B nepuog aencreus Cornawenns CTOpPOHbI BNpaBe NMpeaocTaBnaTb ApYr APYyry No AOroBopy
3armMa (Mpunoxenne N2 1, N2 2, N° 2/1) cBobogHble aeHexHble cpeacTBa. Cpok M ycnoBus
npefoCcTaBNeHMs 3aMa cornacoBbiBatoTcsd CTOpoOHaMK Npu NoANMCaHMKM AOrOBOPOB 3anMa.

Boirogonpuobpertatenu B caenke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMM W (MAM) 3aBUCMMbIMM B coBepuweHnn O6wecTBOM caenku
npusHatotTca 3 dyneHa Coseta gupektopos OAO "MMK": Baxmetbes B.B., PawHwukos B.O.,
Wwunsaes MN.B.

OpraH, npuHaBwWUin peweHne 06 ogobpennn caenkun: CoseT anpektopos OAO "MMK".

13 06 oanobpeHunn caenkwm, B coBeplIeHumn KOTOpOM nmeertcs
3aMHTEepecoBaHHOCTb, MO BHECEHUID U3MEeHEeHUI B aoroBop 3amMma (MpunoxkeHue N2 2
k CornaweHutro N2 221144) mexxpy OAO «MMK>» (3aemwmnk) n 000 «MMK-MNPABO»
(3aimopaBel)».

CylecTBeHHble YCNoBUS:

- npegMeT cAenknm - nepepada B COHBCTBEHHOCTb 3aeMLUMKY [AEHEeXHbIX CpPeacTB C
0653aHHOCTbIO 3aeMuMKa BO3BpPaTUTb 3aliMOAaBLy MONYYEHHYIO CyMMa 3aMMa U ynjaaTtuTb Ha
Hee MpoLeHThbl;

- LleHa caenku: cyMma 3aiMa He npesbiwaeTt 20 000 000 (aBaguaTb MUAIMOHOB pybneint);
CPOK AeNCTBUS AOroBopa — 3aeM npenocTaBnseTcs Cpokom no 29.02.2016 r.;

- npoueHTHas ctaska: 0% (HOMb) NPOLEHTOB FOAO0BbIX

- onpepenuTb LeHy caenkum B pasMepe 20 000 000,00 (aBaguaTtb MunnmoHoB 00 koneek)
pybnei.

BoirogonpuobpeTtatenu B caenke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMM W (MNAM) 3aBUCMMbIMM B coBepuweHnn O6wecTBOM caenku
npusHatotca 3 uneHa CoseTa ampektopoB OAO "MMK": baxmeTtbeB B.B., PawHukos B.O.,
Wnnsaes I1.B.

OpraH, npuHasWwun peweHne 06 onobpeHun caenku: Coset agupektopos OAO "MMK".




14 06 opo6peHumn CAenku, B coBepLieHnmn KOTOpOW nmeercs
3aMHTEepecoBaHHOCTb, MO 3aK/IlOUeHUK porosopa 3anma (MpunoxxeHme N2 2/1 k
Cornawenmio N2 221144) mexxay OAO «MMK» (3aemwmk) m 000 «MMK-INPABO>»
(3aimopasen) ».

CyLecTBeHHble YC0BUS:

- npegMeT cAenknm - rnepepada B COOBCTBEHHOCTb 3aeMLUMKY [OEHEXHbIX CPeacTB C
0653aHHOCTbIO 3aeMuMKa BO3BpPaTUTb 3aliMOAABLYy MONYYEHHYIO CyMMa 3aMMa U ynjaaTtuTb Ha
Hee MpoLEeHThbI;

- CPOK AENCTBUS A0OroBOpa — 3aeM npeaocTaBnsieTcsa cpokom no 31.01.2016 r.;

- npoueHTHas ctaBka: 0% (HOMb) NMPOLUEHTOB ro40BbIX

- UeHa caenku: cyMma 3arhMa He npesbiwaeTr 20 000 000,00 (pBaguaTtb mMuanmoHos 00
Korneek) pybnern.

BoirogonpuobpeTtatenu B caenke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3auMHTepecoBaHHbIMM U (MAnM) 3aBUCUMbIMM B coBeplieHmn O6WwecTBOM CAENKM
npusHatotca 3 uneHa Coseta aupektopoB OAO "MMK": baxmetbeB B.B., PawHukos B.O.,
Wwnnaes I1.B.

OpraH, npuHaBwuin peweHne 06 ogobpennn caenkun: Coset anpektopos OAO "MMK".

15 06 ono6peHunn caenkm, B coBeplIeHuun KOTOpOM nmeercs
3aMHTEpPEeCcOBaHHOCTb, MO 3aKJIOYEHUID AONOJIHUTEeNbHOro cornaweHuma N2 3 k
aorosopy N2 222388 mexxay OAO «MMK» n 000 «MMK-INPABO».

CyliecTBeHHble YyCN0OBUS:

- NpeaMeT: npaBoBoe 06CnyXuBaHue;

- YCNnyrm oka3sblBatloTca wmxamBeHmeM 3akasumka (OAO «MMK»), npaBoBass MoMollb MO
OTAeNbHbIM AenaM, onpegensemMbiM 3aKa3yMKOM, OKa3blBAE€TCA Ha OCHOBaHWKM OTAeNbHbIX
[OroOBOPOB WM Ha OCHOBAHWM AOMNOAHUTENbHbIX cornaweHnn K gorosopy N° 222388;

- repeyeHb ycayr, AOMNOSIHUTENbHO OKa3biBaeMbix McnonHutenem (OO0 «MMK-MPABO»)
nsnoxeH B MNMpunoxeHun N2 4;

- 3aKkasuyukK Brpase MpouU3BOAUTbL [AOMOAHUTENBbHYIO onnaTty ycnyr WcnonHutens B
3aBMCUMOCTU OT CJIOXHOCTU OKa3blBaeMblX YCNyr, paccMaTpuMBaeMoro Jena, KaTteropum
opraHusaumm, B KoTopoil WcnonHuTenio HeobxoaMMo nNpeacTaBnsATb WMHTepecbl 3aKasuuka,
CYMMbI, YCNOBUN CAENKN, HE0BX0AMMOCTMN H60AbLWON0 KomMyecTsa KOMaHANPOBOK, CBEPXYPOYHOM
paboTbl M T.N. Ha OCHOBaHWW AOMOMHWUTENBbHOrO cornaweHns K porosopy N2 222388 wnu
3aKkasumK BnpaBe NPUHATb peleHne 0 HeobXxoaMMOCTM 3aKNOUYeHNS OTAEIbHOrO A40r0BOpPa;

- cornaweHue Bctynaet B cunay ¢ 01 wmona 2015 r. 1 gencreyeT A0 OKOHYaHWUSA Cpoka
Aencrteuna gorosopa N? 222388.

- onpeaenuTb LeHy caenku B pasMmepe 6 436 234,48 pybna (LwecTb MUANINMOHOB YeTblpecTa
TpMALaTb LWeCTb TbiCAY ABeCTM Tpuauatb 4veTbipe pybns cOpok BoceMb Korneek) B Mecsuy, C
ydyetom HAC 18% w©n MOXET W3MEHATbCA MO COornaweHuto CTOPOH MyTeM 3aK/Ito4YeHus
OOMOSTHUTENbHbIX COrflalleHuni.

BoirogonpuobpeTtatenu B caenke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3anMHTepecoBaHHbIMM M (MAKM) 3aBUCUMbIMM B coBeplieHmn O6WwecTBOM CAENKK
npusHatotca 3 uneHa CoseTa aumpektopoB OAO "MMK": baxmeTtbeB B.B., PawHukos B.OD.,
Wwunsaes MN.B.

OpraH, npuHasWwMn peweHne 06 ogobpeHun caenkun: Coset aupektopos OAO "MMK".

16 06 oao6peHnn caenkwm, B COBEpLIEeHUM KOTOpoO#H nMmeercs
3anHTEepecoBaHHOCTb, MO 3aKJ/IIOYEHUIO [AOMNOJIHUTEJSIbHOro corjaweHuma N2 2 k
CornaweHuto N2 221144 o BHeceHMM usaMeHeHuin B MpunoxxeHmna N2 2 n N2 2/1 k
Cornawenmio N2 221144 mexpay OAO «MMK» (3aemwumk) m 000 «MMK-TNPABO>»
(3anmopasel).

CywecTBeHHble yCoBUS:




- NMPOLEHTHasa crtaBka No gorosopam 3amma (MpunoxeHme N2 2 u MpunoxeHne N2 2/1 K
Cornawenuto N? 221144) coctasnsaet 0,1% (HOAb Lenbix ogHa AecsTas) NPOLEHTOB roAOBbIX;

- npoueHTHas ctaska 0,1% gencteyer ¢ 01.01.2015.

- onpepenutb ueHy caenku B 0,1% (HONb uenbiXx ogHa AecsaTasd) MNPOLEHTOB Ha CyMMy
3arma.

Boirogonpuobpertatenu B caenke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMM © (MNAM) 3aBUCMMbIMM B coBepueHnn O6wecTBOM caenku
npusHatotca 3 yneHa CoseTta anpektopoB OAO "MMK": PawHukos B.®., Cynumos C.A., lUnnsaes
n.B.

OpraH, npuHsaBwuin peweHne 06 ogobpennn caenkun: CoseT gnpektopos OAO "MMK".

17 06 opo6peHumn cAenkm, B coBepLieHnn KOTOpOWM nmeercs
3aMHTEpPEeCcOBaHHOCTb, MO 3aKJ/IIDYEHUI0 AONOJIHUTENbHOro cornaweHuma N2 4 k
porosopy N2 222388 mexxay OAO «MMK>» n 000 «MMK-INPABO».

CylwecTBeHHble YCN0OBUSA:

- MpegMeT: corjlacoBaHMe nepeyHs MNOMelleHMr 3akasuuka, B KOTOPbIX PacrosiOXeHbl
obopypoBaHHbie pabounme ™MecTa M NOMeEWEHMN 3akasumka AN XpaHeHUs [OKYMEHTOB,
oTBevyawlwme CcaHMTapHbiIM HopMaM Wn TpeboBaHMAM oOxpaHbl Tpyda W MPOMbIWIEHHOMN
6e3onacHoCcTK, npeaocTasnsemMble 3akazumkoM NCnonHUTENt0 B COOTBETCTBUM C NMyHKTOM 3.1.1
aorosopa N° 222388 Bo ncnosnHeHne obs3atenbCcTBa 3aka3suymka no obecrnedyeHuto McnonHutens
BCEM HeobxoAnMbIM AN okasaHusa ycnyr (MpunoxeHue 3/2);

- cornaweHune BcTtynaet B cuny ¢ 01 aerycta 2015 r. n AeNCTBYET A0 OKOHYaHWUSA Cpoka
aencrteusa gorosopa N2 222388;

- C paTtbl BCTYMJIeHUS B CWUAy AOMNOAHUTENbHOro cornaweHns N2 4 npunoxenune 3/1
yTpaunBaeT cuny.

- onpeaenuTb: LeHa A0OroBopa He MeHseTCs.

Boirogonpuobpertatenu B caefnke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3auMHTepecoBaHHbIMM M (MAKM) 3aBUCUMbIMKM B coBeplieHMM O6WecTBOM CAenku
npusHatotcs 3 uneHa CoseTta gmpektopos OAO "MMK": PawHukoB B.®., Cynumos C.A., WWnnses
n.B.

OpraH, npuHasWwMn peweHne 06 onobperHnn caenkn: Coset anpektopos OAO "MMK".

18 06 oaobpeHunn cAesnku, B coBepLieHun KOTOpO# nMmeercs
3aMHTEpPECOBaHHOCTb, MO 3aKJ/IIOYEHUIO A[OroBopa BO3MEe34HOro okasaHua ycnyr No
225557 mexxay OAO «MMK>» n AHO «XokkelHbI# kKny6 «Metannypr».

CylecTBeHHble YyCNoBUS:

- npeaMeT - Kny6 npvHmMMaeT Ha cebs ob6a3aTtenbCcTBa Mo pasMeLleHnto pekiaMHo-
MHMOPMALUMOHHBIX MaTepManos, U306paXKeHMIo NoroTuna 3akasumka Ha peksaMHbIX Naowaasx,
a 3aKas4uuK npuHuMaeT Ha cebs obs3aTenbcTBa no onnate ycnyr Knyb6a;

- MOPSAAOK pacyeToB — onsiata Npou3BOAMTCA Ha OCHOBaHMKM noanmcaHHoro CTopoHamum
AkTa 06 oKazaHuK yCnyr 1 BbICTaB/IEHHOrO cyeTa-dakTypbl B TeyeHne 10 (aecsatu) gHen c gatbl
noanucaHus Akta o6 okasaHuu ycnyr.

- CpoOK AencTems gorosopa — no 30.04.2016.

- onpenenuTb UeHy caenku B pasMepe 63 000 000,00 py6. (c HAC).

Bbirogonpuobpetatenu B caenke OTCyTCTBYIOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMK N (MNK) 3aBUCMMbIMUK B coBeplueHnn O6wecTBoM caenku
npusHatotca 4 uneHa Coseta ampektopos OAO "MMK": PawHukos B.®., PawHunkosa O.B.,
Cynumos C.A., Wwnngaes I.B.

OpraH, npuHaBWMA peweHne 06 ogobperHnn caenkn: Coset anpektopos OAO "MMK".

19 06 opo6peHumn CAenkKu, B coBepLuieHnmn KOTOpOW nMmeercs
3aMHTepecoBaHHOCTb, No npepocTasneHunto 6anky TURKIYE GARANTI BANKASI A.S.
rapaHtum OAO «MMK>» B o6ecneuyeHue reHepasbHOro KpeAMTHOro cornawieHus,
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3aKks0oueHHoro mexxay MMK METALURJI SANAYi, TICARET VE LIMAN iSLETMECILIGI
ANONIM SIRKETI n 6ankom TURKIYE GARANTI BANKASI A.S.>».

CylecTBeHHble YyCoBUS:

- [apaHTMpoBaHHble o0b6s3aTenbCTBa: BCe AeHeXHble ob6s3aTenbCTBa, npuuMTarowmecs
BaHky co ctopoHbl KomnaHum no leHepanbHoMy KpeauTHOMy CornalieHuo Ha HacTosLWuMn
MOMeHT unu B byayuwem, 6yab To pakTnyeckne obs3atenbCTBa UKW YCNOBHbIE, BMECTe CO BCEMMU
Ha4YNCNEHHbIMM Ha HMX npoueHTaMn (Kak A0, TaKk W nocne cyaebHoro peweHus), U BCEMMU
ybbITKaMM, PpasyMHbIMM W [OKYMEHTAsIbHO MNOATBEPXAEHHbIMWU, B ONpeAesieHHbI MOMEHT
NnoHeceHHbIMM BbaHKOM B CBS3M C HMMW, B cymMme go 50.000.000 (naTvaecstm MUANIMOHOB)
ponnapos CLUA v wTtpadHbIX MPOULEHTOB 3a UCTeKWwMue AHWM OT AaTbl NEPBOro MUCbMEHHOro
TpeboBaHusa baHka 0o aatbl pakTnyeckon Bbimiatel OAO «MMK>»;

- OAO «MMK» o06s53yeTca BO3MeCTUTb BbaHKy no nepBOMy MNMCbMEHHOMY TpeboBaHMIO
BaHka ntobbie pacxoabl, ybbITKM MAM (PUHAHCOBYIO OTBETCTBEHHOCTb, MOHECEHHble BbaHkoM,
ecnu ntoboe MNapaHTMpoBaHHOe 06A3aTenbCTBO BPEMS OT BPEMEHM SBASETCA WIW CTaHOBMUTCSA
JIMLLEHHbIM WUCKOBOM CWUION, HEAENCTBUTENbHbIM UM He3aKoHHbIM. CyMMa pacxonoB, y6bITKOB
WKW OTBETCTBEHHOCTU 3KBMBAsieHTa CyMMe, KOTOpYl B MPOTUBHOM crydae uMen 6bl npasBo
nonyunTtb baHk;

- Ecnn  kakon-nnbo nnatex, ocywecTBneHHbln KoMnaHuen, wnm  Kakoe-nnbo
ocsoboxaeHne oT obazaTtenbLcTB, npeacTtasneHHoe baHkoMm (6yab TO B OTHOLWEHWUU
obs3aTtenbcte KoMnaHum mam B MHOM OTHOLUEHMW) OTMEHSIeTCA WN CHUXAETCS B pesynbTaTe
HenIaTeXecnoCobHOCTM WM aHanornyHoro cobbitnsa: 1) duHaHcoBas oTBeTcTBeEHHOCTb OAO
«MMK>» npoponxaetcs, kKak ecnm 6bl nnatex, ocsoboxaeHne oT obA3aTenbLCTB, OTMEHa Wau
CHWXXEeHWe He npousownun; un 2) baHK UMeeT npasBo Ha BO3BpalleHue cebe CyMMbl niaTexa oT
OAO «MMK», kak ecnu 6bl nnatex, ocBoboxaeHMe oT 06593aTeNnbCTB, OTMEHA HE MPOU30LSIN;

- CpoK AeNCTBUS rapaHTMn HeorpaHu4YeHHbln n 6yaeT AeNcTBoBaTb A0 KOHEYHON BbiNaThl
KoMnaHuen cymm, npuuutarowmxcs no NeHepanbHomy KpegntHomy CornalueHuto.

OcHoBHble ycnoBusi FleHepanbHoro KpeautHoro CornaweHue:

- Cymma kpeauTta go 45 000 000 gonnapos CLUA;

- MpoueHTHaa cTaBKka: yCTaHaB/AMBAETCS NO KaXAOMy TpaHLWy MHAMBUAYANbHO UCXOA4S U3
PbIHOYHbIX YCNOBUIA;

- Cpok kpeguta/TpaHwa: 1 rog n 1 Hepens.

LeHa caenku - o 50 000 000 gonnapos CLUA nntocC wrpadHble NPpOLEHTbl 3a UCTeKLWne
OHW OT AaTbl NEpBOro NMUCbMeHHOro TpeboBaHus baHka Ao AaTbl pakTuyeckon BbinaaTel OAO
«MMK» n ntobble pacxoabl, y6bITkKM U dunHaAHCOBas OTBETCTBEHHOCTb, MOHECeHHble baHkoM, B
cnyyae ecnn lapaHTupoBaHHoe o06s3aTenbCTBO 6yAeT NMWEHO MCKOBOW CUMbl, MNPU3HAHO
HeAENCTBUTENbHbLIM UM HE3AKOHHbIM.

BoirogonpuobpeTtatenem B caenke asnserca MMK METALURJI SANAYI TICARET VE LIMAN
ISLETMECILIGI ANONIM SIRKETI.

3auMHTepecoBaHHbIMM M (MAKM) 3aBUCUMbIMM B coBeplieHMM O6WecTBOM CcAenku
npusHatotca 4 uyneHa CoBeTta aumpektopoB OAO "MMK": PawHwukoB B.®., PawHumkoa O.B.,
Cynumos C.A., Wunnges I.B.

OpraH, npuHasWwMin peweHne o6 ongobpeHnn caenkun: Coset anpektopos OAO "MMK".

20 06 oaobpeHnn caenkwm, B COBEepLIEeHUM KOTOpoO# nmeercs
3auHTEepecoBaHHOCTb, MO 3aKJ/IIOYEHUIO [AOMNOJIHUTENIbHOro corjaweHuma N2 3 k
CornaweHuto N2 221144 mexxay OAO «MMK» n 000 «MMK-INMPABO».

CyliecTBeHHble yCoBuUS:

- B nepmnoa aencrteus CornaweHns CTopoHbl BNpaBe NpeaocTaBnsTb APYyr ApPyry No AOroBopy
3arma (Mpunoxkenmne N2 1, N2 2, N° 2/1, N2 2/2) cBobogHbie geHexHble cpeactea. Cpok u
yCnoBusl NpeaocTaBneHns 3amma cornacosbiBatoTcsd CTopoHaMu npu nognucaHmm 4OroBopoB
3arma.

Boirogonpunobpetatenn B caenke OTCYTCTBYHOT.
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3anHTepecoBaHHbiMU U (MIM) 3aBUCMMbIMM B coBeplieHMn O6LecTBOM caesiku
npusHaroTca 3 yaeHa CoBerta gaumpexktopos OAO "MMK": PawHukos B.®., CynaumoB C.A.,
Wwvnses N.B.

OpraH, npuHsaBwuin peweHne 06 ogobpennn caenkun: Coset gnpektopos OAO "MMK".

21 06 onobpeHnn caenkwm, B coBeplUeHUumn KOTOpoO#M nmeercs
3aMHTEepeCcOBaHHOCTb, MO 3aKJ/IUeHU0 porosopa 3aima (MpunoxeHune N2 2/2 k
Cornawenmio N2 221144) mexxay OAO «MMK>» n 000 «MMK-INMPABO».

CylecTBeHHble YyCN0BUSA:

- NpeaMeT caenku — nepegada B CO6CTBEHHOCTb 3aeMLUNKY AEHEXHbIX CPeacTB C
0653aHHOCTbIO 3aeMLMKa BO3BPaTUTb 3aMMOAaBLYy MOJIYYEHHYO CyMMa 3aMMa U ynaaTuTb Ha
Hee MpoLueHTbl;

- CPOK AEeNCTBUS AOroBopa — 3aeM npenocraBnsercs cpokom no 31.10.2016 r.;

- npoueHTHas ctaBka: 0,1% (HoNb Uenbix ogHa AecsTasi) NMPOLEHTOB ro40BbIX

- LleHa caenku: cymMMa 3aiiMa He npesbiwaeTt 30 000 000,00 (TpmauaTb MUIIMOHOB
pybnen 00 koneek).

Boirogonpuobperatenu B caefnke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMU N (UNKN) 3aBUCMMbIMU B coBeplueHnn O6LecTBOM caenku
npusHatotca 3 uneHa Coseta ampektopos OAO "MMK": PawHukos B.®., Cynumos C.A., WUunsaes
n.B.

OpraH, npuHaBwuin peweHne 06 ogobpennn caenkun: Coset anpektopos OAO "MMK".

22 06 opobpeHuu caenku, B COBEPLUEHMU KOTOPOi MMeeTCs 3auHTepecoBaHHOCTb,
no 3aKJ/IlDYEeHUI0 corjnaweHusa o6 OTKpbITUM akkpeaunTMBOB 6e3 npepocraBsieHUs
AeHeXHoro nokpbiTusa N2 225564 mexay OAO «MMK>» un MNAO BaHk «®K OTKpbITUE».

CyliecTBeHHble YyCN0oBUS:

- MpeaMeT CorfaweHnsa — OTKpbITUE akKpeaAnTMBOB B BastoTe PO;

- CyMMa nuMuTa - obLlas cymMMa BCeX aKKpeaUTUBOB, CPOK AENCTBUA KOTOPbIX HE UCTEK,
He gosmxkHa npesbiwaTtb 500 000 000,00 (naTbcoT MuAnmMoHoB) pybnen;

- ueneBoe Ha3HauyeHume - ocyuwecteBneHne OAO «MMK» pacuyeToB C KOHTpareHTamMu B
aKKpeanTuBHOM dopmMme;

- 6aHK uMeeT npaBo 6e3akuenTHOro crnucaHusa (6e3 AoOMONHWUTENBbHOro pacnopsXeHus
KNIeHTa) AEHEeXHbIX CpeACTB CO CYETOB KAueHTa, OTKpbITbiX B AO BaHk «®K OTKpbITME» B
CUYeT noraweHuns Nobbix 0693aTenbCTB KAMEHTA MO COrNalleHuto;

- CpOK gencreusa numuta — go 01 asrycra 2017 r.;

-onpefennTb LeHy CAeNKn B pasMmepe:

- CYMMbl OCHOBHOIO A0/ra, onpeaensiowencs B COOTBETCTBUM C YCIOBUAMWN AENACTBYOLNX
aKKpeanTuBOB, HO He npesbiwatower 500 000 000,00 (MATbCOT MUAMOHOB) pybnein No cymMme
BCEX aKKpeAUTUBOB, CPOK KOTOPbIX HE UCTEK;

- KoMUccum 6aHKa 3a OTKPbITUE U BEAEHME KaXAoro akkpeautmBa B pa3mepe 1.20%
roAoBbIX OT CyMMbl TeKkyLlwmnx obsasatenbctsB OAO «MMK» no akkpeautusy (ANS akKpeauTUBOB C
cymmor obsgsatenbctB cBbiwe 10 MAaH. pyb6nein); 1.50% roaoBbiX OT CYMMbl TeKyLUX
obasatenbcte OAO «MMK» no akkpeanTuey (4ANa aKKpeaAUTUBOB C CYMMOW 0653aTeNbCTB MeHee
10 MnH. pybnen);

- npounx komuccmin MAO bBaHka <«®K OTKpbITME» N0 AOKYMEHTapHbiM onepauusam
onnaumsatrowmnxcsa B coorsetctsum ¢ Tapudamm MNMAO BaHk «OK OTKpbITUE», AENCTBYIOLWMMU HA
MOMEHT NpefoCTaB/IeHNS YCNyr.

Bbirogonpuobpetatenu B caenke OTCYTCTBYIOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMM W (MNAM) 3aBUCMMbIMM B coBepuweHnn O6wecTBOM caenku
npusHatotTca 4 uneHa CoBeTta aupektopoB OAO "MMK": AraHbersH P.A., PawHunkos B.O.,
Cynumos C.A., Wunnges I.B.

OpraH, npuHasWwMn peweHne 06 onobpeHnn caenkn: Coset anpektopos OAO "MMK".
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23 06 opobpeHnn caenku, B COBEpLUEHUM KOTOPO MMeeTCAa 3auHTEpPeCcOBaAaHHOCTD,
no 3akKJIlDYEeHUI0 aoroBopa 6aHkoBckoOro cuera N2 225514 mexxgy OAO «MMK>» un NAO
BbaHk «®K OTKpbiTHE>.

CyliecTBeHHble yC/10BuUSA:

- NpeaMeT AoroBopa — OTKpbITUE cyeTa B BastoTe PO, pacyeTHO-KaccoBoe 06CnyXuBaHue;

- K/IMEHT npeaocTaBnsieT 6aHKy npaBo 6e3aKLENTHOr0 CMNUCAHUA [AEHEeXHbIX CpPeAcTB,
npuunTaoWwmxca 6aHky;

- CpOK [EWCTBUSA — OOroBOp BCTYMaeT B CWYy C MOMEHTA 3aK/IlOYeHMs U OelcTByeT B
TeyeHWe OAHOro roAa; CPoK AEWCTBMS aBTOMATMUYECKM NMPpOoASEeBaeTCs Ha KaXkAbli NocieayoLwmit
rofl, ecnn He nosaHee, 4yeMm 3a 10 KaneHAapHbIX AHEN HM OAHA U3 CTOPOH He 3asiBUT O CBOEM
HaMepeHUn ero pacToprHyTb;

- onpeaenuTb UEHYy CAeNKW B pa3Mepe KOMUCCMOHHOrO BO3HarpaxaeHuss 6aHka B
cooTBeTCcTBMU C TapudamMu, 4eNCTBYOLWNMU HA MOMEHT NPEAOCTaBNEHUS YCNYT.

BbirononpuobpertaTtenn B caenke oTCYTCTBYIOT.

3auMHTepecoBaHHbIMM M (MAKM) 3aBUCUMbIMM B coBeplieHmn O6WwecTBOM CAesKK
npusHatTca 4 uneHa Coseta pgupektopos OAO "MMK": AraHbersH P.A., PawHukos B.O.,
Cynnmos C.A., Wunnges I1.B.

OpraH, npuHaBwuin peweHne 06 ogobpennn caenkun: Coset anpektopos OAO "MMK".

FopoBoe o6uiee cobpaHue akumoHepos OAO «MMK»:

06 ono6peHnn cAesnoK, B COBEPLUEHUN KOTOPbIX MMEETCS 3auHTEPECOBaHHOCTb.

1 Opobputb caenky, B COBEpLUEHWM KOTOPOM MMeeTCs 3auHTEepecOBaHHOCTb, O
MpoNoHraunmn gorosopa noctaBkn npoaykumm N2 210435 mexay OAO «MMK» n OAO «MMK-
METU3» Ha cneayowmnx ycnoBuUsax:

- NpeaMeT - nocraBka Metannonpoaykumm OAO «MMK»>;
- LleHa — CcornacoBbiBaeTCsl CTOPOHaMM B OTrpPy304HOWN pa3Hapsake K Aorosopy, nmbo
odopmMnseTcs AONONHUTENbHbBIM COrfalleHNeM K AOroBOpy, NpeaesibHas CyMMa CAESIKN — He
6onee 15 000 MnH. pybnen;
- HAUMEHOBAaHNE U KOJIMYECTBO METaN0NpoaYyKLMN COracoBbiBaeTCs CTOPOHaMU B
OTrpY304HOM pa3Hapsake, Ho He 6onee 600 000 TOHH;
- CPOK AeNCTBMSA — C MOMEeHTa MposIoHraumu Ao cneayrouiero roqosoro obuiero cobpaHus
akumoHepos OAO «MMK»;
- CpoK onsiaTbl — B TeveHue 30 KaneHaapHbIX AHEN C AaTbl BbICTaB/ieHUs CYETA-(paKTypbl
«[locTaBWMKOM>»,

BoirogonpuobpeTtatenu B caefnke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMU N (MNK) 3aBUCMMbIMUK B coBeplleHnn O6LecTBOM caesnkun
npusHatoTcs 4 uneHa Coeta anpektopoB OAO "MMK": baxmeTtbeB B.B., PawHukos B.®.,
PawHunkosa O.B., Wnnsaes I.B.

OpraH, npuHsaswun peweHne 06 ogobpeHnn caenok: rogosoe obuiee cobpaHue akLMOHEPOB
OAO "MMK™".

2 OpobpuTb B3anuMOCBSA3aHHbIe CAENKN, B COBEPLUEHNN KOTOPbIX MMEeTCs
3aMHTEpPEeCOBAHHOCTb, MO 3aK/IIOYEHUIO AOMNOSHUTENBHbIX COrMalleHnit K KOHTpaKTam
noctaeBku metannonpoaykunm OAO «MMK» mexay OAO «MMK» (Mpoaasel) U KoMNaHuemn
«MMK Trading AG» (MMK TpenauHr AlN), Uyr, Weenuapusa (Mokynatens):
JononHutensHoe cornawenmne K KoHtpakty N? E200091 Ha cneayouimx ycaoBmax:
MpeaMeT — NocTaBka MEeTasIoNpoAyKLUUN;

Cpok noctasku — no 30.06.2017;

Apyrue cyuwecTBeHHble ycnoBusa onobpeHbl rogosbiM 06WwmM cobpaHmem akumoHepos OAO
«MMK>» 25.05.2012 (npoTtokon N2 33) n octaloTCcs HEM3MEHHDI.

13



Boirogonpuobpertatenu B caefnke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

JononHutenbHoe cornawenmne K KoHtpakty N2 E200092 Ha cneaylowunx yCI0BUAX:

MpeaMeT — NocTaBka METaNNoNPoOAYKLUMN;

Cpok noctaBku — no 30.06.2017;

[pyrue cywecTBeHHble ycnoBusa oaobpeHbl rogosbiM 0b6wmm cobpaHnem akumnoHepos OAO

«MMK>» 25.05.2012 (npoTtokon N? 33) n ocTatoTCsd HEU3MEHHDI.

Boirogonpuobpertatenu B caenke oTCyTCTBYHOT.

3anHTepecoBaHHbIMK N (MNK) 3aBUCMMbIMUK B coBeplueHnn O6ecTBoM caenku

npusHatotca 3 uneHa CoseTa gmpektopos OAO "MMK": baxmeTbeB B.B., PawHukos B.®.,
Wwnngaes I1.B.

OpraH, npuHsaBwun peweHne 06 ogobpeHnn caenok: rogosoe obuiee cobpaHue akLMOHEPOB

OAO "MMK™".
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OTtuer 0 co6nogeHnn OAO «MMK>» npuHUMnoB u pekomeHaauun Kogekca

KOpPpnopaTnBHOIO ynpaBJ/ieHuns

MPUHLMNbI KOPMOPATUBHOIO YNpaB/ieHUS

CobnioaeHne
MPUHLMMOB
O6buwecTBOM
(Oa/Oa, Ho
He B NOJIHOM
obbeme/Her)

MossicHeHuns

I. MpaBa aKUMOHEPOB U PABEHCTBO YCJIOBMIA ANl aKLULMOHEPOB NPU OCYLLECTBJIEHUMU
MMM CBOMX NpaB

1.1. O6uwecTtBo A0/MKHO obecneynBaTb

ObecneunBaeTcs. OCHOBHbIM
MPUHLMXNOM KOpnopaTUBHOM
nonntmkn OAO «MMK» gBndeTtcsa

cobpaHun K1 MaTepuanbl K  HeMmy,
3ajaBaTb  BOMPOCbl  WUCMOJIHUTESbHbIM
opraHaM W uneHaMm coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB
obuwecTtBa, obWwaTbCcsa Apyr C ApPYroMm.

paBHOE W CrpaBeanBOe OTHOLUEHMe KO 3almnTa npaB  aKUMOHEpPOB U
BCEM aKUMOHepaM Mpu peanusaumu uMm Oa WHBECTOPOB, a TaKXe npuHUUN
npaea Ha y4yactme B YynpaBneHUu paBHOro OTHOLWEHUA KO BCeM
obiecTBoM. aKUMOHepaMm, BK/OYas MEeSIKUX W
WHOCTPaHHbIX. (Kopekc
KOpPNopaTUBHOIoO ynpaBJfieHns)
1.1.1. Ob6uwecTBy peKkoMeHayeTcs
co3gaTtb ANs aKuMOHEpPOB MaKCUManbHO
A A H P Ob6ecneunsaeTcs. Mopsaok
6naronpuaTHble BO3MOXHOCTHU ans
CO3bIBaQ, NoAroTOBKM n
yyactus B obwem cobpaHum, ycnoBus
2 nposeaeHus obuwero cobpaHus
Ans BblpaboTkn 060CHOBaHHOM MO3UUNMK
Oa pernaMeHTMpoBaH BHYTPEHHUM
no BOMpoCaM MOBEeCTKM JAHsA obwero
aokymeHtoM  (MonoxeHnem 06
cobpaHus, KoopAVHauum CBOMX .
- o OCA), koTopbIn yTBEpPXAEH 06WwmM
OEeNCTBMI, a TakKXe  BO3MOXHOCTb
cobpaHueM akLMOHEPOB.
BbICKa3aTb cBoe MHEeHue no
paccMaTpUBaeMbIM BOMPOCaM.
Ob6ecneunBaeTcs. Mopsigok
coobueHnsa o npoBeaeHun obuiero
1.1.2. Mopsgok coobueHus 0 cobpaHus 7] npenocTaB/eHuns
nposegeHun  obwero  cobpaHus n MaTepuanos K obuwemy cobpaHuio
npenocTtaBneHns Matepuanos K obuiemy fa pernaMeHTMpoBaH YcTaBoM n
cobpaHuio [O/XEeH AdaBaTb akKuMoHepam MonoxeHnem 06 OCA.
BO3MOXHOCTb  Haanexawmm  obpa3om CoobuweHune o nposeseHnn obLiero
NOArOTOBUTBLCS K Y4aCTMIO B HEM. cobpaHMsa  akUMOHEepOoB  AOJIKHO
6bITb CAenaHo He no3gHee 4YeM 3a
30 AHeln A0 AaTbl ero npoBeaeHus.
Ob6ecneunBaeTtcs. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
1.1.3. B xoae noAroToBKU U npoBeaeHuns ycrasom, Tlonoxenuem o Cosere
e P AMPEKTOpOB 0AO "MMK",
obuwero cobpaHuna akuMOHEepbl AO/KHbI
MonoxeHnem 06 obwem cobpaHum
UMETb BO3MOXHOCTb 6ecnpensTCTBEHHO 1
aKLMOHepoB, MonoxeHneM 0
CBOEBpPEMEHHO nony4vaTtb MHPOpPMaUMIo O
Oa KopnopatnsHoM cekpetape OAO

IIMMK".

NHdopmauns (maTepuansl),
noanexatias npeaocTaBNeHUIO
nvuaM,  MMewWwMM  npaBo  Ha
yyactve B obuwem cobpaHum
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akumoHepoB, B TeyeHume 30 pgHen
[0 npoBeaeHns obulero cobpaHus
aKLMOHepoB OOJIKHA 6bITb
AOCTYyMHa nuaMm, MMewLWwmMM nNpaso
Ha y4dacTve B o06wWweM cobpaHuu
aKLMOHEpPOB.

1.1.4. Peanusauma npaBa akKuuoHepa
TpeboBaTb co3blBa o06wero cobpaHus,

Ob6ecneunBaeTtcsa. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
YctaBoM, [MonoxeHnem 06 obuwem
cobpaHMn akLMOHEPOB.

B cooTtBeTtcTBMM C NyHKTamMnl0.10
n 10.11 YcraBa npeanoxeHue o
BHECEHMN BOMPOCOB B MOBECTKY
AHS rogoBoro obuwero cobpaHus

BblABMIaTb KaHAMAATOB B  OpraHbl aKUMOHEPOB UM O BbIABUMXEHUN
obwectea M BHOCUTb MpensioXeHus B Da kaHgmpatos B CoBeT AUPEKTOPOB
noBectky AHa obuwero cobpaHuss He ObuwecTBa, PeBU3NOHHYIO
OOJIXKHA ObITb CompsiXXeHa C kommccmio Obuwectsa, a Takxke
HeonpaBAaHHbIMU CNOXHOCTSAMM. KaHaugaTta Ha OOKHOCTb
€ANHONIMYHOIO  UCMOSTHUTENIbHOIo
opraHa [AOJ/IXKHbl MOCTYNUTb B
O6buwecTBO He MoO3gHEe 4YeM yepes
40 gHen nocne OKOHYaHwus
dnHaHcoBOro roaa.
Ob6ecneunBaeTtca. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
YctaBoM, [MonoxeHnem o6 obuwem
cobpaHMn akLMOHEPOB.
bionneteHn  ans rosi0coBaHus
HanpaeBsATCS aKumoHepam
3aKa3HbIMM MUCbMaMW He Mo3gHee
N yem 3a 20 HeRn o] aTbl
1.1.5. Kaxablh akunMoHep AO0MXKEH UMeTb A A A
nposeaeHus obuwero cobpaHus
BO3MOXHOCTb 6ecnpensaTCTBEHHO
Oa aKUMOHepoB. AKLMOHEpbI-
peanuM3oBaTb MNpaBO rojoca CaMbIM N
Bnagenbubl 0B6bIKHOBEHHbIX aKUWMN
NPOCTbIM U YAO6HbIM A1 HEro cnocobom.
MOryT Yy4yacTBoBaTb B  o0bLieMm
cobpaHuM aKUMOHEpPOB C MpaBOM
rofoca no BCEM BOMpocaM ero
KOMMeTeHUuun JNINYHO, yepes
CBOEro npeacraBuTens UM NyTem
HanpaeneHns  6lonnereHen  no
noure.
Ob6ecneunBaeTtca. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
1.1.6. YCTaHOB/EHHbIN obuecTtBoM cTatben 5 YcrtaBa, NonoxeHnem ob
nopsaok BegeHuss obwero cobpaHus obwem cobpaHunm  aKuUMOHEpPOB,
LOJIKeH obecneunsatb paBHYIO MonoxeHnem o KopnopaTuBHOM
BO3MOXHOCTb BCEM nnuawm, [a cekpetape OAO "MMK", rae
NMPUCYTCTBYOLWNM Ha cobpaHuu, 3aKkpenseHa BO3MOXHOCTb
BbiCKa3zaTb CBOE MHeHWe W 3ajdaTb aKLUMOHEepOB BbiCKa3blBaTb CBOE
MHTEpPECYOLLNE NX BOMPOCHI. MHEHMEe W 3ajaBaTb BOMpPOCbl B
NMMCbMEHHOM BUAE.
1.2. AKuMnoHepaMm OJIKHa 6bITb
H P A Ob6ecneunsaeTcs. n.4.1.
npegocraB/ieHa paBHas M crnpaseanmsas N
[a MonoxeHus 0 aAvBuaeHaHou
BO3MOXHOCTb Yy4dacTBOBaTb B MNpubbLIIK
NonmnTUKe.

obuecTBa nocpeacTsoM noay4yeHus
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ANBNAEHOOB.

1.2.1. Ob6uwecTBO A0MKHO pa3paboTaTb U

O6ecneumaercs. [peaycMoTpeHo

BHEAPUTb MpPO3payHbii M MOHSATHbIN
Oa Pazpenom 5 MonoxeHus o]
MexXaHWU3M onpeaeneHus pasmepa N
AVBUAEHAHONM nonuTuke.
OVBUAEHAOB U UX BbinaaThl.
1.2.2. O6uwectBy He pekoMeHayeTcs
npuHUMaTb peweHune o} BbInnaTe
OVBMAEHAOB, e€eC/nuM  Takoe pelleHue,
¢dopManbHO He Hapylwasl OrpaHuW4YeHui, ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeEHO
YCTaHOBJ/1E€HHbIX 3aKOHO4ATENbLCTBOM, [a Pazpenamn 5 u 7 TlonoxeHns o
ABNsAeTCs 3KOHOMMYECKMU AVBUAEHAHONM nonuTuke.
He06OCHOBaHHbLIM N MOXEeT MpuUBECTU K
(OpPMMPOBAHMIO JIOXHbLIX NpeacTaB/IEHUN
0 pesaTenbHOCTU obuiecTBa.
Ob6ecneunBaeTcs. Mpw
coBepLleHnm KOpropaTuBHbIX
1.2.3. O6wecTtBo He AO/MKHO AonyckaTb < P N pnop
DEeNnCcTBUn obecneuynBaeTtcs
YXYALEeHNSs AMBUAEHAHbIX npas Oa
COXpaHeHune AMBUAEHAHbIX MNpaB u
CYLLECTBYOLWMX aKLUMOHEPOB. N
ponen CyLWeCTBYOLWNX
aKLMOHEpPOB.
1.2.4. O6bwecTtBO AO/MKHO CTPEMUTLCS K Ob6ecneunBaeTtca. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
NCKJTIOYEH MO NCNONb30BaHUS AHTUKOPPYMNUMOHHOM  MOJSINTUKOM
aKuuoHepamu MHbIX cnocobos Na OAO «MMK», KopekcoM paenosow
nonydyenma npuboiin (Aoxoma) 3a cuyet 3Tukn OAO «MMK» wn Kopekcom
obuwectea, MOMMMO AMBUAEHAOB U KopnopaTuBHoro ynpasnenuns OAO
NNKBUAALUMNOHHON CTOMMOCTMW. «MMK>»,
1.3. Cucrema 7 npakTukKa
KOpPNopaTMBHOIO YyMpaBfieHUsS  AOJIXKHbI
obecneuynBaTb paBEHCTBO YC/O0BMI AN
P Y A o ObecneunBaeTtcs. Ctatbu 1,2
BCEX aKLUMOHepoOB - BNajenbLeB aKuui
. Ja Koaekca KOpropaTuUBHOIo
OAHOM  KaTeropuu (Tuna), BKAKYas
yrpasseHund, ctatba 5 YcraBa.
MUHOPUTApPHbIX (MENKMUX) akUMOHEPOB WU
MHOCTPaHHbLIX aKUMOHEepoB, W pasBHoe
OTHOLLUEHWE K HUM CO CTOpPOHbI obLiecTBa.
1.3.1. O6wectBo A0O/MKHO  co34aThb
yC/l0BMS ANa CnpaBeasiMBOro OTHOLIEHUS
K KaXaoMy aKuuoHe CO CTOpOHbI
AOMY H Py P Ob6ecneunsaeTtcsa. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
opraHos ynpasrieHuns 7 o
KOHTpONMpYoWnx nuy obuwecrsa, B TOM cratbent 5 Ycrasa, KoAekcom
! Oa KopnopaTuBHoro ynpasneHna OAO
yncne obecneunBawLwme N
HeaoNyCTUMOCTb  370ynoTpebneHun co «MMK>, AHTAKOPPYMLNOHHON
Y Y P nonntnkon OAO «MMK»,
CTOPOHbl  KPYMHbIX  aKLUMOHEepoB Mo
OTHOLLEHUIO K MUHOPUTAPHbIM
aKumoHepam.
1.3.2. O6buwectBy He cnepyet
npeanpuHUMaTb encTeus KoTopble
PeAnp A ! P B npakTuke KOpropaTuUBHOIo
npuUBOAST WMAM  MOryT MpuBecTM K Da
ynpas/ieHuns
WCKYCCTBEHHOMY nepepacnpeneneHuto

KOpnopaTUBHOIO KOHTPO1A.
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1.4. AKuUMOHepaM OOJIKHbI 6bITb
obecneyeHbl HagexHble N 3PPEKTUBHbIE
cnocobbl yyeTa nMpaB Ha akKuuu, a Takxe
BO3MOXHOCTb csoboaHoOro "
HeobpeMeHUTeNnbHOro oTUYyXXAeHus
npuHaanexawmx MM akummn.

[a

Ob6ecneunBaeTtcs. Mo pesynbratam
npoBeAeHHOro KOHKypca BeAeHune
peecTtpa BfagenbLeB  MMEHHbIX
3MMUCCUOHHbLIX LeHHbIX 6ymar OAO
«MMK>» ocyLiecTenseT AO
«CTATYC».

Akunn OAO «MMK» BK/HOYEHbI B
MepBbi YPOBEHb CMMCKa LEHHbIX
bymar, AOMNyLIEHHbIX K TOpraM Ha
3A0 <«®b MMBbBb», a Takxe
BK/IIOYEHbl B  CMMCOK  LEHHbIX
bymar, AOMNyLIEeHHbIX K TOopraM Ha
OAO "CaHkT-lMeTepbyprckas
6upxa" 6e3 BKJTIOYEHUS B
KOTUpoBanbHble cnnckn. AP OAO
«MMK>» obpallatoTcss Ha OCHOBHOW
naowaake JIoHAOHCKOM (pOHAOBOWA
6MpxM.

II. CoBeT AaMpeKTopoB obwecTBa

2.1. CoBeT AWPEKTOPOB OCyLecTBaseT
cTpaTermyeckoe ynpasJsieHune
obLiecTtsom, onpenenser  OCHOBHble
NPUHUMNbI U NOAXOAbl K OpraHusauumu B
obLiecTBe cuCTeMbl ynpaBneHUs puckamm
N BHYTPEHHEero KOHTPOJIsl, KOHTPOnpyeT
0esATeNbHOCTb UCMOJSIHUTENbHBIX OpPraHoB
obuwectBa, a TakxXe peanumsyeT MUHble
KtouYeBble PyHKLUN.

Hda

Ob6ecneunsaeTcs. CraTbs 3
Kopekca KOprnopaTUBHOIO
ynpasneHus, ctates 11 YcraBa

2.1.1. CoBeT AOWpPEKTOpPOB  AOJIXKEH
oTBeyaTb 3a MPUHATME  pEeLUeHU,
CBSA3aHHbIX C HasHaYeHUEM 7
ocBob6OXAEHUEM oT 3aHMMaeMbIX
OO/HKHOCTEN MCMONMHUTENbHbLIX OpraHoB,
B TOM 4UuC/ie B CBSI3W C HeHaAasexawum
WUCMNOJIHEHUEM MMU CBOUX 0O6A3aHHOCTEN.
CoBeT AMPEKTOPOB  TakXe  AOJIKEH
OCYLLECTBASATb KOHTPOJIb 3@ TEM, 4YTOObI
WUCNONHUTENbHbIE  opraHbl  obulecTBa
[encTBoBanm B COOTBETCTBUM c
YTBEPXAEHHbIMU CTpaTErMen pasBUTUS U
OCHOBHbIMU HanpaB/IeHNUSAMN
nesTenbHOCTN oblecTBa.

da

Ob6ecneunsaeTtcsa. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
n/n.11.13.1-11.13.2,
n/n.11.13.22, n/n. 11.13.23,
n/n.11.13.25, 11.13.40 YcrtaBa B
koMmneTeHuun CoBeTa AUMPEKTOPOB
OAO «MMK».

2.1.2. CoBeT [OWPEKTOpPOB  AOJ/KEH
YCTaHOBUTb OCHOBHbIE OPWUEHTUPbI
DeATeNbHOCTHU obuwecTBa Ha
[OJITOCPOYHYIO MEPCNEKTUBY, OLUEHUTb U
yTBEPAUTDL KntouyeBble rnokasartenu
[eATEeNbHOCTM N OCHOBHble 6U3HecC-uUenu
obuiecTBa, OUEHUTb 7] onobpuTb
cTpaTeruvio 7 6usHec-nnaH.bI rno
OCHOBHbIM BUAAM nesaTenbHOCTHU

[a

Ob6ecneunsaeTtcs. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
nyHkToMm 11.13 YcTaBa.
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obLiecTra.

21.3 CoBET  AMPEKTOPOB  AOMKEH ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeHO
o n/n.11.13.34-11.13.37 YcTaBa,
onpeaenqTb MNPUHUMNBI W NOAXOAbl K N
Monutnkon B obnactun
opraHusaunm CUCTEMBI ynpaBneHums Oa
BHYTPEHHEro KOHTpON4,
pyUCKaMm U BHYTPEHHEero KOHTpPoOsa B o
Monutnkomn B obnactun
obuecTBe.
BHYTpEHHero ayauTta.
2.1.4. CoBeT [OWPEKTOpPOB  AOJIKEH O6ecneunBaeTtcsa. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
onpegenatb nonuMtuky obwecrtsa no MonoxeHnem o nopsake BbiNJaThl
BO3HarpaxxaeHumio 1 (Uamn) BO3MELEHUIO BO3Harpa>xaeHmini M KoMneHcauum
pacxonoB (KOMMeHcaumii) 4neHoB coBeTa [a pacxonos yneHam CoBeTa
AVNPEKTOPOB, WCMONHUTENbHbIX OpPraHoB ampektopos OAO «MMK», a Takxe
7] MHbIX K104 EeBbIX pyKOBOASALLMNX n/n.11.13.2 7] n/n,11.13.13
paboTHMKOB obuiecTBa. YcraBa.
2.1.5. CoBeT ANPEKTOPOB AO/KEH UrpaTb O6ecneunBaeTtca. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
KMIOYEBYIO poOSib B NpeaynpexneHuu, MonoxeHnem o] nopsake
BbISIBNIEHUN " yperynmpoBaHum fa YperynmpoBaHms KOpPNOpaTUBHbIX
BHYTPEHHUX KOH(NNKTOB Mexay kKoHpnmktoe B OAO "MMK",
opraHamm obuwiecTsa, aKuuoHepamu MonoxeHnem 06 KHcanMgepckomn
obuwecTtsa n paboTHnkamn obLecrsa. nHdopmaunm OAO "MMK"
2.1.6. CoBeT ANPEKTOPOB AO/KEH UrpaTb
KJlO4EeBYHO ponb B obecneveHnu
O6ecneunBaeTtca. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
Npo3pavyHoOCTU obliecTsa,
YcTaBsoMm, MonoxeHnem 06
CBOEBPEMEHHOCTM M MOJIHOTbl PacKpbITUS Oa o
MHpopMaunoHHon nonuntnke OAO
obuwecTBoM MHdopmMauun, "MMK"
HEeO6peEMEHNTENBHOIO aocrtyna |
aKumMoHepoB K AOKyMeHTaM obuiecTsa.
ObecneunBaetcd. [peaycMOTpeHO
2.1.7. CoBeT [OWPEKTOpPOB  AOJIXKEH n/n.11.13.2 YcraBa, a Takxe
OCYLLEeCTBAATb KOHTPOJ/ib 3@ MPaKTUKOM «[porpammoi rno
KOpnopaTUBHOIO ynpasseHuns B fa COBEpLUIEHCTBOBAHMUIO
obwectse M urpaTb K/IO4YEBYIO poOSb B KoprnopaTtmeHOro ynpasnenms OAO
CYLLEeCTBEHHbIX KOpMNoOpaTUBHbIX "MMK" o 2017 roga»,
cobbITnAX obuecTsa. YTBEPXAEHHOMN CoBeToM
OVPEKTOPOB.
ObecneunBaeTcs. CraTbs 3
2.2. CoBeT pgupeKkTopoB JosmxeH 6biTb
[a Kopekca KOpnopaTUBHOIO
nogoTyeTeH akumMoHepam obuiecTtaa.
ynpaBneHus, ctates 11 Ycrasa
ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeHO
MonoxxeHuem o] nopsake
noarotosku rogosoro otdyeta OAO
2.2.1. WHdopmaums o paboTte coseTa " A " A
MMK". NHdopMaums 7
OVPEKTOpPOB [OJ/KHA pacKpbiBaTbCA WU Da
packpblBaeTcs B ceTu MIHTepHET no
NpeaocTaBNsaATbCS aKLuMOHepaM.
aapecy
http://mmk.ru/for_investor/
financial_calendar/
Ob6ecneunsaeTtcs. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
2.2.2. MNpepcenatenb coOBeTa AMPEKTOPOB peay P
AOo/MmKeH 6blITb AoCTyneH Ans obweHusa c Oa Monoxernem o KopnopatnsHom
Y cekpeTtape OAO "MMK",
akumoHepamm obuiecTtsa.
MonoxxeHnem 0 nopsagke

19



http://mmk.ru/for_investor/

YPErynmpoBaH1si KOpPMNoOpaTUBHbIX
KoHdnmkToB B OAO "MMK".

2.3. Coset ANPEeKTOpOB [OJIKEH
ABNIATECA 3P DEKTUBHBIM v Ob6ecneunBaeTcs. CraTb4 3
npodeccmoHanbHbIM opraHom
yrnpassieHuns obuecTsa, CNOCO6HbIM Koaexca KOPTIOpaTMBHOTo
BbIHOCUTb OOBEKTMBHbIE He3aBUCKMMble Aa ynpasnenus, flonoxenne o Cosere
OVPEKTOPOB. MNMonoxeHuns 0
CYyXAEHNa 1M NpUHUMATb  peLleHus,
komuTeTax CoBeTa AMPEKTOPOB.
oTBevawLlwme nHTepecam obwecresa n ero
aKLVOHEpPOB.
2.3.1. YneHoM coBeTa AWPEKTOPOB
peKoMeHayeTcs n3bupatb myo, Ob6ecneunBaeTtcsa. [lpeaycMoOTpeHO
nmewwee 6es3ynpeyHyo AenoBy U YcraBoM, [onoxeHnem o CoseTe
NVYHYO penyTaunto un  obnagatoulee ONPEKTOPOB OAO "MMK",
3HaHUAMH, HaBbIKaMWu MW ONbITOM, MonoxeHnem O  HEe3aBUCUMbIX
Heob6xoAMMbIMU NS MPUHATUS PELUEHUN, Aa AnpekTopax OAO "MMK",
OTHOCALUMXCA K KOMMETeHUMN CoBeTa MonoxeHnem o komutete CoBeTa
OVpEeKTopoB, W Tpebywwummucsa Aans anpektopos  OAO "MMK" no
3 heKTMBHOrO  OCyLLEeCTBNEHUS ero Kagpam M BO3HarpaxaeHusm.
dyHKUNN.
2.3.2. N36paHue YsieHOB coBseTa
AVNpPEKTOPOB obwecTtBa OOJIHKHO ObecneunBaetcd. [NpeaycMOTpeHO
OCYLLEeCTBAATbCS nocpeacTBoM YcraBoM, lMonoxeHuem 06 obuem
Npo3pavyHoM npoueaypbl, NO3BONSANOLWEN cobpaHumn aKuMoHepos,
aKUMoHepaM rMoayunTb WHQoOpMauu o Oa MonoxeHuem o] CoBeTte
KaHampartax, OOCTaTOUHYIO ans ONPEKTOPOB OAO "MMK",
dopmMmnpoBaHusa npeacrasneHns o6 unx MonoxeHneMm 0  He3aBUCUMbIX
JINYHbIX n npodeccnmoHanbHbIX anpektopax OAO "MMK".
KayecTBax.
ObecneunBaetcd. lpeaycMoTpeHo
2.3.3. CoctaB coBeTa AUPEKTOPOB MonoxeHuem o] CoseTe
AomkeH 6biTb cbanaHCMpOBaHHbLIM, B TOM ONPEKTOPOB OAO "MMK",
ymcne No KeanudukKaumm ero YJeHoB, nx Oa MonoxeHnsMmn o} KoMUTeTax
OonbITY, 3HAHWUAM U AE€/I0BbIM KayecTBaM, Coseta aupektopoB OAO «MMK»,
M NOb30BaTbCHA AOBEPUEM aKLMOHEPOB. MonoxeHneMm 0O  He3aBUCUMbIX
anpektopax OAO "MMK".
2.3.4. Konu4yecTBeHHbIN COCTaB CcoOBeTa
AvpekTopoB obuwectBa [O/KEH p[aBaTb Ob6ecneunsaeTtcsa. [lpeaycMoOTpeHO
BO3MOXHOCTb opraHusoBaTb YctasoM, [lonoxeHnem o CoBeTte
DesaTenbHOCTb coBeTa OVPEKTOpPOB ONPEKTOPOB OAO "MMK",
Hanbonee 3(pdEKTUBHBIM obpa3zom, MonoxeHnsamm 0 KoMUTEeTax
BK/ItOUAss BO3MOXHOCTb (OPMUPOBAHUS a Coseta aupektopos OAO «MMK»,
KOMUTETOB COBETa AMPEKTOPOB, a TakKxXe MonoxeHnem 0  He3aBUCUMbIX
obecneuunBaTtb CYLLEeCTBEHHbIM AnpekTopax OAO "MMK".
MWHOPUTApPHbLIM akuuoHepaM obulecTBa N36paHue YsieHOB CoBerTa
BO3MOXHOCTb M36paHnsa B COCTaB coBeTa AVPEKTOopOoB OCYyLLeCcTBseTCS
OVPEKTOPOB KaHanaaTa, 3a KOTOPOro OHu KYMYNSTUBHbIM FO/1I0COBAHUNEM.
rOSIOCYIOT.
2.4. B coctaB coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB Ob6ecneunBaetca. [lonoxeHne o
OO/HKHO BXOAMUTb AocTaToyHoe Oa Cosete aupektopos. B Cosete

KOTMYECTBO HE3AaBUCUMbIX ANPEKTOPOB.

ONPEKTOpOB 4 HEe3aBUCKMMbIX
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anpekTtopa u3 10.

2.4.1. HeszaBncnMbIM AVWPEKTOPOM
pekoMeHayeTCcA npu3HaBeaTb nvuo,
KOoTOopoe obnapaet OOCTaTOYHbIMU
npocdeccmMoHann3mMom, OnbITOM 7
CaMOCTOATENbHOCTbIO ans

dopMumpoBaHus COBCTBEHHOM MO3MUUK,
CNOoCOBHO BbLIHOCUTb OOBEKTUBHbIE U

ﬂggssljgs:cb':':ble o CY:}?;:HM;;; ObecneunBaetca. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
WCNONHUTENbHbIX OpraHoes obuwecTsa, ycrasom, Tlonoxernem o f:oseT"e
OTAEeNbHbIX FPYNN aKUMOHEPOB WJIN UHbIX Aa ﬁgiixﬁ;:m OOAOHe3aBM2/IMI\:I4I:|);
3aMHTEepecoBaHHbIX CTOpPOH. [lpu 3TOM
cne,u,yeg YYNTbIBaTD, q?o B gfibl‘-lelX Anpektopax OAQ "MMK™
yC10BUAX He MOXeT cunTaTbCH
He3aBMCUMbIM  KaHaupaaT  (n3bpaHHbIN
yreH coBeTa AWPEKTOPOB), KOTOPbIN
CBS3aH C 06LeCTBOM, ero CyLeCTBEHHbIM
aKLMOHEpOM, CYLLECTBEHHbIM
KOHTpareHToM nnu KOHKYPEHTOM
obLiecTBa MaKn cBsi3aH C rocy4apCTBOM.
2.4.2. PekoMeHayeTcA npoBoANTb
OUEHKY COOTBETCTBMSA KaHAWAATOB B
UsieHbl COBeTa AMPEKTOPOB KpUTEPUSM
He3aBMCUMOCTHK, a pTa|<>|<elz3 OCYLLIl,DeCTBF))'IFITb Obecnedusaetcs. [peaycMoTpero
perynsipHbin aHanus COOTBETCTBUSA ycrasom, Tlonoxenunem o ,(,:OBeT,,e
HEe3aBUCUMbIX yneHoB coBeTa Aa ﬁg?iggﬁ;:M oOAOHe3aBM<|;4MI\:I4}:|>2
OVNPEKTOPOB KpUTEPMUSIM HEe3aBMCMMOCTMW.
I'Ipsl :pOBeEeHME Takowm OoLEeHKU AvpekTopax OAQ "MMK™
cogepxaHme p[OMHKHO npeobnagatb Haa
dopmon.
2:4.3. PeKomerayercs, HTOG®! O6ecneunBaetca. M3 10 uneHos
He3aBVICVIMvae AVpeKTopa COCTaBAsANN He fa CoBeTa AnpekTopos OAQ «MMKs,
MeHee oA4HOM TpeTu u3bpaHHOro cocrasa 4 UneHa SBASIOTCS HE3aBUCUMBIMU.
coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB.
ObecneunBaetcs. [NpeaycMOTpeHO
ctatbenn 14 TMonoxeHnsa o CoseTte
2.4.4. HezaBucuMble gmpeKkTopa AOIKHbI ONPEKTOPOB OAO «MMK>»,
urpaTtb KJlOYEBYHO ponb B MonoxeHneM O  He3aBMCUMbIX
npenoTBpaLeHnn BHYTPEHHUX Na AnpeKTopax OAO "MMK",
KOH(pIMKTOB B obLiecTBe M COBeEpLUEHMUN MonoxeHnemM 0O  CyLEeCTBEHHbIX
obuecTsoM CYLLLeCTBEHHbIX KoprnopaTmBHbiX gencteuax OAO
KOprnopaTuBHbIX AEeNCTBUN. "MMK", TonoxeHnem o0 nopsake
YperynmpoBaHns KOpNopaTUBHbIX
koHdnmkToB B OAO "MMK",
2.5. MNpeacepatenb coBeTa OMPEKTOPOB
DOJSIKeH cnocobcTBOBaThL Haubonee O6ecneunsaetcs. Cratbun 7, 9, 12,
a(pheKTUBHOMY OCYLLECTB/IEHMNIO Da 13, Masebl III 1 IV MonoxeHus o
(dYHKUMNA,  BO3JIOXKEHHbIX Ha  COBET Cosete gmnpektopos OAO "MMK"
OVNPEKTOPOB.
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2.5.1. PekomeHayeTcs n3bupatb
npeacenaTtesnieM  coBeta  OUPEKTOPOB
HEe3aBMCUMOrO avpekTtopa nmbo
onpegenatb M3  uyucia  u3bpaHHbIX
HE3aBUCUMbIX  AUMPEKTOPOB  CTapLllero HeT B nnaHe no coBepLlleHCTBOBaHUIO
HEe3aBMCUMOro avpekTtopa, KOpNopaTUBHOIO yrnpas/ieHus.
KoopAuHupyowero paboTty He3aBUCUMBbIX
ONPEKTOpOoB " OCYyLLeCTBNSAOLWEro
B3aMMOAEeNCTBUNE C npeacenaTtenem
coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB.
2.5.2. MNpepcenatenb coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB
AomkeH obecneumBaTb KOHCTPYKTMBHYIO
aTMOCepy  MpOBEAEHUS  3acenaHmil ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeEHO
! ctatbeit 7, nasamu III wmn 1V
csobogHoe obcyxaeHne BOMPOCOB, [a
BKJ/TIOYEHHbIX B NOBECTKY AHSA 3acefaHuns fonoxerns o Cosere ANPeKTOpos
' OAO "MMK"
KOHTPO/MIb 3@ WCMOJSIHEHUEM pELUEHUN,
NPUHATBIX COBETOM ANPEKTOPOB.
2.5.3. MNpeacenatenb coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB
O/KEH MpUHMMaTb HeobxoAuMble Mepbl
A P A P Ob6ecneunsaeTtcs. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
O/l CBOEBPEMEHHOro npeaocTaB/ieHns o
ctateenn 7, Tnasamm III wn 1V
uneHam coBeTa ONPEKTOpOB [a
nHopMaLIK HEOBXO0AMMO nns MonoxeHnsa o CoBeTe AMPEKTOPOB
p 4 = OAO "MMK"
NMPUHATUS  peleHMin No  BOMpocam
NOBECTKU AHS.
2.6. YneHbl coBeTa AUPEKTOPOB AOJIKHbI
AencrteoBatb A0H6pPOCOBECTHO W pasyMHO
B MHTepecax obwecTtBa u ero O6ecneunsaeTtcsa. Cratbn 13, 17 un
aKUMOHEpOB Ha OCHOBEe [AOCTaTO4YHOM Hda 20-21, Tnaea VII [lMonoxeHunsa o
MHPOPMUPOBAHHOCTH, C OOJIKHOM CoeTte gmnpektopos OAO "MMK"
CTeneHblo 3aboTInBOCTH %
OCMOTPUTENBHOCTM!.
2.6.1. PasyMHble u [06pocoBecTHble
OENCTBUSA U/IEHOB COBETa AUPEKTOPOB
npegnonaratT MpuUHATME peLlleHnn ¢
EefOM BCeil MMeZLLI,eVICFI Mzcbopmaumm ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeHO
Y ! ctatbamMu 13, 17, 20, 21
B OTCYTCTBME KOH(IMKTA MHTEpecoB, C [a
4eTOM 2BHOMO OTHOLIEHUS K MonoxeHua o CoBeTe ANPEKTOPOB
4 P OAO "MMK"
akumoHepam obuwectBa, B  paMKax
06bl4HOro npeanpuHMMaTeNbCKOro
pucka.
2.6.2. TlpaBa u 0653aHHOCTU YNEHOB
ObecneunBaetcsa. [peaycMoTpeHo
coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB AO0XHbl BbITb YETKO
ccopMynmpoBaHbl M 3akKperyieHbl BO Aa crateamu 20, 21 Tlonoxenuns o
PMynvip P CoeTte gunpektopos OAO "MMK".
BHYTPEHHUX AOKYMeHTax obuiecTBa.
ObecneunBaetcsa. NHdopmaumna ob
2.6.3. YneHbl coBeTa AWPEKTOPOB (hopmay
3TOM YyKa3blBaeTcs B cornacum
OO/DKHbI UMETb A0CTAaTOYHO BpeMeHu Ans Oa
N kKaHgmpata 6GannotupoBaTbCs B
BbIMOJSIHEHUSA CBOUX 06s13aHHOCTEN.
Coset gnpektopos OAO «MMK>»
2.6.4. Bce uneHbl coBeTa AWPEKTOPOB
OO/MKHbI B paBHOW CTeNeHM WMETb ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeHO
BO3MOXHOCTb AOCTyrna K LOKYMEHTaM W Oa ctatben 5 TMonoxeHunsa o CoseTe

nHbopmaunm obuiecTBa. BHOBb
n3bpaHHbIM 4feHaM CoBeTa AMPEKTOPOB

anpektopos OAO "MMK".
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B MaKCMMaJibHO BO3MOXHbIA KOPOTKUNA
CPOK AoO/MmkHa ObiTb npeaocTaBsieHa
pocrtatoyHasa mHdopmaums o6 obuwecrtse
n o0 paboTe coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB.

2.7. 3acepaHus coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB,
noaAroToBka K HWUM U Yy4yacTMe B HUX

ObecneunBaetcd. [MonoxeHne o
UY/IeHOB COBETa AMPEKTOPOB  AOJIKHbI Oa
CoBeTe ANPEKTOPOB.
obecneunBaTtb 3P EKTUBHYIO
[esaTeNbHOCTb cCOBeTa AUPEKTOPOB.
2.7.1. 3acegaHusi coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB
€KOMeHAyeTCsa npoBoAMTb MO  Mepe
P Ay P A P Ob6ecneunBaeTtcsa. [lpeaycMoOTpeHO
HeobxoAMMOCTM, C Y4YeToM MaclTabos <
LEATENbHOCTH " CTOSILLX nepea Ha ctatbenn 10 MonoxeHus o CoseTte
N anpektopos OAO "MMK".
obwecTtsOM B onpeaesieHHbIn nepuon,
BPEMEHW 3ajau.
2.7.2. PekomeHpyeTcs pa3paboTaTtb w
3aKpennTb BO BHYTPEHHUX AOKYMeHTax
obwectsa nNOpSAAOK  MNOAFOTOBKM WU
N pAA 6 ObecneunBaetcd. [NpeaycMOTpeHO
npoeseaeHns 3acepaHum coBseTa
AVMpPEKTOpPOB, obecneymBaloWMn YneHam Aa fnasamy 11 v 1V Tlonoxenms o
P POB, Cosete anpektopos OAO "MMK",
coBeTa AVNPEKTOpOB BO3MOXHOCTb
Haanexawmm obpasoM MNoArOTOBUTbLCH K
€ero nposeaeHuto.
2.7.3. ©®opMy npoBeaeHUs 3acefaHus
coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB CneayeT onpenenstb
Avp P Ay PeA Ob6ecneunBaeTtca. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
C YYETOM Ba>XHOCTM BOMPOCOB MOBECTKMU
AHS HauGonee BaKHbIE BONDOCH! da ctatbsaMu 10-11, 17 TloNoXeHus o
' P Cosete anpektopos OAO "MMK",
OO/DKHbI  pewaTbCd Ha  3acefaHusx,
NMpoBOAMMBLIX B O4YHON opMe.
2.7.4. PeweHna no Haubonee BaXHbIM
Bonpocam LesaTeNbHOCTHU obuiecTBa Ob6ecneunsaeTtcsa. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
pekoMeHayeTCcs npUHUMaTb Ha nyHkTamm 11.7 12.2-12.3 YcTaBa,
3acegaHum coBeTa ANPEKTOpPOB [a cTatbaMu 6, 14-15, 17 MonoxeHusd
KBanuduumpoBaHHbIM 601bLLINHCTBOM 0 Cosete aumpektopos OAO
man  60NbLWNHCTBOM rosiocoB  BCeX «MMK>».
n36paHHbIX YSIEHOB COBETa ANPEKTOPOB.
2.8. Coset UpeKTopOB OJIKeH
Anp P A Ob6ecneunBaeTcs. Co3aaHbl 3
cosgasaTthb KOMUTETDI ans
KoMuTeTa: Mo ayamTy, MO Kagpam
npeaBapuUTENbHOIO paccMOTpeHuns Oa
" BO3HarpaxzaeHusm n no
Hanbonee Ba>HbIX BOMpPOCOB
cTpaTterM4eckoMy naaHMpoBaHwUIo.
pestenbHocTn obuecTtaa.
ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeHO
2.8.1. ns npeaBapuTenbHOro o
A peABap NyHKTOM 11.19 YcTaBa u ctatben 8
pacCMOTpPEHUsT BOMPOCOB, CBSA3@HHbLIX C
KOHTPONEM 3a (bMHAHCOBO- MonoxeHua o CoBeTe ANPEKTOPOB
o N OAO <«MMK», TlonoxeHnem o
X0351MCTBEHHOM [eaTeNIbHOCTbI0 Oa
komuteTe CoseTta ampektopos OAO
obuwectBa, pekoMeHAyeTCsS cCoO34aBaTb " "
N MMK" no ayauTy.
KOMUTET MO ayauTy, COCTOosSIWUi U3
KoMnTeT coCcTouT M3 He3aBUCUMBbIX
HEe3aBUCUMbIX AMPEKTOPOB.
ONPEKTOPOB.
2.8.2. ans npeaBapuTenbHOro ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeHO
paccMOTpEeHnss BOMPOCOB, CBA3AHHbLIX C fa nyHkToM 11.19 YcTtaBa n ctatben 8
dopmMmnpoBaHmem apdekTnBHOM 7 MonoxeHnsa o CoBeTe AUPEKTOPOB

Npo3payHoli MPaKTUKKM BO3HArpaxmnaeHus,

OAO <«MMK», TlonoxeHnem o
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pekoMeHAYyEeTCA Co34aBaTb KOMUTET MO

BO3HarpaxageHumsam, cocTosLwmnii n3
HE3aBUCUMbIX ANPEKTOPOB n
BO3r/1aB/ISIEMbIN He3aBNCUMbIM
ANPEKTOPOM, HE ABNALWNMCA

npeagcengartesnieM CoBeTa ANPEKTOPOB.

komuteTe CoeTa ampektopos OAO
"MMK" no Kagpam "
BO3Harpa>xaeHusm.

KoMuTeT COCTOMT U3 HEe3aBUCUMbIX
M HENCNOAHUTENbHbIX AUPEKTOPOB.
M3 3 uneHoB kKomuteTta, 2
HEe3aBUCUMbIX. Mpeacenatennb
KOMUTETa-HE3aBUCUMbIA OUPEKTOP
n He gasngetca [lpeacepartenem
CoBeTa ANPEKTOPOB.

2.8.3. ans npeaBapuTesbHOro
pacCcMOTPeHUs BOMPOCOB, CBSA3a@HHbLIX C ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeEHO
OCYyLLEeCTB/IEHUEM KaapoBoro nyHkToMm 11.19 YcTtaBa u ctatben 8
NJaHMPOBaHNS (nnaHupoBaHus MonoxeHus o CoBeTe AMPEKTOPOB
NMpeeMCcTBEHHOCTU), NpodecCcMoHanbHbIM OAO <«MMK», TlonoxeHnem o
coctaBoM U 3MPEKTUBHOCTbIO paboThbl [a komuteTe CoBeTta anpektopos OAO
coBeTa AMPEKTOpPOB, PEKOMEHAYyeTcs "MMK" no KagpaMm n
co3gaBaTb KOMUTET MO HOMMHAUMUAM BO3Harpa>aeHusm.
(Ha3HayeHusaM, kagpam), 601bLNHCTBO KOMUTET COCTOUT U3 HEe3aBUCUMbIX
YsIeHOB KOTOpOro OOJTKHbI 6bITb N HENCMNONHUTESNbHbIX ANPEKTOPOB.
HEe3aBUCUMbIMWN AMPEKTOPaMMU.
2.8.4. C y4yeToM mMacwTabos
eAaTeNbHOCTM U YPOBHS puCKa obLiecTs
A yp P W 4 Ob6ecneunsaeTtcsa. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
peKkoMeHayeTcs cosgasaTb WHble -
NnyHKTOM 11.19 YcTaBa n ctatben 8
KOMUTETbl CoBeTa AupeKkTopoB (KomuTeT
o cTpaTerum KOMUTET o MonoxeHuns o CoBeTe ANPEKTOPOB
! Oa OAO «MMK», TlofoXeHMeM o
KOpnopaTUMBHOMY YrMpaB/eHn0, KoMuTeT
komuteTe CoBeTa ampektopos OAO
no 3TWUKe, KOMUTET MO YyrnpaBAeHWUIo " "
MMK no cTpaTernyeckomy
pucKamun, KOMUTeT no 6toaXKeTy, KOMUTET
NMJaHUPOBAHUIO.
no 340pOBbIO, 6e3onacHoCTH "
OKpy>atoLlien cpege v ap.).
2.8.5. CocTtaB KOMUTETOB peKoOMeHAyeTCs
Ob6ecneunsaetcsa [lpeaycMoTpeHO
onpepenate TakmMm ob6pa3oMm, 4Tobbl OH
no3Bonsn npoBOAMTb  BCECTOPOHHee ronoxerusmm ° KommTeTax
[a CoseTta aupektopos OAO «MMK»,
obcyxaeHune npeaBapuTesibHO
accMaTpuBaeMbiX BOMPOCOB C Y4YeToM fonoxenvem ° HE3ABNCHMBIX
P P . P Y anpektopax OAO "MMK".
PasfINYHbIX MHEHWUN.
2.8.6. lNMpeacepatenam KOMUTETOB
Cneayer  perynsipHo  MH(OPMUPOBATh ObecneunBaetca [peaycMOTpeHO
COBET AMPEKTOPOB M ero npeacenartens o Aa fonoxeruamm ° KoMUTETax
P P P Coseta anpektopoB OAO «MMK»>.
paboTe CBOMX KOMUTETOB.
ObecneunBaeTcs. ExxerogHo
2.9. CoseT ANPEKTOpOB AOJKEH
yneHamu CoBeTa  AMPEKTOpPOB
obecneunBaTtb npoesegeHue OLEHKM
NnpoBOAMTCSA  OLEHKa paboThl
kayectBa paboTbl coBeTa AWPEKTOPOB, Da
CoBeTa AMPEKTOPOB, KOMUTETOB U
ero KOMUTETOB W  4YJeHOB CcOBeTa
KOpnopaTUMBHOIO ynpaBneHus B
OVPEKTOpPOB.
LesioMm.
2.9.1. T[lpoBeadeHne OLEHKW Ka4yecTsa
a60TbI  COBETA AMPEKTODOB  [OMKHO ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeHO
Fﬁ)bITb Hanpas/eHo pHa %n efeneHune fnasont IX Tlonoxenus o Cosere
P P Na ANPEKTOPOB 0AO "MMK",
creneHn adpdekTMBHOCTN paboTbl coBeTa
MonoxeHnsaMu o] KoMUTETax

ANPEKTOPOB,
CoBEeTa [AWPEKTOpPOB,

KOMUTETOB " 4/1€HOB
COOTBETCTBUA UX

CoBeTta anpektopoB OAO «MMK»
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paboThl noTpebHocCTaM pa3BuTUSA
obwectBa, akTMBM3aumo paboTbl coBeTa
OVPEKTOpPOB W BbisiBeHne obnacrten, B
KOTOPbIX WX AEATENIbHOCTb MOXET ObiTb

yy4lleHa.

2.9.2. OueHka paboThl coBeTa ObecneunBaetca. [lpeaycMoTpeHo
OVPEKTOpOB, KOMUTETOB W  YJIEHOB n/n. 11.13.66 Ycraea, Mason IX
coBeTa ONPEKTOpPOB DOSHKHA MonoxeHna o CoBeTe AMPEKTOPOB
OCYLLECTBNSATbLCS Ha PerynsipHoOM OCHOBeE OAO "MMK", n/n. 6.1.9
He pexe oagHOro pasa B rog. MAnga MonoxeHna o komuteTe CoBeTa
npoeeaeHus He3aBUCUMOW OLEHKM [a anmpektopoe  OAO «MMK» no
kayectBa paboTbl CcoBeTa [AMPEKTOPOB Kagpam n BO3HarpaxaeHusm,
pekoMeHayeTCs Nepuoanyeckn, He pexe «[porpammoii no

oAHOro pasa B TpW roaa, NpuBIeKaTb

coBepLIeHCTBOBAHUIO

BHELLHIOO opraHmsaumio KopnopaTtueHOro ynpasneHus OAO
(KOHCyNbTaHTA). «MMK» no 2017 roga».
III. KopnopaTuBHbIN cekpeTapb obuecTBa
3.1. DPdeKkTuBHOE Tekyulee
. b yu ObecneunBaetcs. ExerogHo CoseTt
B3auMOLeNCTBMe C aKLUMoHepamu,
o N AVPEKTOpOB Ha3Ha4vaeT
KoopauHaumsa pencteuii  obwectsa no
KOpNopaTMBHOIO cekpeTaps,
3awuTe npaB M MHTEPECOB aKLMOHEPOB, Oa o o
o KOTOpbIA AEACTBYET Ha OCHOBaHWUMU
noaaepxka apdekTMBHOM paboThbl
MonoxeHna o KopnopaTuBHOM
coBeTa AMpeKkTopoB obecneyumBatoTcs
cekpeTape.
KOpPNopaTUBHbIM CEKPETAPEM.
3.1.1. KoprnopaTuBHbI cekpeTapb
Ao/MmKeH obnagatb 3HAaHMSAMM, OMbITOM U
o ObecneunBaetcd. [peaycMoOTpeHO
KBanudukaumen, [OCTAaTOYHbIMM  ANS N
nyHkTom 15.2 YcraBa, ctatben 4
WUCMNOMTHEHUS  BO3/IOXXEHHbIX Ha Hero Oa
o N MonoxeHnss O  KOPMoOpaTUBHOM
obsizaHHOCTEN, 6e3ynpeyHon
o cekpeTape.
penyTaumen M Mofab30BaTbCA [OBEpPUEM
aKLMOHEPOB.
3.1.2. KoprnopaTuBHbI cekpeTapb
OJIKeH obnagatb OCTaTO4YHOM
A A A Ob6ecneunsaeTtcsa. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
HE3aBUCUMOCTbIO OT  MCMOJIHUTENbHbIX
nyHktamm 15.1, 15.3 Ycrasa,
opraHos obuiecTBa 7 MMeTb Oa .
CTaTben 4 MonoxeHus o]

Heo6xoAnMble MOJTHOMOYUS U Pecypchbl
AN BbINOJSIHEHUA MOCTAaBJIEHHbIX Nepea
HUM 3ajau.

KOprnopaTuUBHOM CEKpeTape.

IV. CucrteMa BO3Harpa>xgeHus 4ieHOB COBeTa ANPEKTOPOB, UCMOJIHUTENIbHbIX
OpPraHoOB M MHbIX KJ/IIO4YEBbIX pyKoBOoAALWMX paboTHMKOB obwecTBa

4.1. YpoBeHb BbIMJ1laynBaemMoro
obLecTBOM  BO3HarpaxXaeHus  AOJIKeH
ObITb AOCTaTOYHbIM ANS NpUBIEYEHUS,

MOTMBaL MU " yAaepXaHus vy,
obnagatowmx Heobxoamnmon ans
obuwecTBa KoMneTeHunen "
kBanudbukaumen. Boinnata
BO3HarpaxaeHus ysieHaM coBeTa

ANPEKTOPOB, WUCNOJMHUTENIbHbIM OpraHaM

[a

lMpeaycMmoTpeHo [lonoxeHuneM o
nopsake BbiNNaTbl
BO3Harpa>xaeHum mn KoMMneHcaumin

pacxonos yneHam coBeTa
ampektopos  OAO «MMK» ot
22.05.2015, MonoxeHnem 0

KoMuteTe coBeTa ampektopos OAO
«MMK>» no Kagpam 7
Bo3HarpaxaeHunsam, CTO CMK 2-
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M WHbIM  KJHOYEBbIM  PYKOBOASLLMM
paboTHMKaM obliecTBa AOJIXKHa
OCYLLECTBNSATbCS B  COOTBETCTBMU C
MPUHATOM B obwecTBe MOJMTUKONA Mo
BO3Harpa)zaeHuto.

6.2-09 «CraHgapT opraHmsauuu.
Cuctema MeHea)XMeHTa KadecTBa.
MepcoHan. OpraHumsauusa onnaThbl
Tpyaa pabotHukoB OAO «MMK»,
CTr 37-M-2013 «CTaHgapT
pynnbl. lMocTaHoBKa uenen
[esaTenbHOCTHU " rnpoesegeHue
€XXeroAgHOM OLEeHKM AesTeslbHOCTU

pykoBoauTenemn pynnbi OAO
«MMK>» .
MpeaycMmoTpeHo [lonoxeHneM o
4.1.1. PekomeHayeTcsl, 4TOObI YpOBEHb ggg:s:;am,qemﬁ " KOMHZ‘:ZQZ;‘;
BO3HarpaxaeHus, npenocTaBnsaeMoro
obLecTBOM uysieHaM coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB, pacxonos SR%HaM«MMKiOBeTa
WUCMOMIHUTENIbHBIM ~ OpraHaMm 1 UHbIM gg?;;rzoopf; MonoKeHmem OZ
KMOYEBbIM  PYKOBOASAWMM paboTHMKaM, KOMUTETE CéBETa MpeKTopoB OAO
cospasan p,OCTaToquyro MOTMBaALMIO AN «MMK> 1o Kanpam y
nx adpdekTneHon paboTbl, MO3BONAA BosHarpaxaeHusM. CTO CMK 2-
obuwecTesy npuBnekatb W YyAepXuBaTb fa 6.2-00 «CTaHgapT opraHuM3aLmMm
KOMMETEHTHbIX W KBaJUPULMNPOBAHHbIX C.VICTeMa MEHEMKMEHTa KaquTBa'
cneunanuctos. [pm 3TOM obwecTBy MepcoHan. OpraHuzauus OI'IJ'IaTb.I
cnepyet wusberatb 6onbliero, 4em 3TO Tpyna pa.60THVIKOB O0AO «MMK>»
Heob6Xxo0AMMO, YPOBHS BO3HarpaxaeHus, a — 37-M-2013 <<CTaHp,ap4
Takxe HeonpaBAaHHO 6onbLioro FpynnbL. NocTaHoBKa Lenedi
paspsisa Mexay YPOBHAMN DesaTeNnbHOCTH n nposeneHue
BOSHATPaXACHNA ~ yKasaHHbIX Ml v €XerogHOM OLEeHKM AesaTeslbHOCTU
paboTHukos obuiectsa. pyKoBoAMUTENEN Mpynnel  OAO
«MMK>»,
MpeaycmoTpeHo  Yctasom  OAO
«MMK>» oT 24.05.2013,
MonoxeHnem o nopsake BbiNJaThbl
BO3Harpa>xaeHum mn KoMMeHcaumin
acxonos ysieHaMm coBeTa
4.1.2. Monuntuka obuwecTBa rno ZMpeKTOpOB OAO  <«MMK» ot
BosHarpaxaeHuio AosxHa 22.05.2015 MonoxxeHnem o]
paspabaTbiBaTbCs KOMUTETOM no coMmTETE chJBeTa ANpeKTopos OAO
BO3HarpaxzaeHusm n yTBEpXAaTbCs «MMK> o Kanpam "
coBeToM aumpektopoB obuwectBa. CoseT BosHarpaxaeHnsm, CTO CMK 2-
OVPEKTOpOB MNpu nogAepxkKe KomuTeTa fa 6.2-09 «CranaapT opraHu3auum.
no BOSHATDKACHNAM AOTDKEH CucteMa MeHeAXMeHTa KadecTBa.
obecneunTb KOHTPOJSIb 3@ BHEAPEHUEM WU MepcoHan. OpraHW3auust onnaTbl
peanusaumein B obuwectse NOINTUKM MO Tpyaa paboTHMKoB OAO <«MMKs»
BO3HarpaxgajeHuto, a npm Heob6xoanMocTu cTr 37-M-2013 <<CTaHL|.ap'|"
- nepecMaTpmBaTb €€ U BHOCUTbL B Hee Fpynnb., NocTaHoBKa Leneii
KOPPEKTHBEI. LesaATeNnbHOCTH n npoesefeHune
€XerogHom OUEHKWU [esATeNIbHOCTU
pykoBoauTenemn pynnbl OAO
«MMK>»,
4.1.3. Monutuka obuiecTBa no BbinonHaeTcs B  COOTBETCTBUMU
BO3HArpaXxaeHuWo  AOJ/HKHa  coaepXaTb [a rnasoi 5 lonoxeHuns o nopsgke
npo3payHbie MeXxaHWu3Mbl onpeaeneHns BblMNathl BO3Harpa>geHui n
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pa3Mepa BO3Harpa>aeHus yfieHoB
coBeTa [AWPEKTOPOB, WCMOMHUTENbHbIX
opraHoB " NHBIX K/1H0UEBbIX

pykoBoasiwmx paboTHmMkoB obuiecTtBa, a
TakKXe pernaMmeHTupoBaTb BCe BWAbl
BbINnaT, nbrot n npueunerun,
NpeaoCcTaBAsieMbIX YKa3aHHbIM JTNLAM.

KOMMeHcauMn pacxonoB JjeHaMm
coseta aupektopos OAO «MMK»,
CTO CMK 2-6.2-09 «CraHpapT
opraHmsauuu. Cucrema
MeHea)XMeHTa KayecTBa.
MepcoHan. OpraHum3auus onnathbl
Tpyaa pabotHukoB OAO «MMK»,

CTr 37-M-2013 «CTtaHgapT
pynnbl. lMocTaHoBKa uenen
[esaTenbHOCTHU " rnpoesegeHue

€XerogHOM OLEHKM AesaTeslbHOCTU
pykoBoauTenemn pynnbi OAO
«MMK»

4.1.4. PekoMmeHayeTcs, 4Tobbl 06LLECTBO

BbinonHseTcsa, B COOTBETCTBUM C

onpepenuno  MNoanUTUKY  BO3MeLleHUs
N MonoxeHnem o nopsake BbiNJaThbl
pacxoaos (koMneHcauyuit), . o
BO3Harpa>xaeHum mn KoMMeHcaumn
KOHKPETU3UPYIOLWYIO nepevyeHb
acxoAos, noanexawmx BO3MELLEeHUo, U pacxonos HneHanm cosera
g OBeHb ’o6cn XXUBaAHWS, Ha KOTO L|17| ANpeKTOpoB OAO «MMK>,
://IFC))FYT npeTeHil,osaTb :-IJ'IEHbI confeTa Oa Mpukasom T/ - 04/005 or
24.02.2015 «06 ycraHOBNEHUHU
ONPEKTOPOB, UCMOSIHUTESIbHbIE OpraHbl U
pa3MepoB BO3MELLEHUNS pacxoos,
WHble K/to4YeBble pykoBsoasiwme
CBSA3aHHbIX co CNy»XebHbIMn
paboTHMKK obuwecTBa. Takaa nonamMTMKa
< KOMaHAMPOBKAMMU Ha TeppuTopumn
MOXeT 6bITb COCTaBHOM 4yacTblo
PO v Tepputopun MHOCTPAHHbIX
MOJSINTUKMN obuiecTBa rno
rocyaapcrse».
BO3HarpaxzaeHuto.
4.2. CncteMa BO3HarpaxaeHus u4neHoB
coBeTa ONPEKTOpPOB DO/KHA B cooTtBerctBMM C n.n. 6.9-6.11
obecneunBatb cHamxeHne GUHAHCOBLIX Na [MonoxeHns O KOMUTETe COBETa
WHTepecoB ONPEKTOPOB C ampektopos  OAO «MMK» no
[ONrOCPOYHbIMU dbnHaHCOBbIMU KaZapaM 1 BO3HarpaxaeHusM.
MHTEpecamMmm akLMOHEpPOB.
4.2.1. dukcmpoBaHHoe rogosoe
BO3HarpaxgjeHue ABNAETCA
npeanoYTuUTeNbHOM (OPMON AEHEXHOro
BO3HarpaxaeHus uyneHoB coBseTa
OVpeKTopoB. Bbinnata BoO3HarpaxaeHus BbinonHaeTcs, B COOTBETCTBUKU C 5
3a y4dacTue B OTAesNbHbIX 3acefaHusax rnason [lonoxeHusa 0O nopsaake
coBseTa nnu KOMUTETOB coBeTa ha BblNNaThl BO3Harpa)aeHum n
OVPEeKTopoB HeXxenaTenbHa. B KOMMNEHcauMin pacxonoB uYseHaM
OTHOWEHUN 4YJIeHOB COBeTa AUPEKTOPOB coBeTa ampektopoB OAO «MMK>».
HEe peKoMeHAyeTCsi npuMeHeHue nbbix
$OopM  KpaTKOCPOYHOM MOTUBAUUKU U
OONOMHNTENbHOIo MaTepuanbHOro
CTUMYJIMPOBaHMUA.
4.2.2. lonrocpoyHoe BnajeHuve akumamu
obuwectea B Hambonblwen  CTeneHwu
cnocobeTByeT cObAMMXKEHUIO (UHAHCOBLIX
WHTEPECOB 4Y/IeHOB COBETa AMPEKTOPOB C Het B nnaHe no coBeplleHCTBOBaHUIO

AO0NITOCPOYHbIMU WHTepecamMu
akumoHepos. MNpu 3ToM 06yCNOBNEHHOCTb
npaBa peanusauum akumini [OCTUIXKEHUEM
onpeneneHHbIX nokasarenemn

KOPMopaTUBHOIO yrnpaB/ieHUs
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AEeATENbHOCTU WM XXE y4yacTue YJIeHOB
coBeTa AMPEKTOPOB B OMUMOHHbIX
nporpaMMax He peKoMeHAyeTcs.

B MNMonoxeHnn o nopsake BbinaaThl
BO3HArpa>xeHun mn KoMMeHcaLmni

pacxonos ysieHamMm coBeTa
4.2.3. He pekoMeHayeTCcs
npegycMmaTpmeaThb Kakue-nnbo AnpeTopos  OAO  «MMK» ot

22.05.2015 Kakue-nnbo
[ONONHUTENbHbIE BblNNaTbl nnm

AONONHUTENbHbIE  BbiMJaTbl WK
KOMMeHcaumMn B Ciy4yae [AOCPOYHOro

N Ha KOMMeHcaumnm B cnyJae

npekpaweHums MNOSTHOMOUMN ysieHoB

AO0CPOYHOro npekpaweHums
CoBeTa AMPEKTOPOB B CBA3M C NepexoioM o

NOSTHOMOUUM YsIeHOB coBeTa
KOHTPONS Haa ob6wecTtBOM WAN MHbIMU

AVPEKTOPOB B CBSA3M C nMepexonoM
obcTosaTenbcTBamu.

KOHTpONs Hag obwecTtBoM uau

MHbIMK obcrosiTenbcTBamMm He

npegycMaTpuBaeTcs.
4.3. Cucrema BO3HarpaxaeHus
WUCMONMHUTENBbHbLIX  OPraHoB U WUHbIX cTr 37-M-2013 «Crangapt
KOUEBbIX PYKOBOASAWMX PpabOTHMKOB Fpynnbl. MocTtaHoBKa uenen
obwectea po/XHa nNpegycMaTpuBaTbh fa AeATesIbHOCTH n nposeaeHue
3aBUCUMOCTb BO3HarpaxaeHus oT eXerogHoOM OUEHKU [esATeNbHOCTH
pesynbTata pabotel obuwectBa n ux pykoBoauTenemn pynnebl OAO
JIMYHOro BKJlaZa B [AOCTUXEHWe 3TOro «MMK>.

pesysnbTaTa.

V. CucrteMa ynpas/ieHUsi pUCKaMU U BHYTPEHHEro KOHTpons

Ob6ecneunBaetca. @OyHKUMOHUpPYET
KOMMeKCcHas cucTeMa
ynpaenenms puckamm (KCYP). B

2014 roay ycnewHO npoKnaeHa
AMarHocTuka CUCTEMB.
MoaTeepxaeHa eé
5.1. B obuwecTtBe aomkHa 6bITb co3gaHa 3(pHEKTUBHOCTD, BblAaHbI
a(pPeKTUBHO dyHKUMOHMPYIOLWas pekoMeHgaumm no AasbHenwemy
cucrtema ynpaBieHus pucKamm 7 fa COBEpLUEHCTBOBAHMIO CUCTEMBI.
BHYTPEHHEro KOHTPO/fA, Hanpas/ieHHas QOYyHKUNMOHUpPYET Cucrema
Ha obecrnedeHne pasyMHOW YBEPEHHOCTU BHYTpPEHHEero KoHTpona (B TOM
B OOCTMXKEHMW MOCTaBNEHHbIX nepea yncne 3a dunHaHcoBoM
obuiecTBoM uenen. OTYETHOCTbIO). Cenvac naet
paboTa No akTyanusauum maTpuy
KOHTpoONs " dopmanusaymm
KOHTPONbHbIX  npoueayp. [lnaH
paboTbl MO AaHHOMY HanpasBlEeHUIO
cornacoeaH Komutetom CA no
ayanTy.
5.1.1. CoBeToM paupekTopoB obLiecTBa Obecneunsaercs. Coserom
ANPEKTOpPOB OAO «MMK>»
OO/MKHbI 6bITb onpeaeneHbl NPUHLMUMALI U
paccMatpuBaeTca U opobpsertcs
noaxoabl K  OpraHusauummM  CUCTEMbI Oa

yrnpas/ieHUs pUCKaMU W BHYTPEHHEro
KOHTpons B obuecrse.

Monntuka B obnactu ynpasneHus
puckamm OAO «MMK». B 2015
roay CoseToM OVPEKTOpPOB

28




yTBEpXAEHa HoBas  peaakums
MonuTMkM B 0611aCTU yrnpaBieHuUs
puckKamu.

ExerogHo CoBeTOM AMPEKTOpOB
OAO «MMK» yTBepxpaaetca OTyeT

o] puckax OAO «MMK>,
BK/IIOYAKOLWNMA  Takue pasgensbl,
Kak: «OueHka 3pPeKTUBHOCTH
KOMMM/IEKCHOWM CUCTEMBI
ynpaBneHus puckamm OAO
«MMK», «Pa3Butmne KOMMNIEKCHOWM
CUCTEMbl  yrnpaBieHUs  pucKkamm
OAO «MMK».

MpuHUMNbI 7 noaxoabl K
opraHusaumm Cucrembl
BHYTPEHHEro KOHTpONS
onpepeneHbl B [lMonutmke o
BHYTPEHHEMY  KOHTposaw  (yTB.

CoseToM anpekTopoB 19.12.2014),
a Takxe B MonoxeHumn o)

npoueaypax BHYTPEHHEro
KOHTpONSA (yTB. CoseToM
ONPEKTOpPOB 30.08.2013).
ExerogHo Komuter C[ no ayauty
3acnywmBaeTt oTyeThl o]
PYHKUMOHUpPOBaAHNU CBK,

eXXeKBapTasibHO- O MNpOBeAEHHbIX
ayamtax B 4yactu oueHkn CBK wu
KCYP.

5.1.2. UcnonHuTenbHble opraHsbl Ob6ecneunBaetcda. B OAO «MMK»
obuwecTBa OOJIXKHBbI obecneumBaTtb (GYHKLUMOHMPYIOT noapasaeneHus,
co3paHue 7 noaaep>xaHue fa B 0653aHHOCTM KOTOpPbIX BXOAWUT
dYHKUMOHMPOBaHUSA apdeKkTBHOM opraHusauvsa K1 noapepxaHue
CUCTeMbl  ynpaBJieHuns pucKamm 7 addheKkTMBHOro
BHYTPEHHEro KOHTposisa B obuwecTse. dyHKumoHmpoBaHua KCYP un CBK.
ObecneunBaeTtcda. He3aBUCUMOCTb
cneunanbHbIX noapasaeneHun,
KOoTopble obecneunBaloT
dyHkunoHuposaHne KCYP n CBK,
eanunsosBaHa yepes
5.1.3. Cuctema ynpasneHUss pucKkamn u P P
dyHKUMOHaNbHoE nogynMHeHne
BHYTpPEHHero KOHTponss B obuwecTse N
Komutety C[ no ayauTy, KOTOpPbIA
JomkHa obecneumBaTb 06bEKTUBHOE,
yTBepxgaet njaaH paboTbl Takoro
cnpaBeasiMBoe U SCHOe npeacrasfiieHne o
nogpasaesneHuns Ha roa,
TEeKYLLEeM COCTOSIHUM U MepcrekTMBax Oa
exekBapTasnbHO 3acnywmsaeTt
obuiecTBa, LENOCTHOCTb U MNPO3pPayYHOCTb
OTYeTHOCTM obuwecTBa, PpasyMHOCTb W OTWeTBI O (yHKUMOHMPOBaHNH
! KCYP 7 CBK, a Takxe
NpMeMsIeMoCTb NPUHUMaeMbIX 06LLECTBOM
CBOEBPEMEHHO nonyvaer
PUCKOB.
WHdOopMaunto o] puckax 7
MEeponpuaTUaX no nx
npefoTBpaLleHunio.

EanHonnuHbIN UCMOSTHUTENbHbIN
opraH - [leHepanbHbI ANPEKTOP
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OAO <«MMK» Ha perynspHoi
ocHoBe (pa3 B QABe Heaenn)
nony4yaer uMHhOpMaUMO OT Takoro
nogpasgeneHns Mo TeKyleMmy
coctoaHumto KCYP un CBK, o
BbISIBIEHHbIX HapyweHunax "
NPeAnpUHSITbIX  KOPPEKTUPYOLWMNX
OENCTBUSIX.

Mpu HeobxoanmmocTu Takoe
noapasaeneHue npuenekaeTcs
FeHepanbHbIM OVPEKTOPOM K
BbIMOSIHEHUIO NpOBepoK aKToB
(PMHAHCOBO-X039NCTBEHHOMN
AesATEeNbHOCTU.

5.1.4. CoBeTy aupekTtopoB o06LlecTBa

Ob6ecneunBaeTtcs. ExexkBapTanbHO

pekoMeHayeTcs NpUHMMATb
Komuntetom ca no ayauTty
HeobxoaMMble M AOCTaTOYHbIE Mepbl ANs
Toro 4TO6bI y6eanTbes 4To 3acnyLwmBatoTCa oTyeTbl 0 paboTe
o ! KCYP un CBK, Ha oOCHOBaHuu
Jencteyowas B obwectBe cuctema
Oa KOTOpbIX npUHUMaloTCA
ynpaBjieHUs pUCKaMU W BHYTPEHHEero
COOTBETCTBYHOLME PpeleHnus no
KOHTPONSi COOTBETCTBYET onpeAesieHHbIM
yayuweHnio paboTbl 3TUX CUCTEM.
COBETOM  AUPEeKTOpOB  NpuHuUMNam u
CoBeT AMPEKTOPOB 3aciaywmBaeT
noaxogaM K ee  opraHumsauum v
OTYeTbl eXerogHo.
3(pHeKTUBHO PYHKLUMOHUPYET.
5.2. ng cucrteMaTMyeckom He3aBUCUMOW O6ecneunBaetcsa. Ha perynspHoi
OUEHKMN HagexXHoCcTn n 3hhEeKTUBHOCTHU ocHoBe (cornacHo yTBepXAeHHOMY
CUCTEMbI ynpasneHuns puckamm % nnaHy pab6otel) B OAO «MMK»
BHYTPEHHEro KOHTPOAs W  NpaKTUKu Oa NpoOXoAsT BHYTPEHHME ayauTbl B
KOpNopaTUBHOIO YyrnpasfeHus obLiecTso uenax oueHkn 3PPeKTUBHOCTH
OO/IXXHO OpraHu3oBbiBaTb MpoBedeHune paboThbl KCYP, CBK "
BHYTpEeHHero ayaura. KOpPNopaTMBHOIO ynpaBfeHusl.
5.2.1. OpraHunsauuio nposeaeHus
BHYTpPEHHero ayamTta peKkoMeHAyeTcCs
OCYLLEeCTBNSATb MOCPeACTBOM  CO34aHUsA
OTAeNIbHOro CTPYKTYPHOrO
noapasaeneHuns (noapasaeneHuns
BHYTpPEHHero ayauTa) unm C Ob6ecneunsaeTcs. OyHKLMU
npuBe4YeHNeM He3aBUCUMOWN BHELLHEN npoBeaeHnss BHYTPEHHero ayauta
opraHusauuu. ans obecneyveHuns BO3J/10XEHbl Ha cneunanbHoe
HEe3aBUCUMOCTU noapasaeneHus fa noapasgeneHue, KoTOpoOe
BHYTpPEHHero ayavTa ero dyHKUMOHANbHO noavnHsIeTcs
(dYHKUMOHaNbHas W agMWUHUCTPaTMBHAsN Komutety CoBeTa AMpPEKTOpPOB MO
NoAOTYETHOCTb OOJIXKHbI 6bITb ayauty, aAMUHNCTPATUBHO -
pasrpaHnyeHsbl. OYHKLUMOHANbHO FeHepanbHOMY ANPEKTOPY.
nogpasfenieHne BHYTpPEeHHero ayauTta
pekoMeHayeTcs MNOAYNHUTDL coBeTy
OVPEKTOpOB, a aAMUMHUCTPATUBHO -
HenocpeaCcTBEHHO eAVHOIUYHOMY
WMCNONTHUTENbHOMY OpraHy obuiecTsa.
5.2.2. MNpwu ocywecTBeHUN BHYTPEHHEro ObecneunBaetca. Ha perynspHomn
ayauTa pekoMeHayeTCcs NnpoBOAUTb fa OCHOBe (COrnacHo yTBep>XXAeHHOMY
OUEHKY 3(pheKTMBHOCTH CUCTEMbI nnaHy pabotbl) B OAO «MMK»
BHYTPEHHEero KOHTpONS, OLEHKY NpoxoasaT BHYTPEHHWEe ayauTbl B
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3(pHEeKTUBHOCTN CUCTEMBI
puUcCKamum, OLIEHKY
yrnpaBAeHUsi, a TaKXe  TMpPUMEHNATb
obwenpuHaTbie CTaHAapThbl
OeATeNbHOCTU B 0651acTUM BHYTPEHHEro
ayauTa.

ynpaBfieHus
KoprnopaTUBHOIo

uensax oueHkn 3PPeKTMBHOCTH
paboTbl KCYP, CBK "
KOPMOpaTMBHOIO yrnpaBJieHus.

VI. PackpbiTne niopmaumum o6 obuwecrese, mHpopMaLuMoHHan NoamTmka obuecrea

6.1. O6wectBO M ero AesaTeNbHOCTb ObecneunBaeTcs. YcTtaB OAO
LOJIXHbI 6bITb npo3payvyHbIMU ansa fa «MMK>», MonoxeHue 06
aKuMoHepoB, WHBECTOPOB U MHbIX nHdopMaunmoHHon nonutmke OAO
3auHTEepeCcoBaHHbIX NULL. «MMK>»,

6.1.1. B ofbwectBe pgo/mkHa 6biTb

paspaboTaHa 7 BHeApeHa Ob6ecneunBaetca. lNpeaycMoTpeHO
MH@OpPMaLUNOHHas nonuTuka, YcTaBowm, MonoxeHnem 06
obecneunBatoLlas addeKkTMBHOE Oa MHpopMaunoHHon nonuntnke OAO
MHMOPMaLMOHHOEe B3aMMOAENCTBUNE «MMK>» " Koaekcom
obuwectBa, aKUMOHEPOB, MHBECTOPOB W KOpNoOpaTUBHOIO ynpas/ieHus.
WMHbIX 3aUHTEpEeCcoBaHHbIX NNL.

6.1.2. O6uwecTtBy cneayet pacKkpbiBaTb

MHMOpMaLNID O CUCTEME W MpaKTuKe

KOpnopaTUBHOIO YynpasJieHns, BKJO4Yas fa ObecneunBaetcd. PackpbiBaeTcs B
noapobHyto nHdopmaumno o cobnrogeHmnn rogoBbix otyetax OAO «MMK»,
MPUHLMNOB " pekoMeHaauunm

HacToswero Kogekca.

6.2. O6wecTtBO AO/MHKHO CBOEBPEMEHHO

packpbiBaTb MOJIHYIO, aKTyanbHY WU ObecneunBaetcda. [onoxeHne 06
aoctosepHyto nHbopmaumio 06 obuiecrtse WHdopMaunmoHHon nonutnke OAO
ans obecneyeHuns BO3MOXHOCTU Aa «MMK» n Kopgekc KopnopaTuUBHOIro
NPUHATUA 060CHOBaHHbIX peLweHni ynpaBneHus.

aKuuoHepamun obuiectsa U UHBECTOpPaMMU.

6.2.1. PackpbiTne obwecTsoM Ob6ecneunsaeTtcsa. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
MHPOPMaUNN OO/HKHO OCYLWECTBSATLCSA B YctaBoM, [lonoxeHmem 06 obuiem
COOTBETCTBUM C NpUHUMNAMHK cobpaHum aKuMoHepoB OAO
perynapHocTy, nocneaoBaTe/lbHOCTU U Oa «MMK>», MonoxeHnem 06
ONepaTMBHOCTU, a TakKXe AOCTYMHOCTH, nHdopMaunmoHHon nonutmke OAO
LOCTOBEPHOCTHU, NOJSIHOTbLI U CPABHUMOCTU «MMK>» " Kopekcom
pacKkpblBaeMbIX AaHHbIX. KOpNopaTUBHOIO yrnpas/ieHus.
6.2.2. O6buecTtBy pekoMmeHayeTcs

nsberatb dopmManbHOro noaxoga npu ObecneunBaeTcs. MpuMeHseTcA
pacKpbITUN MHGOPMaLMN M pacKpbiBaTb dakynbTaTMBHOE packpbiTue
CYLLEeCTBEHHYI0 MHGOpMauUulo O CBoeM Oa CyleCcTBEHHON  MHQoOpMaumMn o
[edaTenbHOCTU, JaXke ecnun packpbiTue aeatenbHOCTU obuwectBa, B Buae
Takoh MHQoOpMauMMm He npeaycMOTPEHO npecc-penms3os.
3aKOHOAATENIbCTBOM.

6.2.3. [0A0BOWN OTYET, ABNSASACH OAHUM U3 Ob6ecneunsaeTtcs. [lpeaycMoTpeHO
Hanbonee BaXHbIX WHCTPYMEHTOB MonoxeHuem o] nopsake
WHMOPMALIMOHHOIO B3aMMOAENCTBUA  C Na noaroToBKM  rogoBOro  OTYeTa,
aKuuoHepamu " ApYyrnMun YcTtasoMm OAO «MMK>,
3anHTEepecoBaHHbIMU CTOpOHaMMU, MonoxeHnem 06 MHPOPMALMOHHOM
LOJIKeH coaepxaTb MHpopMauuto, nonntuke OAO «MMK>».
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NO3BONSIOLLYHO OLUEHUTb nTorm

aeaTenbHOCTN obecTBa 3a rog.

6.3. MpepocraBneHune obuecTBoM

MHdOpMaLUnM N JOKYMEHTOB MO 3anpocam

aKIj)VIOpHeleOB ,D,Oﬂ)I(HyO oc LLl,eCTBJ'IﬂprCFl B Obecnedusaercs. Fnasa 6

COOTBETCTBUM c Y MPUHLMNaMH [a MonoxeHns o6 MHMOPMALMOHHOWN
nonntuke OAO «MMK»,

pPaBHOAOCTYMHOCTH "

HeobpeMeHUTENbHOCTMW.

6.3.1. Peanusaunsa akumoHepamm npasa Ob6ecneunBaetcsa [lpeaycMoOTpeHO

Ha AOCTYyN K AOKYMEHTaM M MHdopMauum fa naBamm 5 u 6 [MonoxeHus o6

obwiectBa He Ao/MKHA ObITb CONpsiXeHa C nHdopMaunmoHHon nonutmke OAO

HeonpasAaHHbLIMU CNOXHOCTAMMN. «MMK>»,

6.3.2. MNpn npegocraBneHnn ob6LLECTBOM

nHdopmaunm aKunoHepam

pekomeHayeTcsa obecneymBaTb pa3yMHbIM

6anaHc Mexay MHTepecaMum KOHKPETHbIX

Ay P P O6ecneunBaeTtca. [lpeaycMoTpeHO

aKLUMOHEpOB W  WHTepecamMn CcaMmoro o
FnaBsoi 7 MonoxeHuns 06

obuwecTtsa, 3aMHTEepecoBaHHOro B Ha N
MHpopMaunoHHon nonntuke OAO

COXpaHeHuu KoHdMAEeHUMaNbHOCTH «MMK>

BaXXHOW KOMMep4yecKon UHdopMauum, |

KOTOpass MOXeT OKa3aTb CYLEeCTBEeHHOoe

BNIMSHME Ha ero

KOHKYPEHTOCMOCO6HOCTb.

VII. CywjecTBeHHble KOpropaTuBHble AeACTBUs

7.1. lencTtBus, KOTOpbIE B 3HAUUTENBHOMN
CTeneHu BAUSAIOT UKW MOTYT NOBAUATbL Ha
CTPYKTYpPY aKUMOHEpHOro Kkanutana w
dunHaHcoBoe cocTtoaHne obwecTtBa WU,

ObecneunBaeTcs. YcTas OAO
COOTBETCTBEHHO, Ha nonoxeHune

«MMK>», MonoxeHue o]
aKLMOHepoB (cywecTBeHHble
KoprnopaTuBHblIe  OENCTBUSA) DOJDKHBI Aa CYLIECTBEHHBIX KOPMOPAaTHBHBIX

! nencteuax OAO «<MMK» un Koaekc

OCYLLEeCTBAATLCA Ha cnpaBeasinBbIxX

KOpPNopaTMBHOIO yrnpaBfeHusl.
yCnoBsusx, obecneynBatoLmx
cobnoageHune npas " WHTEepecoB
aKumnoHepos, a Takxe NHbIX
3aMHTEpeCcoBaHHbIX CTOPOH.
7.1.1. CylwiecTBeHHbIMU
KOpNOpaTUBHbLIMW AENCTBUAMKU cnenyeT
npusHaeaTb peopraHusauunto obuwiecTsa,
npnobpeteHne 30 u 6onee nNpoLEHTOB
roN0CyLWmMX akummn obuiecTtsa ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeHO
(nornoweHne), coseplieHne ob6LecTBOM YcraBoMm, [nasamu 8-10,12-14
CYLLEeCTBEHHbIX CAENOK, YBEMYEeHNne nUau Oa MonoxeHuns 0  CyLleCTBEHHbIX

YMeHbLlLeHune yCTaBHOro KanuTana
obulecTBa, OCyLleCcTBNEHME NUCTUHIa U
OEeNUCTUHIa akuuim obwectBa, a Takxe
WHble  OeNCcTBus, KoTopble MOryT
npunBectn K CywieCtBeéHHOMY WM3MEHEHUIO
MnpaB aKUMOHEPOB WIN HAPYLUEHUIO WX

KoprnopaTmBHbiX genctenax OAO
«MMK>»,
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WHTEPECOB. YcTtaBoMm obuwecTBa
peKOMeHAYyeTCs onpeaennTb MNepeveHb
(KpuTEPUM) COAENOK UM UHBIX OENCTBUN,
ABSIOLNXCS CYLLECTBEHHbIMU
KOprnopaTUBHbIMU OENCTBUSAMMU, n
OTHECTU PaCCMOTPEHUE TaKux AencTBui
K KOMMETEeHUWM COBEeTa [AUPEKTOPOB
obuiecTBa.

7.1.2. CoBeT AMPEKTOPOB AOJ/IKEH UrpaTb
KJIIOYEBYIO PpOSib B MPUHSATUN pPELLUEHWNI
nnm BblpaboTke  pekomMeHpauni B

ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeHO
nyHkTamm 11.4 n 11.5 Ycrasa OAO
«MMK>» n nyHktammn 8.2, 8.3, 8.8,

oTHOLEHAN . UcymeCTBeHHb'X Aa 10.5, 12.2, 12.4, 13.3 MNonoxeHuns
KOpnopaTUBHbLIX AENCTBUIA, ONUPAsiCb Ha 0 CYLIECTBEHHLIX KOPHOPATUBHBIX
NO3ULMID  HE3aBUCUMbIX  AMPEKTOPOB N

obLIeCTBa. pencremnax OAO «MMK».

7.1.3. Tlpn coBepleHnn CyLlecTBeHHbIX

KOpMOpaTUBHbIX OENCTBUN,

3aTparMBalOlWmMx npaBa W 3aKOHHble

MHTEpPeCbl aKUMOHEpPOB, peKoMeHAyeTcs

obecneymBaTb paBHble YCNOBUS A1 BCeEX

aKLUMOHEpPOB obuwecTsa, a npw

HeAOoCTaTOYHOCTH npeaycMoTpeHHbIX O6ecneunsaetcs. MpeaycMOTpeHo
3aKOHOAATENbCTBOM MeXaHM3MOB, Kopekcom KOPMOPATUBHOrO
Hanpas/eHHbIX Ha awnty npas [a ynpaBneHusi, AHTUKOPPYMNUMOHHOMN
aKLUMOHEpOB, - AOMOJHUTENbHble Mepbl, NOMUTHKON 1 KOZEKCOM AenoBOji
3awmuiaowme npaea UM 3aKOHHble

MHTepecbl akuumoHepoB obuwecTtea. [lpu FTMKn.

3TOM obwectBo AOJIKHO

PYKOBOACTBOBATbLCS He TONIbKO

cobnogeHnem dopmanbHbiX TpeboBaHMI

3aKoHOAATeNbCTBA, HO W MpPUHUMMNAMMU

KOpnopaTUBHOIO ynpaBreHus,

N3N0XeHHbIMU B HacToswwem Kogekce.

7.2. O6wectBOo [oMXHO obecneunTb

Takom nopsiaoK coBepLleHus

CyLl'leCTB?HHbIX o KOPTIOpaTMBHBIX ObecneunBaeTcs. Koaekc
AencTeunmn, KOTOpbIN nossonsert KOPNOPATUBHOTO yTIDABNEHNS,
aKuMOHepaM CBOEBpPEeMEeHHO noJyyaTb MonoxeHne 06 WHAOPMALMOHHOM
HOTHYD MH(OPMALMIO ° aKmnx Oa nonuntnke OAO «MMK» 1 [nasa
ANCTBNAX, obecneunsaer M 14 TlonoXeHns O CyLecCTBEeHHbIX
BOBMO)KHOCTI?’ ani;rrb Ha coBeplleHne KOPMOPATUBHbIX AECTBUsSIX OAO
Takux AencTBmin n rapaHTupyert «MMK> |

cobnogeHne u  ajekBaTHbI  ypoOBeHb

3alWMTbl UX NpaB NpU COBEPLUEHNM TaKUX

OEeNCTBUN.

7.2.1. WVHdopMaumio O CoBepLUEHUMn

CyLl'leCTBUeHHbIX KOPTIOPaTMIBHBIX Ob6ecneunBaeTtca. lNpuMeHsieTca B
OEeNCTBMI peKoMeHAyeTCs paCKprB?Tb C fa npaKTyke KOPMOPATHBHOrO
06'b9ICHeHMeuM NPUYMH,  YCIOBUA U ynpaBneHns OAQ «<MMKs
nocneacTBumi coBepLleHns Takux

OENCTBUN.
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7.2.2. Mpasuna 7 npoueanypsbl,
CBSI3aHHble C OCYLLECTBIEHNEM
obuecTsoM CYLLEeCTBEHHbIX
KOpPMOpPaTUBHbIX OENCTBUN,
pekoMeHAayeTCcs 3aKpenuTb BO

BHYTPEHHNX JJOKYMEHTax o6LLEeCTBa.

[a

ObecneunBaetcs. [peaycMOTpeHO
MonoxeHnemMm 0O  CyLleCTBEHHbIX
KoprnopaTmuBHbIX gencteuax OAO
«MMK>,
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Bbyxrantepckas otyetHoctb OAO «MMK>» no PCBY 3a 2015 ropa

EYXTANTEPCKHHA BANMAHC
Ha 31 pexabpr 2015 r.

Koo:

@opma no OKYO 0710001

Lara (uwcno, mecaw, roa)| 31 ] 12 [ 2015

Oprasuzauss; DAD "MarHHTOropoxmui MeTanNYDrEYeckiti KoMOHHET" no OKNO 00186424
MaeHTHHEaUHOHHEIR HOMED HanoronnarenswyKa: 7414003633 WHH| 7414003633
Ban 3HOHOMMHEEoR gesTensHocTi:_MeTannypryseckos NDOMISoNCreEn no OKB30 27
OprasuzauroHHo-npaecean dopma/ dopua coboreennooT: |
CmepeiTos sKuMoHepHoe obwecTeo’ YaoTHas no OKON$/OKeC|13247 | 16
EOVHMUE HIMEDEHHA! ToierEysy MM, pyi. no OKEM 284385

MecToHaxoeaeHne (aapec): 453000, r. MarsuToropck, vn. Knposa, 93

MomcHes Ha 21 gexafpm | Ha 31 gekabpa | Ha 31 oekabps
o HauMeHoEaHWE NoOKa3aTENR Koa 015 - 3014 r 2013 r

AKTHE

L BHEOBOPOTHBIE AKTHELI
TN 1.1. |HemaTepuanssble SKTHER 1110 EL 373 377

E TOM 4MCnE:

npwoBpETEHME HEMaTepHaNkLHEN asTreos | 1111 225 201 171

TN 1.4. |Pesynetate woccnegosamnit v paspaboros 1120 i24 106 106

HeMaTepHansHeIE NOMCKOSEIE AKTHEES 1130 - 52 32
MaTepsans Hele NOMCKOELIE 3KTHE 1140 - - -

OcHoexble CDEOCTER, obo DYODEIHHE K
YCTadHOSXE, BENONEHHRA BO HHEGE‘DP‘D’I’-H:IE

EKTHESRI 1130 109 226 122 593 131 925
E TOM 4MCNE:
m 2.1. OCHOEHEIE CREOCTES 1151 G4 447 102 841 114 178
m 2.2. oBODYOoSEHHE K YCTaH0EKE 1152 3 004 9997 10 271
m 2.2. ENCEEHHA B0 BHE0bopoTHRE aKTHER 1153 6 567 7317 7476
MoogHsle BNOEEHHA B M3TEDHANEHEE
LEHHOCTH 1160 - - -
TN 3.1. [Pesadcossls BENOKEHHWA 1170 63 366 58 894 61 343
OTnoweHHsI2 HANOMOBLIE SKTHER 1180 12 843 B 386 7 881
nas. Mpodwe enecfopoTHENE 35THER! 1150 6259 392 678
WTOIMD no paageny I 1100 186 552 191 396 202 362
II. OBOPOTHLIE AKTWELI
ns. 3anackl 1210 38 689 33 444 28 5599

E TOM YHCNE:
CIDBE,HaTEDHANEl K OpyTHE

SHANOrH<HEIE LEHHOCTHA 1211 26 936 23 345 19 799
IFTPETEl B HEIZESDIUSHHOM
NpoHZEQACTES 1212 7 047 & 733 3 988
roToE3A NPoAYKUMA W TOB3peLl ANA
nepenpogaxH 1213 4 703 3 342 2 811
TOESp&l OTTPYHEHHLIE 1214 1 2 1
npo4He 33anacsl W 3aTPaThl 1215 - - -
Hanor Ha QobaEneHHY D CTOHMOCTE MO
NpHODDETEHHEIM LEHHOCTRAM 1220 2 331 2 315 1 696
TN 4.1. |Nefuroprxan 3350 KEHHOCTE 1230 31191 33 517 21 651

B TOM “HCne:
NoKyMaTens W ZakazqukM (be3 yyeta
3IAA0NEEHHOCTH AOHEPHME M 32BMCHMEILX

ofimerrel 1231 17 628 21 318 5 D4
3FACMEEHHOCTE GOMEPHME M IZEWCHMBIN
obwecTe 1232 5 243 7 330 8074

2EaHCH BRaHHEe [Dez yueTa
3I3A0MEEHHOCTH JOHEDHMX M 32EMCHMELX

obwecTs) 1233 667 1195 1380
DHHIHCOBLIE ENOKEHHA (33 HCKNIOHEHHEM
TN 3.1, |gsHewsHbly SKEMSINSHTOE ) 1240 23 367 12 500 174
OeHewHble CPROCTES M ASHEWHLIE
ns. SKEMERNEHTHE 1230 23 331 14 514 3137
nas. Mpoyse obopOTHEE SETHER 1260 317 256 129
WTOM no pazgeny II 1200 121 426 96 SB6 35 386
BAMAHC (cysma crpow 1100+1200 ) 1600 307 973 288 582 257 748
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26 ¢eepann 2016 roaa

MNoncHen Ha 31 gexabps | Ha 31 gexabps | Ha 31 aexabps
ua I S —— Koa 2015 . 2014 r. 2013 r.
NACCHB
III. KANWUTANT W PE3EPBbLI
Verasssift kanutan (Cxnagodmmit xkanuran,
yCTasHBIA (HOHA, BXNBAM TOBADHLLEH) 1310 11 174 11174 11 174
UobETadnHbE BRURK, BRIRYNAZHHME Y
1320 - - (65)
13‘0 - - -
1350 24 714 24 714 24 714
1380 559 559 58y
1370 107 949 83752 92 461
| |utoro no paaseny 1300 144 396 120 199 128 843
IV. AONTOCPOYHLIE OSﬂQATEﬂbCTBA
na. 38ENHEIE COEACTEA 1410 50 766 79 634 56 680
B TOM YHCne:
kpeants Sanxos, nognexaume
norawenwmio Gonee veu yepes 12
Tn4.3. MECAUES NOCNE OTWETHOW AaTel 1411 S0 527 72 426 077
3afMbl, NOANEXAWME Norawenno Gonee
YeMm Yepes 12 MeCAUEB NOCHEe OTHETHOR
TN 4.3. AaThl 1412 239 J 208 10 603
OTROXEHHLIE HANROrOBLIe ODA3ATEAMCTES 1420 18 448 17 310 16 334
TN 6. |Ouenounnie oba3arenscrea 1430 8211 4179 4 506
Npoae th e - - 2
UTOIMO no pa 1400 77 425 101 123 77 520
V. KPATKOCPOMHBIE OSR3ATEanTBA
|n. 4 3aemHsle cpeacTea 1510 53 500 36 086 23 363
D TOM “Imene!
KpeanTs 6aHK0B, NoAnexalme
NOralennio B Teyenne 12 Mechues nocne
TNn4.3. orueTHo# Aarel 1511 43 218 29 768 7 654
SaAMB, NOANEXAWME NOTAWEHND B
TeweHHe 12 MECALER NOCNE OTYETHOM
TN4.3. _A8Th 1512 10 282 6 318 15 709
TN 4.3. |KpeanTopckan 3af0nXeHHOCTs 1520 30 950 29 680 26 544
O TOM ‘IMCne:
NOCTABWMKM W NoApAANMKK (6e3 yuera
32A0MKENHOCTH NEPEA ACHEPHHMH W
FARMCUMRING D CTRAMMN) 1521 20877 16 189 15 844
SBAOMKEHHOCTL NEPe NEPCOHANOM
OpraHu3aimMmn 1522 3545 525 547
38A0/KEHHOCTL NEPEA MOCYARPCTBEH-
Hbiuu BHeGoKETHEIMN DOMAIMH 1523 251 222 226
3B40/KEHHOCTL NO Hanoram u cbopam 1524 376 2153 792
JAAOMKEHHOCT NEPES AOHEPHUMH W
33BUCUMBINK MM 1525 5301 3258 5 257
apaMcel nonyuennsie (6e3 yyera
330/DKEHHOCTH NEPEA AOUEPHHNM 1
3aBMCUMBINN oBwecTeamm) 1526 3381 7071 3 530
XOAb! XN 1530 219 222 70
T 6. MEIHNE SENTRTRNLSTRR 1684n 1439 ki 1337
a— pouMe_obRlaTenicraa 1550 43 91 71
ne 1500 86 157 67 260 51 385
307 978 288 582 257 748

n. B. Wunres
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OTYET O ®PMHAHCOBBLIX PE3YNbTATAX

3a 2015 rom

KOk
dopma no OKY 0710002
Hata (4ucno, mecaw, roal| 21 12 | 2015
OpraHuzauna: OAD "MardMToropoKMi METanNyYprMYeckria
- no OKMNO 00186424
HasHTHEHKAUWHOHHLIA HOMSD HanoronAaTenswWrEa: 74140035833 HWHH 7414003633
Bra sKoHOMHYSCKON AeATEenEHOOTH: MeTannypruseckos NponIsoncTes no OKB2L 27
OpraHMzauMoHHo-npagcean gopmal Gopma coboreeHHooTH |
no OKONE/OKRC|1 22 47 16
EQMHHLE WIMSpeHWA! TerpyE MnH. pyh. no OKEK =224/385
n?-:::e HawmexoeaHue nokazaTens Kog 3a 2015 roa 3a 2014 roa
nas. Buipy4xa 2110 314 115 266 478
TN 5. |CebecroumocTe npogam 2120 (217 605} (206 218)
Banocean npuiene [yosmoK) 2100 96 510 60 260
TN 5. |Kommepyeckue pacxogbl 2210 {18 579) (13 831)
TN 5. |¥npasnexyeckue pacxodsl 2220 (5 853) (6 553)
MpuEeine (yoemok] oT Npogax 2200 72 078 39 876
Aoxogel OT Y43CTHA B APYIWMX OpraHWzauMax 2310 274 308
MpPoOUSHTEl K NOMYHEHHID 2320 2 621 335
MpousHTH K ynnaTe 2330 (5 1838) (4 301)
na. Mpo4qme goxoas 2340 72 783 20 666
ns. Mpouque packogsl 2350 (104 106) (69 774)
Mpuboine (yosmok] o Hanoroobnoxenus 2300 38 462 (2 067}
na. Tekylwmi Hanor Ha Npudbne 2410 {10 951) (143)
chrssrenserea (axwes) 2421 - 1195
na. MameHene OTNOMEHHEIX HANCrOBsx 00AZaTENLCTE 2430 (1 148) {1 380)
na. HMameneHue OTNOMEHHEIX HANOMOBBIX AKTHEOE 2450 4 299 742
MNpovas 2460 A6 570
B TOM YWChE!
wrpadsl, NeEHM Mo HANOraM 2461 (4} 3
Hanor Ha npubeine Npownsx Nepuogos 2462 21 1538
e, N
Yucran nprbeins (yoemor) 2400 20 678 (2 278)
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Moscke |15 umenosanue nokasarens Koa 3a 2015 roa 3a 2014 roa

CNPABOYHO:

Pe3aynbTarT OT NePeoLeHK BHEOBOPOTHLIX AKTHBOBR, He

BKAYACMBIA B YMCTYI0 Npubsine (ybeiTox) nepuona 2810

PeaynbTar oT NPOYMX ONEepaumii, He BKvaeMsild B

YucTy10 Npubsink (ybuiTok) nepuoaa 2520 - -

COBOKYNHbIR (DMHAHCOBLIA Pe3ynLTaT nepuoaa 2500 30 678 (2 278)
n10. |Ba3osas npubuinb (YELTOK) Ha akuwio, pys. 2900 2,75 (0,20)

Pa3BoAHEHHan Npubuink (YOLITOK) HA AKLUMIO 2910 = B

n. B. Wunses
FUETHBIN LEHTP" %‘Z " M. E. Xasosa
14 N 222218) ( b)

v
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®duHaHcoBasa otyueTtHoCcTb OAO «MMK>» no IFRS 3a 2015 roa
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OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND
APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
present fairly the financial position of Open Joint Stock Company Magnitogorsk Iron & Steel
Works and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) at 31 December 2015, and the results of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended, in compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS").

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for:

properly selecting and applying accounting policies;

presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides
relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;

providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS
is insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
events and conditions on the Group’s financial position and financial performance;

making an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Management is also responsible for:

designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal
controls, throughout the Group;

maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group, and which enable them to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group comply with IFRS;

maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with statutory legislation and
accounting standards;

taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the
Group; and

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 were approved
for issuance on 15 February 2016 by:

%‘/’ -

M. E. Khazova ./

Director of 000 MMK-ACCOUNTING
CENTER, a specialized organization, which
performs the accounting function for
0JSC Magnitogorsk Iron & Steel Works

15 February 2016
Magnitogorsk, Russia
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of OJSC Magnitogorsk Iron & Steel Works:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Open Joint Stock Company
Magnitogorsk Iron & Steel Works and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015 and the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

A P renaiinsoveseloctors A

15 February 2016
Moscow, Russian Federation

AO PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit
White Square Office Center 10 Butyrsky Val Moscow, Russia, 125047
T: +7(495) 967-6000, F:+7 (495) 967-6001, www.pwce.ru



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Years ended
31 December

Notes 2015 2014
REVENUE 6 5,839 7,952
COST OF SALES 8 (4,054) (6,212)
GROSS PROFIT 1,785 1,740
General and administrative expenses 9 (221) (381)
Selling and distribution expenses 10 (448) (529)
Other operating expenses, net 11 - (27)
OPERATING PROFIT 1,116 803
Share of results of associates 2 1
Finance income 37 13
Finance costs 13 (147) (173)
Foreign exchange loss, net (173) (622)
Impairment losses / (reversal of impairment losses)
and provision for site restoration 15, 22 (179) 20
Other income - 2
Other expenses 12 (43) (98)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 613 (54)
INCOME TAX 14 (192) 10
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 421 (44)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSSES)
Items, that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Decrease in fair value of available-for-sale investments 18 (103) (394)
Translation of foreign operations 250 870
Items, that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (7) 7
Effect of translation to presentation currency (1,070) (3,232)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX (930) (2,749)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (509) (2,793)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company 420 (43)
Non-controlling interests 1 (1)
421 (44)
Total comprehensive losses attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company (490) (2,792)
Non-controlling interests (19) (1)
(509) (2,793)
BASIC AND DILUTED PROFIT/(LOSSES) PER SHARE (U.S. Dollars) 0.038 (0.004)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (in
thousands) 11,162,183 11,154,352

The notes on pages 6 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars)

31 December

Notes 2015 2014
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Property, plant and equipment 15 3,764 5,072
Other intangible assets 18 24
Investments in securities and other financial assets 18 214 352
Investments in associates 2 1
Deferred tax assets 14 65 144
Other non-current assets 30 4
Total non-current assets 4,093 5,597
CURRENT ASSETS:
Inventories 16 877 1,007
Trade and other receivables 17 375 558
Investments in securities and other financial assets 18 359 230
Income tax receivable 14 26
Value added tax recoverable 70 112
Cash and cash equivalents 19 369 327
Total current assets 2,064 2,260
TOTAL ASSETS 6,157 7,857
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY:
Share capital 20 386 386
Treasury shares 20 (1) (13)
Share premium 969 995
Investments revaluation reserve 18 121 224
Translation reserve (5,940) (5,140)
Retained earnings 7,772 7,458
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company 3,307 3,910
Non-controlling interests 13 32
Total equity 3,320 3,942
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term borrowings 21 954 1,722
Retirement benefit obligations 13 10
Site restoration provision 22 £6 88
Deferred tax liabilities 14 323 487
Total non-current liabilities 1,416 2,307
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term
borrowings 25 893 863
Current portion of retirement benefit obligations 3 2
Trade and other payables 24 516 736
Current portion of site restoration provision 22 8 6
Net assets attributable to minority participants 1 1
Total current liabilities 1,421 1,608
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,157 7,857

M. E. Khazova 7

Director of OO0 MMK-ACCOUNTING
CENTER, a specialized organization, which
performs the accounting function for
0JSC Magnitogorsk Iron & Steel Works

15 February 2016
Magnitogorsk, Russia

The notes on pages 6 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(In millions of U.S. Dollars)

Investments Non-
Share Treasury Share revaluation Translation Retained controlling

Notes capital shares premium reserve reserve earnings Total interests Total
BALANCE AT 1 JANUARY 2014 386 (30) 1,020 618 (2,778) 7,612 6,828 33 6,861
Loss for the year - - - - - (43) (43) (1) (44)
Other comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year, net of
tax - - - (394) (2,362) 7 (2,749) - (2,749)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year - - - (394) (2,362) (36)  (2,792) (1)  (2,793)
Purchase of treasury shares - (68) - - - - (68) - (68)
Issuance of ordinary shares from
treasury shares - 85 (25) - - - 60 - 60
Dividends 20 - - - - - (118) (118) - (118)
BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER
2014 386 (13) 995 224 (5,140) 7,458 3,910 32 3,942
Profit for the year - - - - - 420 420 1 421
Other comprehensive loss for the
year, net of tax - - - (103) (800) (7) (910) (20) (930)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year - - - (103) (800) 413 (490) (19) (509)
Purchase of treasury shares - (282) - - - - (282) - (282)
Issuance of ordinary shares from
treasury shares - 294 (8) - - - 286 - 286
Deferred tax asset write-off
relating to disposal of treasury
shares 14 (18) (18) (18)
Dividends 20 - - - - - (99) (99) - (99)
BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER
2015 386 (1) 969 121 (5,940) 7,772 3,307 13 3,320

The notes on pages 6 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY

MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars)

Years ended 31 December

Notes 2015 2014
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit/(Loss) for the year 421 (44)
Adjustments to loss for the year:
Income tax 192 (10)
Depreciation and amortisation 8,9, 10 535 746
Finance costs 13 147 173
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 11 15 57
Reversal of impairment losses /(impairment losses)
and provision for site restoration 15, 22 179 (20)
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts
receivable 11 1 3
Loss on disposal securities 11 2 -
Loss on revaluation of trading securities 11, 18 - 1
Change in allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items and write down to net realisable
value 16 28 14
Finance income (37) (13)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 11 (6) -
Income from available-for-sale investments 11 (6) (28)
Foreign exchange loss, net 173 622
Gain on sale of assets held for sale - (1)
Impairment losses on investments - 1
Share of associates results (2) (1)
Operating cashflow before working capital changes 1,642 1,500
Movements in working capital
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 59 (226)
Decrease in value added tax recoverable 1 23
Increase in inventories (75) (36)
(Increase) / decrease in investments classified as
trading securities (2) 1
Increase in trade and other payables 34 191
Cash generated from operations 1,659 1,453
Interest paid (123) (157)
Income tax paid (180) (40)
Net cash generated by operating activities 1,356 1,25
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (348) (497)
Purchase of intangible assets (4) (9)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 15 11
Interest received 34 13
Proceeds from sale of assets classified as held for sale - 19
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries, net of disposed cash 4 7
Loans given - (4)
Loans repaid - 24
Bank deposits, net (128) (222)
Dividends received from available-for-sale investments 6 28
Net cash used in investing activities (421) (630)

The notes on pages 6 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(CONTINUED)

(In millions of U.S. Dollars)

Years ended 31 December

Notes 2015 2014
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from borrowings 548 1,353
Repayments of borrowings (1,142) (1,487)
Purchase of treasury shares (282) (68)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares from treasury
shares 286 60
Dividends paid to equity holders of the Parent Company 20 (103) (117)
Net cash used in financing activities (693) (259)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 242 367
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 327 154
Effect of translation to presentation currency and exchange
rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign
currencies (200) (194)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 19 369 327

The notes on pages 6 to 57 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

0JSC Magnitogorsk Iron & Steel Works (“the Parent Company”) is an open joint stock
company. The Parent Company was established as a state owned enterprise in 1932. It was
incorporated as an open joint stock company on 17 October 1992 as part of and in
accordance with the Russian Federation privatisation program.

The Parent Company, together with its subsidiaries (“the Group”), is a producer of ferrous
metal products. The Group’s products are sold in the Russian Federation and internationally.
The subsidiaries of the Parent Company are mainly involved in the various sub-processes
within the production cycle of ferrous metal products or in the distribution of those products.

The Parent Company’s registered office is 93, Kirova street, Magnitogorsk, Chelyabinsk
region, Russia, 455000.

As at 31 December 2015 the Parent Company’s major shareholder was Mintha Holding
Limited with a 87.3% ownership interest (at 31 December 2014: Mintha Holding Limited
with 87.3%).

The ultimate beneficiary of the Parent Company is Mr. Viktor F. Rashnikov, the Chairman of
its Board of Directors.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s principal subsidiaries were as follows:
Effective % held

at 31 December
Nature of business 2015 2014

Subsidiary by country of incorporation

Russian Federation
0JSC Metizno-Kalibrovochny Zavod “MMK-
Metiz”

Production of metal hardware
products 95.78 95.78

LLC IK MMK Finance Investing activities 100.00 100.00

CJSC Stroitelny Fond Renting services 100.00 100.00

CJSC Stroitelny Komplex Construction 100.00 100.00
Production of refractory

CJSC Ogneupor materials 100.00 100.00
Maintenance of metallurgical

CJSC Mekhanoremontny Komplex equipment 100.00 100.00

CJSC Mechanoremont Renting services 100.00 100.00
Production of cement and

0JSC MTSOZz refractory materials 100.00 100.00
Collection and processing of

CJSC Profit metal scrap 100.00 100.00

LLC Torgovy Dom MMK Trading activities 100.00 100.00
Holding company, trading

OJSC Belon activities 95.40 95.40

CJSC Shakhta Kostromovskaya Coal mining 99.98 95.40

LLC Shakhta Chertinskaya-Yuzhnaya Coal mining 95.40 95.40

LLC Shakhta Chertinskaya-Koksovaya Coal mining 95.40 95.40

Cyprus

Onarbay Enterprises Ltd Holding company 100.00 100.00

Turkey
Production of ferrous metal

MMK Metalurji products 100.00 100.00

Switzerland

MMK Steel Trade AG Trading activities 100.00 100.00

Luxemburg

MMK-Mining Assets Management S.A. Holding company 100.00 100.00




OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The effective ownerships indicated in the table above are also the nominal holdings, except
for LLC Shakhta Chertinskaya-Yuzhnaya and LLC Shakhta Chertinskaya-Koksovaya where
100% is held by OJSC Belon, Shakhta Kostromovskaya where 100% is held by OJSC Belon
and 0JSC MMK (0.37% and 99.63%, respectively).

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
New Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted

Certain new standards and interpretations have been issued that are mandatory for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 or later, and which the Group has not
early adopted.

IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement” (issued in
July 2014 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).
Key features of the new standard are:

o Financial assets are required to be classified into three measurement categories: those
to be measured subsequently at amortised cost, those to be measured subsequently at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and those to be measured
subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

o Classification for debt instruments is driven by the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and whether the contractual cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI). If a debt instrument is held to collect, it may
be carried at amortised cost if it also meets the SPPI requirement. Debt instruments
that meet the SPPI requirement that are held in a portfolio where an entity both holds
to collect assets’ cash flows and sells assets may be classified as FVOCI. Financial
assets that do not contain cash flows that are SPPI must be measured at FVPL (for
example, derivatives). Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from financial
assets but will be included in assessing the SPPI condition.

. Investments in equity instruments are always measured at fair value. However,
management can make an irrevocable election to present changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income, provided the instrument is not held for trading. If the equity
instrument is held for trading, changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss.

o Most of the requirements in IAS 39 for classification and measurement of financial
liabilities were carried forward unchanged to IFRS 9. The key change is that an entity
will be required to present the effects of changes in own credit risk of financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss in other comprehensive income.

. IFRS 9 introduces a new model for the recognition of impairment losses - the expected
credit losses (ECL) model. There is a ‘three stage’ approach which is based on the
change in credit quality of financial assets since initial recognition. In practice, the new
rules mean that entities will have to record an immediate loss equal to the
12-month ECL on initial recognition of financial assets that are not credit impaired (or
lifetime ECL for trade receivables). Where there has been a significant increase in
credit risk, impairment is measured using lifetime ECL rather than 12-month ECL. The
model includes operational simplifications for lease and trade receivables.



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
(CONTINUED)

. Hedge accounting requirements were amended to align accounting more closely with
risk management. The standard provides entities with an accounting policy choice
between applying the hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 and continuing to
apply IAS 39 to all hedges because the standard currently does not address accounting
for macro hedging.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the new standard on its consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (issued on 28 May 2014 and
effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018). The new standard
introduces the core principle that revenue must be recognised when the goods or services
are transferred to the customer, at the transaction price. Any bundled goods or services that
are distinct must be separately recognised, and any discounts or rebates on the contract
price must generally be allocated to the separate elements. When the consideration varies
for any reason, minimum amounts must be recognised if they are not at significant risk of
reversal. Costs incurred to secure contracts with customers have to be capitalised and
amortised over the period when the benefits of the contract are consumed.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the new standard on its consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 16 "Leases" (issued in January 2016 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The new standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. All leases result in the
lessee obtaining the right to use an asset at the start of the lease and, if lease payments are
made over time, also obtaining financing. Accordingly, IFRS 16 eliminates the classification
of leases as either operating leases or finance leases as is required by IAS 17 and, instead,
introduces a single lessee accounting model. Lessees will be required to recognise:
(a) assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value; and (b) depreciation of lease assets separately from
interest on lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. IFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a
lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account
for those two types of leases differently.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the new standard on its consolidated financial
statements. Lease commitments are disclosed in Note 29.

The following other new pronouncements are not expected to have any material impact on
the Group when adopted:

. IFRS 14, Regulatory deferral accounts (issued in January 2014 and effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016).

. Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations - Amendments to IFRS 11
(issued on 6 May 2014 and effective for the periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016).

. Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation - Amendments to
IAS 16 and IAS 38 (issued on 12 May 2014 and effective for the periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016).



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
(CONTINUED)

. Agriculture: Bearer plants - Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 (issued on
30 June 2014 and effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2016).

. Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments to IAS 27 (issued on
12 August 2014 and effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2016).

. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses - Amendments to IAS 12
(issued in January 2016 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017).

. Disclosure Initiative - Amendments to IAS 7 (issued on 29 January 2016 and effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

o Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture -
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (issued on 11 September 2014 and effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016).

o Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 (issued on 25 September 2014 and effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016). Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to IAS 1 (issued in December 2014 and effective for annual periods on or
after 1 January 2016).

o Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception Amendment to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28 (issued in December 2014 and effective for annual periods on or
after 1 January 2016).

Unless otherwise described above, the new standards and interpretations are not expected
to affect significantly the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

International Financial Reporting Standards (“"IFRS”) include Standards and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB").

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS.

The Group additionally prepares IFRS consolidated financial statements presented in Russian
roubles and in Russian language in accordance with the Federal Law No. 208 - FZ “On
consolidated financial reporting”.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the initial recognition of financial instruments based on fair value

and derivative financial instruments, which are accounted for at fair value.

Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently applied the accounting policies set
out in Note 4 to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

The Group has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards,
including any consequential amendments to other standards, with a date of initial application
of 1 January 2015.

a. Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions - Amendments to IAS 19 (issued in
November 2013 and effective for annual periods beginning 1 July 2014);

b. Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards 2012 and 2013 (issued
in December 2013 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014).

The changes had no significant impact on the measurements of the Group’s assets and
liabilities or disclosures.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group
entities, except as explained in Note 3, which addresses changes in accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

These consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are those investees, including structured entities,
that the Group controls because the Group (i) has power to direct the relevant activities of
the investees that significantly affect their returns, (ii) has exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investees, and (iii) has the ability to use its power
over the investees to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. The existence and effect of
substantive rights, including substantive potential voting rights, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has power over another entity. For a right to be substantive,
the holder must have a practical ability to exercise that right when decisions about the
direction of the relevant activities of the investee need to be made. The Group may have
power over an investee even when it holds less than the majority of the voting power in an
investee. In such a case, the Group assesses the size of its voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders to determine if it has de-facto power
over the investee. Protective rights of other investors, such as those that relate to
fundamental changes of the investee’s activities or apply only in exceptional circumstances,
do not prevent the Group from controlling an investee. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group (acquisition date) and are
deconsolidated from the date on which control ceases.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity
therein. The interests of non-controlling shareholders may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-
controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the purchase consideration and
the carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired is recorded as a capital transaction
directly in equity. The Group recognises the difference between sales consideration and the
carrying amount of non-controlling interest sold as a capital transaction in the statement of
changes in equity.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings) in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of. The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: recognition and measurement” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly
controlled entity.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate
in excess of the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate) are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of that investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

When a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Functional and presentation currency

Different entities within the Group have different functional currencies, based on the
underlying economic conditions of their operations.
The functional currency of the Group’s entities except for MMK Metalurji and MMK Steel
Trade AG is the Russian Rouble ("RUB”). The functional currency of MMK Metalurji and MMK
Steel Trade AG is the United States Dollar ("USD").

These consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of USD. Using USD as a
presentation currency is considered by management to be more relevant for users of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The translation into presentation currency is made as follows:

o all assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, are translated at closing
exchange rates at the dates of each consolidated statement of financial position
presented;

. all items included in the consolidated shareholders’ equity, other than net income, are

translated at historical exchange rates;

. all income and expenses in each consolidated statement of comprehensive income are
translated at exchange rates in effect when the transactions occur. For those
transactions that occur evenly over the year an average exchange rate for the year is
applied;

o resulting exchange differences are included in other comprehensive income as “Effect
of translation to presentation currency”; and

. in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash balances at the beginning and end of
each year presented are translated at exchange rates at the respective dates of the
beginning and end of each year. All cash flows are translated at exchange rates in
effect when the cash flows occur. For those cash flows that occur evenly over the year
an average exchange rate for the year is applied. Resulting exchange differences are
presented separately from cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
as “Effect of translation to presentation currency”.
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OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Exchange rates used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements were as follows:

31 December

2015 2014
Russian Rouble/US Dollar
Year-end rates 72.88 56.26
Average for the period 60.85 38.67

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currencies of the Group’s entities
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At each statement of financial position date monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the
date of statement of financial position. Exchange differences arising from changes in
exchange rates are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within “Foreign exchange gain/loss — net”. Non-monetary items carried at historical cost are
translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency, including equity investments, are translated at
the exchange rate prevailing on the date on which the most recent fair value was
determined. Effects of exchange rate changes on non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are recorded as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration for each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values (at the
date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, measured at its acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent changes in such fair values, other than equity-related contingent
consideration, are adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they qualify as
measurement period adjustments (see below). All other subsequent changes in the fair
value of contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability are accounted for in
accordance with relevant IFRS.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held interests in
the acquired entity are remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date the
Group attains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss,
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
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OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12 “Income taxes”
and IAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement by the Group of an
acquiree’s share-based payment awards are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
“Share-based payment”; and

) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with
IFRS 5 “"Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items
for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period (see below), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group
obtains complete information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date - and is subject to a maximum of one year.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the date that control
is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is described above.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of consideration received net of applicable provisions for
discounts, allowances, associated value-added taxes and export duties.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below. When the fair value of
goods received in a barter transaction cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is
measured at the fair value of the goods or service given up.

Revenues from sales of goods are recognised at the point of transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods, normally when the goods are shipped. If the Group agrees to
transport goods to a specified location, revenue is recognised when the goods are passed to
the customer at the destination point.

Sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered,
by reference to the stage of completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of
the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of assets that necessarily take a substantial time to get ready for intended use or
sale (qualifying assets) are capitalised as part of the costs of those assets, if the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 January 20009.

The commencement date for capitalisation is when (a) the Group incurs expenditures for the
qualifying asset; (b) it incurs borrowing costs; and (c) it undertakes activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs continues up to the date when the assets are substantially
ready for their use or sale.

The Group capitalises borrowing costs that could have been avoided if it had not made
capital expenditure on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs capitalised are calculated at the
Group’s average funding cost (the weighted average interest cost is applied to the
expenditures on the qualifying assets), except to the extent that funds are borrowed
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Where this occurs, actual
borrowing costs incurred on the specific borrowings less any investment income on the
temporary investment of these borrowings are capitalised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income tax

Income taxes have been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with legislation enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
income tax charge comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognised in profit or loss
for the year, except if it is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
because it relates to transactions that are also recognised, in the same or a different period,
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount expected to be paid to, or recovered from, the taxation authorities
in respect of taxable profits or losses for the current and prior periods. Taxable profit differs
from profit for the year as reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the date of consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit when initially
recorded.

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards are
recorded only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in
the future and there is sufficient future taxable profit available against which the deductions
can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the date of consolidated statement
of financial position. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted only within the
individual companies of the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Group controls the reversal of temporary differences relating to taxes chargeable on
dividends from subsidiaries or on gains upon their disposal. The Group does not recognise
deferred tax liabilities on such temporary differences except to the extent that Management
expects the temporary differences to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Uncertain tax positions

The Group's uncertain tax positions are reassessed by management at the end of each
reporting period. Liabilities are recorded for income tax positions that are determined by
management as more likely than not to result in additional taxes being levied if the positions
were to be challenged by the tax authorities. The assessment is based on the interpretation
of tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, and any known court or other rulings on such issues. Liabilities for penalties, interest
and taxes other than on income are recognised based on management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligations at the end of the reporting period.
Adjustments for uncertain income tax positions are recorded within the income tax charge.

Property, plant and equipment
Manufacturing assets

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and equipment at 1 January 2007, the
date of transition to IFRSs, was determined by reference to its fair value at that date.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Repair and maintenance expenses are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Construction in progress comprises costs directly related to the construction of property,
plant and equipment including an appropriate allocation of directly attributable variable
overheads that are incurred in construction. Depreciation of these assets is recorded on the
same basis as for other property assets, and begins when it is available for use, ie when it is
in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.

At each reporting date management assesses whether there is any indication of impairment
of property, plant and equipment. If any such indication exists, management estimates the
recoverable amount, which is determined as the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use. The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the
impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss. An impairment loss recognised for an
asset in prior years is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s value in use or fair value less costs to sell.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within “Other operating income/expense, net”.

17



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Mineral rights

Mineral rights are presented as part of Mining assets and include rights for evaluation,
exploration and production of mineral resources under the licences or agreements. Such
assets are carried at cost, amortisation is charged on a straight line basis over the shorter of
the valid period of the license or the agreement, or the expected life of mine, starting from
the date when production activities commence. The costs directly attributable to acquisition
of rights for evaluation, exploration and production are capitalised as a part of the mineral
rights. If the reserves related to the mineral rights are not economically viable, the carrying
amount of such mineral rights is written off.

Depreciation

Depreciation of manufacturing assets is computed under the straight-line method utilising
useful lives of the assets which are:

Buildings 15-50 years
Machinery and equipment 2-30 years
Transportation equipment 3-20 years
Fixtures and fittings 3-30 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values, and depreciation method are reviewed at each
reporting date, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Leased assets

Leases under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Assets subject to finance leases are capitalised as property,
plant and equipment at the lower of fair value of the leased asset or present value of future
minimum lease payments at the date of acquisition, with the related lease obligation
recognised at the same value. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
estimated economic useful lives or over the term of the lease, if shorter. If there is
reasonable certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the
period of expected use is useful life of the asset.

Finance lease payments are allocated using the effective interest rate method, between the
finance cost and the capital repayment, which reduces the related lease obligation to the
lessor. The Group doesn’t have material finance lease agreements.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Intangible assets, excluding goodwill
Intangible assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Intangible assets primarily represent licenses and various purchased software costs.
Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives which are:

Licenses 3-25 years
Purchased software 1-10 years
Other intangibles 1-10 years
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets, excluding goodwill

Tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
determined on the weighted average basis and includes all costs in bringing the inventory to
its present location and condition.

Cost includes direct material, labour and allocable material and manufacturing overheads.
Costs of production in process and finished goods include the purchase costs of raw
materials and conversion costs such as direct labour and an allocation of fixed and variable
production overheads. Raw materials are valued at purchase cost inclusive of freight and
other shipping costs.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less estimated
costs to completion and selling costs. Where appropriate, an allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory is recognised. The impairment charged to reduce the carrying
amount of inventories to their net realisable value and an allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory are included in consolidated statement of comprehensive income as cost
of sales.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Deferred drifting costs

The direct costs and attributable overheads of the preparation of underground coal reserves
(drifting) for production using advanced mining machinery are included in inventory and
recognised as cost of sales on the unit of production basis of each coal drift.

Value added taxes

Output value added tax related to sales is payable to tax authorities on the earlier of
(a) collection of receivables from customers or (b) delivery of goods or services to
customers. Input VAT is generally recoverable against output VAT upon receipt of the VAT
invoice. The tax authorities permit the settlement of VAT on a net basis. VAT related to sales
and purchases is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position on a gross
basis and disclosed separately as an asset and liability.

Financial instruments - key measurement terms

Depending on their classification financial instruments are carried at fair value or amortised
cost as described below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The best
evidence of fair value is the price in an active market. An active market is one in which
transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is measured as the product of
the quoted price for the individual asset or liability and the number of instruments held by
the entity. This is the case even if a market’s normal daily trading volume is not sufficient to
absorb the quantity held and placing orders to sell the position in a single transaction might
affect the quoted price.

Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or models based on recent arm’s
length transactions or consideration of financial data of the investees are used to measure
fair value of certain financial instruments for which external market pricing information is
not available. Fair value measurements are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as
follows: (i) level one are measurements at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities, (ii) level two measurements are valuations techniques with all
material inputs observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and (iii) level three measurements are valuations
not based on solely observable market data (that is, the measurement requires significant
unobservable inputs).

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other
consideration given to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition and includes transaction
costs. Measurement at cost is only applicable to investments in equity instruments that do
not have a quoted market price and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to, and must be settled by, delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue
or disposal of a financial instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have been
incurred if the transaction had not taken place. Transaction costs include fees and
commissions paid to agents (including employees acting as selling agents), advisors, brokers
and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and
duties. Transaction costs do not include debt premiums or discounts, financing costs or
internal administrative or holding costs.

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognised at initial
recognition less any principal repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less
any write-down for incurred impairment losses. Accrued interest includes amortisation of
transaction costs deferred at initial recognition and of any premium or discount to the
maturity amount using the effective interest method. Accrued interest income and accrued
interest expense, including both accrued coupon and amortised discount or premium
(including fees deferred at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are included
in the carrying values of the related items in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The effective interest method is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense
over the relevant period, so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective
interest rate) on the carrying amount. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (excluding future credit losses)
through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, if appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The effective interest rate discounts
cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest repricing date, except for the
premium or discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate specified in the
instrument, or other variables that are not reset to market rates. Such premiums or
discounts are amortised over the whole expected life of the instrument. The present value
calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets have the following categories: (a) loans and receivables; (b) available-for-
sale financial assets; (c) financial assets held to maturity and (d) financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have
two sub-categories: (i) assets designated as such upon initial recognition, and (ii) those
classified as held for trading.

Loans and receivables are unquoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments other than those that the Group intends to sell in the near term.

Held-to-maturity assets include quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group has both the intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Management determines the classification of investment
securities held to maturity at their initial recognition and reassesses the appropriateness of
that classification at the end of each reporting period.

Held-for-trading investments are financial assets which are either acquired for generating a
profit from short-term fluctuations in price or trader’s margin, or are securities included in a
portfolio in which a pattern of short-term trading exists.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets designated
irrevocably, at initial recognition, into this category. Management designates financial assets
into this category only if (a) such classification eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or (b) a group of financial
assets, financial liabilities or both is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information on that basis is regularly provided to and reviewed by the Group’s key
management personnel. Recognition and measurement of this category of financial assets is
consistent with the accounting policy for trading investments.

All other financial assets are included in the available-for-sale category, which includes
investment securities which the Group intends to hold for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange
rates or equity prices.

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial asset out of the fair
value through profit or loss category if the asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling
it in the near term. Financial assets other than loans and receivables are permitted to be
reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss category only in rare circumstances
arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to reoccur in the near term.
Financial assets that would meet the definition of loans and receivables may be reclassified if
the Group has the intention and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity.

Initial recognition of financial instruments

Trading investments and derivatives are initially recorded at their fair value. All other
financial assets and liabilities are initially recorded at their fair value plus transaction costs.
Fair value at initial recognition is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on
initial recognition is only recorded if there is a difference between fair value and the
transaction price which can be evidenced by other observable current market transactions in
the same instrument or by a valuation technique whose inputs include only data from
observable markets.

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame
established by regulation or market convention (“regular way” purchases and sales) are
recorded at their trade date, which is the date that the Group commits to deliver a financial
asset. All other purchases are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises financial assets when (a) the assets are redeemed or the rights to
cash flows from the assets otherwise expire or (b) the Group has transferred the rights to
the cash flows from the financial assets or entered into a qualifying pass-through
arrangement whilst (i) also transferring substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets or (ii) neither transferring nor retaining substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership but not retaining control.

Control is retained if the counterparty does not have the practical ability to sell the asset in
its entirety to an unrelated third party without needing to impose additional restrictions on
the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to either settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Such a right of set off (a) must not be
contingent on a future event and (b) must be legally enforceable in all of the following
circumstances: (i) in the normal course of business, (ii) in the event of default and (iii) in
the event of insolvency or bankruptcy.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value. Interest income on available-for-sale
debt securities is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised in profit or
loss for the year as finance income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss for the year as finance income when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established and it is probable that the dividends will be collected. All other
elements of changes in the fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income until
the investment is derecognised or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from other comprehensive income to finance income in profit or loss for the
year.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss for the year when incurred as a result of
one or more events (“loss events”) that occurred after the initial recognition of available-for-
sale investments. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an equity security
below its cost is an indicator that it is impaired. The cumulative impairment loss - measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is reclassified from
other comprehensive income to finance costs in profit or loss for the year.

Impairment losses on equity instruments are not reversed and any subsequent gains are
recognised in other comprehensive income. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through current period’s profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash
and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss when incurred as a result of one or more
events (“loss events”) that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset and
which have an impact on the amount or timing of the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence exists that impairment was incurred for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics, and collectively assesses
them for impairment. The primary factors that the Group considers in determining whether a
financial asset is impaired are its overdue status and realisability of related collateral, if any.
The following other principal criteria are also used to determine whether there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has occurred:

o any portion or instalment is overdue and the late payment cannot be attributed to a
delay caused by the settlement systems;

o the counterparty experiences a significant financial difficulty as evidenced by its
financial information that the Group obtains;

o the counterparty considers bankruptcy or a financial reorganisation;

o there is adverse change in the payment status of the counterparty as a result of
changes in the national or local economic conditions that impact the counterparty; or

o the value of collateral, if any, significantly decreases as a result of deteriorating market
conditions.

If the terms of an impaired financial asset held at amortised cost are renegotiated or
otherwise modified because of financial difficulties of the counterparty, impairment is
measured using the original effective interest rate before the modification of terms. The
renegotiated asset is then derecognized and a new asset is recognized at its fair value only if
the risks and rewards of the asset substantially changed. This is normally evidenced by a
substantial difference between the present values of the original cash flows and the new
expected cash flows.

Impairment losses are always recognhised through an allowance account to write down the
asset’s carrying amount to the present value of expected cash flows (which exclude future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the asset. The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less
costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed by adjusting the allowance account through profit or loss for the year.

Uncollectible assets are written off against the related impairment loss provision after all the
necessary procedures to recover the asset have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to the impairment loss account within the profit or loss for the year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities have the following measurement categories: (a) held for trading which
also includes financial derivatives and (b) other financial liabilities. Liabilities held for trading
are carried at fair value with changes in value recognised in profit or loss for the year (as
finance income or finance costs) in the period in which they arise. Other financial liabilities
are carried at amortised cost.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are irrevocable contracts that require the Group to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder of the guarantee for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantees are initially recognised at their fair value, which is normally evidenced
by the amount of fees received. This amount is amortised on a straight line basis over the
life of the guarantee. At the end of each reporting period, the guarantees are measured at
the higher of (i) the remaining unamortised balance of the amount at initial recognition and
(ii) the best estimate of expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the
reporting period.

Employee benefit obligations

Remuneration to employees in respect of services rendered during the period is recognised
as an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Defined contribution plans

The Group’s Russian subsidiaries are legally obliged to make defined contributions to the
Russian Federation State Pension Fund (a defined contribution plan financed on a pay-as-
you-go basis). The Group’s contributions to the Russian Federation State Pension Fund
relating to defined contribution plans are charged to consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period to which they relate.

In the Russian Federation all state social contributions, including contributions to the Russian
Federation State Pension Fund, are collected through an insurance contributions calculated
by the application of a regressive rate from 26% to 0% of the annual gross remuneration of
each employee. This rate depends on the annual gross remuneration of each employee.

25



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Group’s obligations for contributions to other defined contribution plans are recognised
as expense as incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Group accounts for the cost of defined benefit plans using the projected unit credit
method. Under this method, the cost of providing pensions is charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, so as to attribute the total pension cost over the
service lives of employees in accordance with the benefit formula of the plan. The Group’s
obligation in respect of defined retirement benefit plans is calculated separately for each
defined benefit plan by discounting the amounts of future benefits that employees have
already earned through their service in the current and prior periods. The discount rate
applied represents the yield on government bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligations.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in employee benefit expense reflects the increase in the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit
changes curtailments and settlements. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
profit and loss.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the profit and loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Actuarial gains and losses are fully recognised in other comprehensive income in the
period they occur.

Restricted cash

Restricted cash represents legally restricted collateral deposited with various banks as
margin for irrevocable letters of credit and is included in other long-term assets of the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the date of consolidated statement of financial position,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Site restoration provision

The Group provides for the costs of restoring a site where a legal or constructive obligation
exists. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The estimated future land
restoration costs, discounted to net present value, are capitalised in respective items of
property, plant and equipment and amortised over the useful life of the corresponding asset.
In case at the date when the site restoration obligation arise no corresponding assets exist
relative provision is included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
other expenses.

The Group reviews site restoration provisions at each reporting date and adjusts them to
reflect the current best estimate. The risks and uncertainties that inevitably surround many
events and circumstances are taken into account in reaching the best estimate of a
provision. Changes in the measurement of a provision that result from changes in the
estimated timing or amount of cash outflow, or a change in the discount rate, are added to
or deducted from the costs of the related assets as appropriate in the current period or when
there is no relative assest are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as other expenses.

Provisions are discounted to their present value based on the rates of government bond
which are consistent with the currency and estimated term of the liabiability. The unwinding
of the obligation is included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
finance costs before revising the provision at year end.

Dividends

Dividends and related taxation thereon are recognised as a liability in the period in which
they have been declared and become legally payable.

Accumulated profits legally distributable are based on the amounts available for distribution
in accordance with the applicable legislation and as reflected in the statutory financial
statements of the individual entities of the Group. These amounts may differ significantly
from the amounts calculated on the basis of IFRS.

Segment information

Segment reporting is presented on the basis of management’s perspective and relates to the
parts of the Group that are defined as operating segments. Operating segments are
identified on the basis of internal reports to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
("CODM"). The Group has identified the General Director of the Parent Company as its
CODM and the internal reports used by the top management team to oversee operations
and make decisions on allocating the resources serve as the basis of information presented.
These internal reports are prepared on the same basis as these consolidated financial
statements.

Based on the current management structure, the Group has identified three reportable
segments: steel (Russia), steel (Turkey) and coal mining.

27



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. As a
result of the volatility in the global and Russian financial markets, management’s estimates
may change and result in a significant impact on the Group. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, including those involving estimations (see below),
that the management has made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial
statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that affect the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements and have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

The most significant areas requiring the use of management estimates and assumptions
relate to:

o useful economic lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment;
o site restoration provision;

. impairment of assets; and

o income tax and other taxes.

Useful economic life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment, other than mining assets, are depreciated using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives which are based on management’s
business plans and operational estimates, related to those assets.

The factors that could affect the estimation of useful lives and residual values include the
following:

o changes in asset utilisation rates;

o changes in maintenance technology;

. changes in regulations and legislation; and
o unforeseen operational issues.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
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Any of the above could affect prospective depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
their carrying and residual values.

Management periodically reviews the appropriateness of assets’ useful economic lives. The
review is based on the current condition of the assets and the estimated period during which
they will continue to bring economic benefits to the Group.

Site restoration provision

The Group estimates site restoration based on management’s understanding of the current
legal requirements and internally generated engineering estimates and represents
management’s best estimate of the present value of the future costs required.

Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the
amount of a provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur.
Significant estimates and assumptions are made in determining the amount of restoration
provisions. Those estimates and assumptions deal with uncertainties such as: requirements
of the relevant legal and regulatory framework; the magnitude of possible contamination
and the timing, extent and costs of required restoration activity. These uncertainties may
result in future actual expenditure differing from the amounts currently provided.

The provision recognised for each site is periodically reviewed and updated based on the
facts and circumstances available at the time. Changes to the estimated future costs for
operating sites are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position by
adjusting both the restoration asset if it exists and provision. Such changes give rise to a
change in future depreciation and financial charges. For closed sites, changes to estimated
costs are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive statement.
Details are disclosed in Note 22.

Impairment of assets

The Group periodically evaluates the recoverability of the carrying amount of its assets.
Whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of those
assets may not be recoverable, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
This requires the Group to make judgments regarding long-term forecasts of future
revenues and costs related to the assets subject to review. In turn, these forecasts are
uncertain in that they require assumptions about demand for products and future market
conditions. Significant and unanticipated changes to these assumptions and estimates
included within the impairment reviews could result in significantly different results than
those recorded in the consolidated financial statements. Details of the assumptions are
disclosed in Note 15.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
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Taxation

The Group is subject to income tax and other taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income tax and other taxes due to
the complexity of the tax legislation of the Russian Federation and of other countries, where
the Group’s entities operate. There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
inspection issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the amount of tax and tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

In addition, the Group records deferred tax assets at each date of the consolidated
statement of financial position based on the amount that management believes will be
utilised in future periods. This determination is based on estimates of future profitability. A
change in these estimates could result in the write-off of deferred tax assets in future
periods for assets that are currently recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In estimating levels of future profitability, the Group has considered historical
results of operations in recent years and would, if necessary, consider the implementation of
prudent and feasible tax planning strategies to generate future profitability.

6. REVENUE

By product 2015 2014
Hot rolled steel 2,588 3,449
Galvanised steel 817 1,032
Cold rolled steel 585 793
Long steel products 502 758
Galvanised steel with polymeric coating 477 585
Wire, sling, bracing 111 188
Tin plated steel 109 131
Hardware products 104 134
Coking production 94 135
Band 80 107
Tubes 35 53
Scrap 29 8
Formed section 17 92
Slabs 14 37
Coal 13 5
Others 264 445
Total 5,839 7,952
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6. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

By customer destination 2015 2014
Russian Federation and the CIS 77% 78%
Middle East 15% 14%
Europe 6% 5%
Africa 1% 1%
North America - 1%
Asia 1% 1%
Total 100% 100%

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that
relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. IFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (*CODM”) in order to
allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance, and for which discrete
financial information is available.

Based on the current management structure and internal reporting the Group has identified
the following operating segments:

o Steel segment (Russia), which includes Parent Company and its subsidiaries involved
in production of steel, wire and hardware products. All significant assets, production
and management and administrative facilities of this segment are located in the city of
Magnitogorsk, the Russian Federation;

o Steel segment (Turkey), which includes MMK Metalurji involved in production of steel.
The two sites of this segment are located in Iskenderun and Istanbul (Turkey);

. Coal mining segment, which includes OJSC Belon and its subsidiaries (*"Belon Group”)
involved in mining and refining of coal. All significant assets, production and
management and administrative facilities of this segment are located in the city of
Belovo, the Russian Federation.

The profitability of the three operating segments is primarily measured by CODM based on
Segment EBITDA based on IFRS. Segment EBITDA is determined as segment’s operating
profit or loss adjusted to exclude depreciation and amortisation expense and loss on disposal
of property, plant and equipment, and to include the share of result of associates, including
the impairment of investments in associates. Since this term is not a standard measure in
IFRS the Group’s definition of EBITDA may differ from that of other companies.

Inter-segment pricing is determined on a consistent basis using market benchmarks.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following table presents measures of segment results for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014:

Steel Steel Coal
(Russia) (Turkey) mining Eliminations Total

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Revenue

Sales to external customers 5,272 7,303 554 643 13 6 - - 5,839 7,952
Inter-segment sales 240 105 - - 204 265 (444) (370) - -
Total revenue 5,512 7,408 554 643 217 271 (444) (370) 5,839 7,952
Segment EBITDA 1,559 1,570 36 28 72 11 1 (2) 1,668 1,607

Depreciation and

amortisation (455) (646) (67) (65) (13) (35) - - (535) (746)
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (15) (50) 2 - (2) (7) - - (15) (57)
Share of results of associates (2) (1) - - - - - - (2) (1)

Operating profit/(loss) per
consolidated financial
statements 1,087 873 (29) (37) 57 (31) 1 (2) 1,116 803

A reconciliation from operating profit per consolidated financial statements to loss before
taxation is included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the segments’ total assets and liabilities were reconciled to
total assets and liabilities as follows:

31 December 2015

Steel Steel Coal
(Russia) (Turkey) mining Eliminations Total
Total assets 7,141 1,025 249 (2,258) 6,157
Total liabilities 2,310 559 67 (99) 2,837

31 December 2014

Steel Steel Coal
(Russia) (Turkey) mining Eliminations Total
Total assets 8,632 1,222 277 (2,274) 7,857
Total liabilities 3,221 686 163 (155) 3,915

The segmental additions on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 were:

2015 2014
Steel (Russia) 319 429
Steel (Turkey) 7 12
Coal mining 29 40
Total capital expenditure 355 481
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8. COST OF SALES

2015 2014
Cost of production
Raw materials used 2,871 4,479
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 518 727
Payroll and social taxes 548 829
Other expenses 120 227
4,057 6,262
Decrease in work in progress, finished goods and
goods-in-transit (3) (50)
Total 4,054 6,212
9. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2015 2014
Payroll and social taxes 116 205
Taxes other than income tax 45 92
Professional services 28 29
Depreciation and amortisation 14 17
Insurance 5 14
Materials 4 6
Research and development costs 2 3
Other 7 15
Total 221 381
10. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
2015 2014
Transportation expenses 343 410
Payroll and social taxes 10 15
Materials 20 20
Advertising expenses 8 7
Depreciation 3 2
Other 64 75
Total 448 529
11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES/(INCOME), NET
2015 2014
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 15 57
Provisionfor doubtful debtors 1 3
Net loss on sale of trading securities 2 -
Net loss on trading securities revaluation - 1
Dividends received from available-for-sale investments (6) (28)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (6)
Net gains on sale of other assets (8) (8)
Other operating losses, net 2 2
Total - 27
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12. OTHER EXPENSES
For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, other expenses included USD 34 million

and USD 70 million, respectively, related to mandatory and voluntary social programs and
maintenance of social assets.

13. FINANCE COSTS

2015 2014
Interest expense on borrowings 134 155
Interest expense on provisions 15 23
Net gains on interest rate swaps (2) (5)
Total 147 173

14. INCOME TAX

The Group’s income tax expense/(benefit) attributable to different tax jurisdictions for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 was:

2015 2014
Current income tax 191 20
Adjustments recognised in current year relating to prior year
current tax (1) (3)
Deferred income tax benefit, net 2 (27)
Total income tax expense/(benefit) 192 (10)

The income tax charge is different from that which would be obtained by applying the
Russian Federation statutory income tax rate to profit before income tax. A reconciliation
between the expected and the actual taxation charge is provided below.

2015 2014

Profit/(Loss) before income tax 613 (54)
Theoretical income tax charge/(benefit) computed at the Parent
Company’s statutory rate of 20% 123 (11)
Adjustments due to:

Expenses not deductible and income not taxable for tax

purposes 3 7

Adjustments of prior years deferred income tax expense (1) (3)

Change in unrecognized deferred tax assets 52 15

Other 15 (18)
Income tax expense/(benefit) 192 (10)
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14. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax position during the current and prior reporting
period was as follows:

31 December

2015 2014
Net deferred tax liability at the beginning of the year 343 680
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense 2 (27)
Deferred tax asset write-off relating to disposal of
treasury shares 18
Effect of translation to presentation currency (105) (310)
Net deferred tax liability at the end of the year 258 343

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities comprise differences arising between the tax and
accounting bases of the following assets and liabilities:

Charged/ Charged/ Effect of
31 (credited) (credited) to translation to 31
December to profit or change in presentation December
2015 loss equity currency 2014
Accounts receivable 4 (6) - - 10
Unused tax losses 52 (11) (18) 1 80
Investment tax credits 10 (39) - - 49
Accounts payable 30 13 - (5) 22
Property, plant and
equipment 14 (3) - (5) 22
Investments 3 (1) - 1 3
Inventories 8 (4) - (3) 15
Deferred tax set off (56) (10) - 11 (57)
Deferred income tax assets 65 (61) (18) - 144
Property, plant and
equipment (329) 48 - 106 (483)
Investments - -
Inventories (29) (1) - 8 (36)
Accounts receivable (11) (1) - 2 (12)
Loans (6) 5 - (11)
Accounts payable (4) (2) - - (2)
Deferred tax set off 56 10 - (11) 57
Deferred income tax
liabilities (323) 59 - 105 (487)
Net deferred income tax
liabilities (258) (2) (18) 105 (343)
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14. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Effect of
Charged/ translation to
31 December (credited) to presentation 31 December

2014 profit or loss currency 2013
Accounts receivable 10 8 (2) 4
Unused tax losses 80 22 (28) 86
Investment tax credits 49 (4) (1) 54
Accounts payable 22 (9) (18) 49
Property, plant and equipment 22 (44) (18) 84
Investments 3 1 (2) 4
Inventories 15 11 4) 8
Assets classified as held for sale - (1) (1) 2
Deferred tax set off (57) 32 31 (120)
Deferred income tax assets 144 16 (43) 171
Property, plant and equipment (483) 31 351 (865)
Investments - 4 - (4)
Inventories (36) (17) 20 (39)
Accounts receivable (12) 25 9 (46)
Loans (11) (8) 4 (7)
Accounts payable (2) 8 - (10)
Deferred tax set off 57 (32) (31) 120
Deferred income tax liabilities (487) 11 353 (851)
Net deferred income tax
liabilities (343) 27 310 (680)

Recognised tax losses expire in the following years:

31 December

Year of expiry 2015 2014
From 6 to 10 years 17 37
From 2 to 5 years 35 43

52 80

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised was USD 372 million and USD 439 million, respectively. No liabilities have been
recognised in these consolidated financial statements in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Based upon historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the
periods in which deferred income tax assets are deductible, management of the Group
believes it is more likely than not that Group will realise the benefits of the deductible
differences.
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14. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets of USD 15 million have not been recognised in 2014 (of which USD 15
million related to tax losses) and USD 52 million have not been recognised in 2015 (of which
USD 52 million related to tax losses) because it is not probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom. Tax losses

expire in the following years:

Year of expiry 2015 2014
From 6 to 10 years 1 15
From 2 to 5 years 51 -

52 15

In 2014, the Controlled Foreign Company (CFC) legislation introduced Russian taxation of
profits of foreign companies and non-corporate structures (including trusts) controlled by
Russian tax residents (controlling parties). Starting from 2015, CFC income is subject to a
20% tax rate. This legislation had no material impact on remeasurement of Group’s income

tax liabilities.

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land Machinery Transpor- Fixtures Construc-
and and tation and Mining tion-in-

buildings equipment equipment fittings assets progress Total
Cost
At 1 January 2014 4,529 9,446 283 250 256 772 15,536
Additions 1 256 3 5 - 207 472
Transfers 43 133 10 6 - (192) -
Site restoration
provision - - - - (16) - (16)
Disposals (24) (185) (11) (3) - (10) (233)
Effect of translation to
presentation currency (1,633) (3,623) (112) (104) (104) (324) (5,900)
At 31 December
2014 2,916 6,027 173 154 136 453 9,859
Additions - 140 1 5 - 205 351
Transfers 34 106 4 7 - (151) -
Site restoration
provision - - - - 5 - 5
Disposals (21) (145) (3) (1) - (14) (184)
Disposals of
subsidiaries - - - - (26) - (26)
Effect of translation to
presentation currency (524) (1,174) (34) (36) (28) (111) (1,907)
At 31 December
2015 2,405 4,954 141 129 87 382 8,098
Depreciation
At 1 January 2014 (1,751) (4,598) (176) (127) (178) (88) (6,918)
Charge for the year (97) (596) (16) (22) (6) - (737)
Impairment loss - - - - - 5 5
Disposals 12 126 8 2 - - 148
Effect of translation to
presentation currency 641 1,834 70 59 76 35 2,715
At 31 December
2014 (1,195) (3,234) (114) (88) (108) (48) (4,787)

37



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Land Machinery Transpor- Fixtures Construc-
and and tation and Mining tion-in-

buildings equipment equipment fittings assets progress Total
Charge for the year (66) (440) (11) (16) (4) - (537)
Impairment loss (4) (1) - - - (115) (120)
Disposals 10 125 2 - - 5 142
Disposals of
subsidiaries - - - - 26 - 26
Effect of translation to
presentation currency 219 645 23 22 22 11 942
At 31 December
2015 (1,036) (2,905) (100) (82) (64) (147) (4,334)
Carrying amount
At 31 December
2014 1,721 2,793 59 66 28 405 5,072
At 31 December
2015 1,369 2,049 41 47 23 235 3,764
Carrying amount
had no impairment
taken place
At 31 December
2014 2,222 3,426 69 74 81 452 6,324
At 31 December
2015 1,784 2,522 48 54 45 382 4,835

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the interest on borrowings of
USD nil million, was capitalised to property, plant and equipment.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of
USD 636 million and USD 706 million, respectively, were pledged as security for certain
long-term borrowings (Notes 21).

Capital commitments are disclosed in Note 29.

At 31 December 2015 the Group recognized impairment loss of USD 120 million which
includes USD 115 million related to the construction in progress and equipment which had
not yet been put into operation and USD 5 million related to other non-production assets.

At 31 December 2015, management analysed changes in the economic environment and
developments in the metals industry and the Group’s operations since 31 December 2014
and considered it necessary to carry out impairment tests for all significant cash-generating
units of the Group. For the purpose of impairment testing, MMK groups its assets into three
cash generating units, which are equivalent to the operating segments: Steel (Russia), Steel
(Turkey) and Coal. Based on the impairment analysis performed no impairment or reversal
of previously recorded impairment was recognised as at 31 December 2015.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

In performing the impairment test, the following specific assumptions were used for each
cash generating unit:

Steel segment (Russia)

cash flow projections were based on financial forecasts approved by management
covering a five year period;

forecast sales volume of steel increases by 1% in 2016 and remains stable at the level
of sales in 2016;

forecast steel sales prices decrease by 15% in 2016, increase by 9% in 2017, increase
by 8% in 2018 and increase by 2% on average thereafter;

forecast operating costs decrease by 2% in 2016, increase by 5% in 2017 and by 2%
on average thereafter.

The basic assumptions on post-forecast period:

the growth rate in the post-forecast period is 2%;

EBITDA margin equals to the average EBITDA margin for the period of 10 years (actual
dynamic for the period of 5 years plus 5-year forecast period);

a discount rate was estimated in USD terms based on the weighted average cost of
capital basis and was 10.6%.

The estimates of future discounted cash flows and the results of the impairment test are not
particularly sensitiveas a 1% decrease in annual growth rate in the post-forecast period; or
a 1% increase in the discount rate; or a 10% decrease in future planned volume of sales
would not lead to an impairment of property, plant and equipment.

Coal segment

cash flow projections were based on financial forecasts approved by management
covering a period of time equal to the term depletion;

forecast volume of gathered coal remains stable in 2016 on the level of 2015, increase
by 43% in 2017-2022 and will decrease by 9% on average in 2023-2025;

forecast sales volume of coal concentrate remains stable in 2016 on the level of 2015,
increase by 17% in 2017 and remains stable in average thereafter;

forecast coal sales prices decrease by 5% in 2016,increase by 6% in 2017 and
increase by 3% on average thereafter;

forecast operating costs increase by 18% in 2016, increase by 16% in 2017 and will
increase by 2% on average thereafter;

a discount rate was estimated in USD terms based on the weighted average cost of
capital basis and was 14.6%.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The estimates of future discounted cash flows and the results of the impairment test are
particularly sensitive in the following areas:

. a 1% increase in the discount rate would not lead to impairment losses;

. a 15% decrease in sales volumes would lead to impairment losses of USD 25 million, a
20% decrease - would lead to impairment losses of USD 68 million.

. a 15% decrease in volumes of gathered coals would lead to impairment losses of USD
24 million, a 20% decrease - would lead to impairment losses of USD 67 million.

Steel segment (Turkey)

o cash flow projections were based on financial forecasts approved by management
covering a five year period;forecast sales volume of steel in 2016 remain stable at the
level of sales in the 2015. In 2017 the growth of sales volume is forecasted to be 17%
to 2016. In 2017 the hot-rolled mill is planned to commence operations leading to an
expected sales growth in 2018 by 83%, in 2019 - by 4% and remain stable at the level
of sales in the 2019 year and thereafter;

o average steel sales prices in 2016 year decrease in average by -3% to the level of
2015, decrease by 2% in 2017, decrease by 7% in 2018 and will increase by 2% on
average thereafter;

o forecast operating costs in 2016 are expected to remain stable at the level of 2015, to
increase by 12% in 2017, increase by 55% in 2018 and will increase by 1% on
average thereafter.

The basic assumptions on post-forecast period:

o the growth rate in the post-forecast period is 2%;
o capital investments are lower than amortization level by 18% in terminal period;
. a discount rate was estimated in USD terms based on the weighted average cost of

capital basis and was 10.6%.

The estimates of future discounted cash flows and the results of the impairment test are
particularly sensitive in the following areas:

. a 1% decrease in annual growth rate in the post-forecast period would not lead to
impairment;

. a 1% increase in the discount rate would not lead to impairment;

o a 10% decrease in sales (in monetary terms) would lead to impairment losses of
USD 16 million.
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16. INVENTORIES

31 December

2015 2014
Raw materials 530 549
Finished goods and goods for resale 229 293
Work-in-progress 108 133
Deferred drifting costs 59 60
Total 926 1,035
Less: Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items and write down
to net realisable value (49) (28)
Total inventories, net 877 1,007

The movement in the allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items and write down to net
realisable value was as follows:

2015 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year 28 25
Change in allowance for slow-moving items 2 14
Write down to net realisable value 26 -
Effect of translation to presentation currency (7) (11)
Balance at the end of the year 49 28

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December

2015 2014
Trade receivables 346 520
Allowance for doubtful receivables (17) (26)
Total financial assets within trade and other receivables, net 329 494
Advances paid 15 30
Prepaid expenses 8 6
Other receivables 23 28
Total trade and other receivables, net 375 558

Guarantee letters received in relation to trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired amounted to USD 180 million (31 December 2014: USD 159 million).

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 financial assets are presented by:

Trade receivables

2015 2014
Neither past due nor impaired 297 452
Past due but not impaired 32 42
Individually determined to be impaired 17 26
Less impairment provision (17) (26)
Total financial assets 329 494
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis of past due but not impaired trade receivables from past due date is:

31 December

2015 2014
Less than 30 days 9 28
30-60 days 7 4
60-90 days 5 2
90-120 days 1 1
Over 120 days 10 7
Total 32 42

The management believes that receivables past due will be recovered in full. For the analysis

of credit quality of trade receivables refer to Note 27.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful trade receivables was as follows:

31 December

2015 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year 26 42
Increase in allowance 3 3
Provision utilised (7) (7)
Effect from sale of subsidiaries - -
Effect of translation to presentation currency (5) (12)
Balance at the end of the year 17 26
18. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

31 December

2015 2014
Non-current
Available-for-sale investments, at fair value
Listed equity securities 212 348
Unlisted securities 2 4
Total non-current 214 352
Current
Financial assets, at fair value through profit or loss
Trading equity securities - 3
Trading debt securities 4 3
Share in mutual investment fund 1 2
Bank deposits, USD bearing interest rate of 1.2 - 3.70% 260 222
Bank deposits, EUR bearing interest rate of 0.7 - 2.00% 90 -
Bank deposits, RUB bearing interest rate of 10.51% 4 -
Total current 359 230
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Non-current listed equity securities classified as available-for-sale represent investments in
equity securities of a foreign entity, where the Group has less than a 20% equity interest
and no significant influence. At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the investments revaluation
reserve resulting from unrealised holding gains and losses on these securities was USD 121
million and USD 224 million, respectively, net of related income tax effect of USD nil million,
respectively. Fair value of non-current listed equity securities is based on the public shares
quotes. Investment is BB rated based on the credit ratings of independent rating agency
Standard&Poors.

Trading equity securities were liquid publicly traded shares of Russian companies. They were
reflected at period-end market value based on trade prices obtained from investment
brokers.

Trading debt securities are liquid publicly traded bonds and notes of Russian companies and
banks. They are reflected at period-end market value based on trade prices obtained from
investment brokers.

The net loss on revaluation of trading securities for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014 was USD nil million and USD 1 million, respectively. These results are included in other
operating income/expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

No bank deposits are past due or impaired. The analysis of the credit quality of bank
deposits are as follows:

31 December

2015 2014
BBB-to BBB+ rated 228 125
BB-to BB+ rated 125 97
Total 354 222

Based on the credit ratings of independent rating agencies Standard&Poors and Fitch
ratings.

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December

2015 2014
Cash in banks, RUB 18 144
Cash in banks, EUR 31 25
Cash in banks, USD 43 38
Cash in banks, TRY 1 1
Bank deposits, RUB bearing interest rate of 3.50%-11.30%
(31 December 2014: 8.00%) 66 12
Bank deposits, USD bearing interest rate of 0.62%-1.20%
(31 December 2014: 3.00%-4.00%) 199 84
Bank deposits, TRY bearing interest rate of 0.25%-3.05%
31 December 2014 - 2
Bank deposits, EUR bearing interest rate of 2.60%
(31 December 2014:2.60%) 11 21
Total 369 327
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

No bank balances and deposits are past due or impaired. The analysis of the credit quality of
bank balances and deposits are as follows:

31 December

2015 2014
A to AAA rated 4 3
BBB-to BBB+ rated 231 96
BB-to BB+ rated 132 219
Other 2 9
Total 369 327

Based on the credit ratings of independent rating agencies Standard&Poors and Fitch
ratings.

20. SHARE CAPITAL

Common stock

31 December

2015 2014

Issued and fully paid common shares with a par value of RUB 1
each (in thousands) 11,174,330 11,174,330
Issued and net outstanding shares comprised the following:

Treasury Net
Number of ordinary shares in thousands Issued shares outstanding
Balance at 1 January 2014 11,174,330 (10,698) 11,163,632
Acquisition of treasury shares - (320,530) (320,530)
Re-issuance of treasury shares - 303,060 303,060
Balance at 31 December 2014 11,174,330 (28,168) 11,146,162
Acquisition of treasury shares - (967,590) (967,590)
Re-issuance of treasury shares - 993,922 993,922
Balance at 31 December 2015 11,174,330 (1,836) 11,172,494

Treasury stock

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group held 1,836 thousand and 28,168 thousand,
respectively, issued common shares of the Parent Company as treasury stock.

Investments revaluation reserve

The investments revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value

of available-for-sale securities held at the reporting date and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note 4.
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20. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Currency translation reserve

The currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the consolidated financial statements of foreign operations and translation to
presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in Note 4.

Shareholders’ voting rights

The shareholders of fully paid common stock are entitled to one vote per share at the annual
general shareholders’ meeting of the Parent Company.

Dividends

On 28 September 2015 the Parent Company declared an interim dividend of RUB 0.58
(USD 0.01) per ordinary share in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2015
representing a total dividend of USD 99 million, net of dividends in respect to treasury
shares. USD 103 million of dividend was paid out in 2015 and the difference with the
declared amount is caused by the change in the exhange rates.

On 12 December 2014 the Parent Company declared a interim dividend of RUB 0.58
(USD 0.01) per ordinary share in respect of the nine months ended 30 September 2014
representing a total dividend of USD 118 million, net of dividends in respect to treasury
shares. USD 117 million was paid out in 2014 and the difference with the declared amount is
caused by the change in the exhange rates.

21. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Annual interest rate,

Type of actual at 31 December 31 December 31 December
Interest
rate 2015 2014 2015 2014
Unsecured listed bonds, RUB Fixed - 9% - 84
Secured loans, USD Floating 6% 5% 154 206
Secured loans, USD Fixed - 4% - 10
Secured loans, EUR Fixed 6% 6% 132 195
Unsecured loans, USD Floating 4% 3% 571 794
Unsecured loans, RUB Fixed - 9% - 254
Unsecured loans, EUR Floating 1% 2% 97 179
954 1,722
Loans

The company has various borrowing arrangements in RUB, USD and EUR denominations
with various lenders. Those borrowings consist of unsecured and secured loans and credit
facilities. At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the total unused element of all credit facilities
was USD 1,014 million and USD 1,114 million, respectively.
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21. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
The bank loans are subject to certain restrictive covenants, including, but not limited to:

. the ratio of consolidated debt to consolidated EBITDA should not exceed 3.5:1;

. the ratio of consolidated EBITDA to consolidated debt service should not be less than
1.3:1; and
. the ratio of consolidated debt to consolidated equity should not exceed 1:1.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group was in compliance with its debt covenants.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, long-term loans were secured by the Group’s property,
plant and equipment with a net carrying amount of USD 636 million and USD 706 million,
respectively, and shares in a subsidiary with a carrying amount of net assets of USD 466
million and USD 536 million, respectively.

Debt repayment schedule

Year ended 31 December 2015

2016 (presented as current portion of long-term borrowings, Note 25) 852
2017 681
2018 178
2019 95
2020 and thereafter -
Total 1,806

Year ended 31 December 2014

2015 (presented as current portion of long-term borrowings, Note 25) 702
2016 849
2017 643
2018 143
2019 and thereafter 87
Total 2,424

22, SITE RESTORATION PROVISION

31 December

2015 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year 94 192
Unwinding of discount rate 13 20
Change in estimates 64 (29)
Disposal of subsidiaries (5) -
Provision utilised (9) (10)
Effect of translation to presentation currency (23) (79)
Balance at the end of the year 134 94
Included in the consolidated statement of financial position as:
Current portion of site restoration provision 8 6
Long-term portion of site restoration provision 126 88
Total 134 94
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22, SITE RESTORATION PROVISION (CONTINUED)

According to environmental regulation and Ecological program approved by the management
in 2013 the Group recognised a provision for restoration of land and open pit in
Magnitogorsk up to 2037. At the moment of provision recognition there were no assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position related to this provision due the open pit
was depleted long years ago.

In 2015 the management reassessed the cost of restoration of open pit due to increase in
land rent costs and changes in discount rate and increased relative provision by USD
59 million accordingly and recognized it as part of other expenses. Provision for restoration
and closing mine of mine shaft was increased by USD 5 million and capitalized to the costs
of related assets. The Group used discount rate of 9,72% (2014:12,59%) to calculated
provision.

23. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

Payments to the Russian Federation State Pension Fund amounted to USD 112 million and
USD 173 million for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, respectively.

24, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 December

2015 2014
Trade accounts payable 339 387
Dividends payable 1 2
Total financial payables within trade and other payables 340 389
Advances from customers 87 190
Other taxes payable 35 75
Salaries payable 46 59
Interest rate swaps - 2
Other current liabilities 8 21
Total trade and other payables 516 736

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial payables within trade and other payables was
as follows:

31 December

2015 2014
Due in:
1 month or less 275 379
1-3 months 43 10
3 months to 1 year 22 -
Total 340 389
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25. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM

BORROWINGS

Annual interest rate,

Type of actual at 31 December 31 December
Interest
rate 2015 2014 2015 2014
Short-term borrowings:
Secured loans, USD Floating 1% 2% 14 28
Secured loans, USD Fixed - 2% - 27
Secured loans, EUR Floating 1% 2% 3 3
Unsecured loans, USD Fixed 1% 2% 24 50
Unsecured loans, RUB Fixed - 17% - 53
41 161
Current portion of
long-term borrowings:
Unsecured listed bonds, RUB Fixed 9% 9% 71 97
Secured loans, USD Floating 6% 5% 63 65
Secured loans, USD Fixed 4% 3% 36 10
Unsecured loans, EUR Floating 1% 2% 66 78
Secured loans, EUR Fixed 6% 6% 63 62
Unsecured loans, USD Floating 3% 3% 327 323
Unsecured loans, RUB Fixed 10% 9% 215 66
Unsecured loans, USD Fixed - - - -
Unsecured loans, EUR Fixed 3% 4% 11 1
852 702
Total 893 863

The weighted average interest rates of short-term borrowings at 31 December 2015 and

2014 were as follows:

31 December

2015 2014
RUB-denominated 10% 11%
USD-denominated 4% 3%
EUR-denominated 3% 3%

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, short-term borrowings were secured by inventories and/or
trade receivables of USD 16 million, and USD 30 million, respectively.

Short-term borrowings and the current portion of long-term borrowings are repayable as

follows:

31 December

2015 2014
Due in:
1 month 97 180
1-3 months 225 158
3 months to 1 year 571 525
Total 893 863
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26. RELATED PARTIES
Transactions and balances outstanding with related parties

Transactions between the Parent Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of
the Parent Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
note.

The Group enters into transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business for
the purchase and sale of goods and services and in relation to the provision of financing
agreements to and from the Group entities. Transactions with related parties are performed
on arms length basis.

Details of transactions with and balances between the Group and related parties at
31 December 2015 and 2014 and for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 are
disclosed below.

a) Transactions with associates of the Group

2015 2014

Purchases 92 192

31 December
Balances outstanding 2015 2014

Accounts payable 1 3

b) Transactions with other related parties

2015 2014
Revenue 266 252
Purchases 14 -
Bank charges 2 3

31 December

Balances outstanding 2015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents 69 62
Accounts receivable 21 23
Accounts payable 1 -

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash.
Remuneration of the Group’s key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Group receive only short-term employment benefits. For

the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, key management personnel received as
compensation USD 12 million and USD 13 million, respectively.
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27. RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

The main risks inherent to the Group’s operations are those related to liquidity risk, credit
risk exposures, market movements in interest rates, equity investment prices and
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. A description of the Group’s risks and associated
management policies in relation to these risks are detailed below.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to settle all liabilities as they fall due.

The Group’s liquidity position is carefully monitored and managed. The Group has in place a
detailed budgeting and cash forecasting process to help ensure that it has adequate cash
available to meet its payment obligations.

Presented below is the maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings (the maturity profiles for
other liabilities are presented in Note 24) based on contractual undiscounted payments,
including interest:

Weighted Due Due
average Due Due from in to the
effective within from one three to second
interest rate, one to three twelve fifth
2015 % Total month months months years
Fixed rate bank loans and
borrowings
Principal 8% 561 50 75 286 150
Interest 46 9 6 18 13
607 59 81 304 163
Floating rate borrowings
Principal 4% 1,300 31 141 275 853
Interest 82 7 9 27 39
1,382 38 150 302 892
Total 1,989 97 231 606 1,055
Weighted Due Due
average Due Due from in the
effective within from one three to second to
interest rate, one to three twelve fifth
2014 % Total month months months years
Fixed rate borrowings
Principal 8% 927 63 18 249 597
Interest 103 11 7 38 47
1,030 74 25 287 644
Floating rate borrowings
Principal 3% 1,687 97 129 237 1,224
Interest 111 8 10 30 63
1,798 105 139 267 1,287
Total 2,828 179 164 554 1,931

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Group. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and
deposits with banks as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding
uncollateralised trade and other receivables.
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27. RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Prior to acceptance of a new customer, the Group assesses the customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits. Credit limits attributable to customers are regularly reviewed, at a
minimum annually.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
financial assets recorded in the consolidated financial statements, net of any impairment
losses, and the amount of financial guarantees for trade receivables obtained by certain
related and third parties of the Group.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and
other receivables including trade and other receivables from related parties by type of
customers was as follows:

31 December

2015 2014
Automobile producers 33 44
Traders 48 67
Tube plants 56 151
Other industries 192 232
Total 329 494

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the financial results of the Group will be adversely
impacted by changes in exchange rates to which the Group is exposed.

The objective of the Group’s foreign exchange risk management is to minimise the volatility
of the Group’s cash flows arising from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Management
focuses on assessing the Group’s future cash flows in foreign currencies and managing the
gaps arising between inflows and outflows. Currently, the Group does not use hedging
instruments to manage exchange rate exposures.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other than its functional currencywere as
follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

EUR uUsbD EUR uUsD
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 42 210 46 82
Deposites 90 260 222
Trade receivables 26 68 51 53
Total assets 158 538 97 135
Liabilities
Trade payables (47) (102) (35) (75)
Borrowings (373) (898) (525) (1,215)
Total liabilities (420) (1,000) (560) (1,290)
Total net position (262) (462) (463) (1,155)

The table below details the Group’s sensitivity to devaluation of the RUB against USD and
EUR by 20% (2014: by 10%), which management believes is an appropriate measure in the
current market conditions and which would impact its operations.

51



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY
MAGNITOGORSK IRON & STEEL WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(In millions of U.S. Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

27. RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

EUR impact USD impact
2015 2014 2015 2014
Loss (52) (46) (92) (116)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the
value of financial instruments.

The table below details the Group’s annualised sensitivity to change of floating rates (LIBOR,
EURIBOR, Mosprime) by 2% (2014:1%), which management believes is an appropriate
measure in the current market conditions and which would impact its operations. The
analysis was applied to borrowings based on the assumptions that amount of liability
outstanding at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position was outstanding
for the whole annual period.

31 December
2015 2014

Profit or loss 26 17

Equity and debt investment price risk

The Group is also exposed to investment price risk arising from holding equity and debt
investments. Certain portion of the Group’s investments is held for strategic, rather than
trading, purposes. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to equity and debt price risks at the reporting date.

If equity and debt prices had been 5% higher/lower:

. the investment revaluation reserve within equity would increase/decrease by USD
11 million (2014: increase/decrease by USD 17 million), as a result of changes in fair
value of listed securities available-for-sale; and

. profit for the vyear would increase/decrease by USD nil million (2014:
increase/decrease by USD 1 million), as a result of changes in fair value of listed debt
and equity securities classified as fair value through profit or loss.

28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of
debt and equity.

As at 31 December 2015 the capital structure of the Group consists of debt in the amount of
USD 1,847 million (31 December 2014: USD 2,585 million), share capital of USD 386 million
(31 December 2014:USD 386 million) and retained earnings of USD 7,772 million (USD
7,458 million).
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28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The management of the Group reviews the Group’s capital structure on an annual basis. As
part of this review, management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on their recommendations, the Group balances its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt. Additionally the Group monitors the adequacy of its debt levels
using the debt to EBITDA ratio and debt to equity. Details of ratios are disclosed in Note 21.

There were no significant changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during
the year ended 31 December 2015 in comparison to the prior period.

29. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments for expenditure

In the course of carrying out its operations and other activities the Group enters into various
agreements which require the Group to invest in or provide financing to specific projects or
undertakings.

In the opinion of the Group’s management, these commitments are entered into under
standard terms, which are representative of each project’s feasibility and should not result in
unreasonable losses to the Group.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had commitments under purchase agreements of
approximately USD 130 million to acquire property, plant and equipment in 2015 (at 31
December 2014 — USD 75 million).

At 31 December 2015, the Group had commitments under purchase agreements of
approximately USD 3,126 million to acquire in future periods through 2015-2022 coking
coal, zinc, iron ore and natural gas (at 31 December 2014 - USD 5,215 million).

Penalties are payable or receivable under these agreements in certain circumstances and
where supply terms are not adhered to. Management does not expect such conditions to
result in a loss to the Group.

In the past, the Group transferred social assets to local municipal authorities. The Group’s
management expects that the Group will continue to partly fund these social operations for
the foreseeable future. These costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as incurred (Note 12).

Operating leases
The land in the Russian Federation on which the Group’s production facilities are located is
owned by the State. The Group pays land tax based on the total area and the location of the

land occupied. The amount of land tax for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 was
approximately USD 6 million and USD 10 million, respectively.
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29. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The Group leases land through operating lease agreements, which expire in various years
through 2063. Future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements at 31 December were as follows:

2015 2014

Due in one year 5 8
Due in the second year 5 6
Due thereafter 68 189
78 203

Letters of guarantee

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the letters of guarantee obtained from banks and given to
suppliers and various government authorities amounted to USD nil million and USD
17 million respectively.

Russian business environment

The Russian Federation displays certain characteristics of an emerging market. Its economy
is particularly sensitive to oil and gas prices. The legal, tax and regulatory frameworks
continue to develop and are subject to frequent changes and varying interpretations. During
2015 the Russian economy was negatively impacted by low oil prices, ongoing political
tension in the region and continuing international sanctions against certain Russian
companies and individuals, all of which contributed to the country’s economic recession
characterised by a decline in gross domestic product. The financial markets continue to be
volatile and are characterised by frequent significant price movements and increased trading
spreads. Russia’s credit rating was downgraded to below investment grade. This operating
environment has a significant impact on the Group’s operations and financial position.
Management is taking necessary measures to ensure sustainability of the Group’s
operations. However, the future effects of the current economic situation are difficult to
predict and management’s current expectations and estimates could differ from actual
results.

Taxation contingencies in the Russian Federation

Russian tax legislation which was enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, is subject to varying interpretations when being applied to the transactions
and activities of the Group. Consequently, tax positions taken by management and the
formal documentation supporting the tax positions may be challenged tax authorities.
Russian tax administration is gradually strengthening, including the fact that there is a
higher risk of review of tax transactions without a clear business purpose or with tax
incompliant counterparties. Fiscal periods remain open to review by the authorities in
respect of taxes for three calendar years preceding the year when decisions about the
review was made. Under certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.

The Russian transfer pricing legislation is to a large extent aligned with the international
transfer pricing principles developed by the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and
Development (OECD). This legislation provides the possibility for tax authorities to make
transfer pricing adjustments and impose additional tax liabilities in respect of controlled
transactions (transactions with related parties and some types of transactions with unrelated
parties), provided that the transaction price is not arm’s length.
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29. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Tax liabilities arising from transactions between companies are determined using actual
transaction prices. It is possible, with the evolution of the interpretation of the transfer
pricing rules, that such transfer prices could be challenged. The impact of any such
challenge cannot be reliably estimated; however, it may be significant to the financial
position and/or the overall operations of the Group.

The Group includes companies incorporated outside of Russia. The tax liabilities of the Group
are determined on the assumption that these companies are not subject to Russian profits
tax, because they do not have a permanent establishment in Russia. This interpretation of
relevant legislation may be challenged but the impact of any such challenge cannot be
reliably estimated currently; however, it may be significant to the financial position and/or
the overall operations of the Group. In 2014, the Controlled Foreign Company (CFC)
legislation introduced Russian taxation of profits of foreign companies and non-corporate
structures (including trusts) controlled by Russian tax residents (controlling parties).
Starting from 2015, CFC income is subject to a 20% tax rate. As a result, management
reassessed the Group’s tax positions and recognised current tax expense as well as deferred
taxes for temporary differences that arose from the expected taxable manner of recovery of
the relevant Group’s operations to which the CFC legislation applies to and to the extent that
the Group (rather than its owners) is obliged to settle such taxes. Refer to Note 14.

As Russian tax legislation does not provide definitive guidance in certain areas, the Group
adopts, from time to time, interpretations of such uncertain areas that reduce the overall tax
rate of the Group. While management currently estimates that the tax positions and
interpretations that it has taken can probably be sustained, there is a possible risk that an
outflow of resources will be required should such tax positions and interpretations be
challenged by the tax authorities. The impact of any such challenge cannot be reliably
estimated; however, it may be significant to the financial position and/or the overall
operations of the Group.

30. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair values of certain financial instruments have been determined using
available market information or other valuation methodologies that require considerable
judgment in interpreting market data and developing estimates. Accordingly, the estimates
applied are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Group could realise in a
current market exchange. The use of different assumptions and estimation methodologies
may have a material impact on the estimated fair values.

Where it was available, management of the Group determined fair value of unlisted shares
using a valuation technique that was supported by publicly available market information.

The carrying amounts of financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, short-term and floating rate long-term borrowings
(except for listed bonds), trade and other payables are reasonable approximation their fair
values as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 (Level 3 of fair value hierarchy).

For assets and liabilies carried at amortised cost the fair value of floating rate instruments is
normally their carrying amount. The estimated fair value of fixed interest rate instruments is
based on estimated future cash flows expected to be received discounted at current interest
rates for new instruments with similar credit risks and remaining maturities. Discount rates
used depend on the credit risk of the counterparty.
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30. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table presents the fair value of financial instruments other than those carried
at amortised cost at the end of reporting period across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
that fair value management. The levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable market data.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2015
Available-for-sale investments,
listed equity securities 212 - - 212
Available-for-sale investments,
unlisted equity securities - - 2 2
Trading debt securities 4 - - 4
Share in mutual investment fund 1 - - 1
Total assets 217 - 2 219
Listed bonds 68 - - 68
Total liabilities 68 - - 68
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

31 December 2014

Available-for-sale investments,

listed equity securities 348 - - 348
Available-for-sale investments,

unlisted equity securities - - 4 4
Trading equity securities 3 - - 3
Trading debt securities 3 - - 3
Share in mutual investment fund 2 - - 2
Total assets 356 - 4 360
Listed bonds 166 - - 166
Interest rate swaps - - 2 2
Total liabilities 166 - 2 168
The movement in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

Derivative financial instruments: USD million
At 1 January 2015 2

Changes in fair value estimation recognized during the year (2)
Balance at 31 December 2015 -
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31. EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

In February 2016 European Union made decision to impose a provisional duty on imports of
some cold-rolled steel products for Russian steel producers. The share of cold-rolled steel
products in the Group's export is not significant. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of the duty on it's financial results.

32. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 were approved
by the Group’s management and authorised for issue on 15 February 2016.
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